
  Date Posted: 11/3/2017 
 

All times are approximate and for reference only.   

The Board of Directors may consider an item at a different time than set forth herein. 

 
 (Continued) 

 
 
 

Information about and copies of supporting materials on agenda items are available for public review at 999 Rush 
Creek Place, Novato, at the Reception Desk, or by calling the District Secretary at (415) 897-4133.  A fee may be 
charged for copies.  District facilities and meetings comply with the Americans with Disabilities Act.  If special 
accommodations are needed, please contact the District Secretary as soon as possible, but at least two days prior to 
the meeting. 

 
Est. 
Time Item Subject 

7:00 p.m.  CALL TO ORDER  

 1.  APPROVE MINUTES FROM REGULAR MEETING, October 3, 2017 

 2.  APPROVE MINUTES FROM REGULAR MEETING, October 17, 2017  

 3.  GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT  

 4.  OPEN TIME:  (Please observe a three-minute time limit) 

  This section of the agenda is provided so that the public may express comments on any issues not 
listed on the agenda that are of interest to the public and within the jurisdiction of the North Marin Water 
District.  When comments are made about matters not on the agenda, Board members can ask 
questions for clarification, respond to statements or questions from members of the public, refer a 
matter to staff, or direct staff to place a matter of business on a future agenda.  The public may also 
express comments on agenda items at the time of Board consideration. 

 5.  STAFF/DIRECTORS REPORTS 

 6.  QUARTERLY FINANCIAL STATEMENT 

  CONSENT CALENDAR 

  The General Manager has reviewed the following items.  To his knowledge, there is no opposition to 
the action.  The items can be acted on in one consolidated motion as recommended or may be 
removed from the Consent Calendar and separately considered at the request of any person. 

 7.  Consent – Approve: WaterLine Newsletter Fall 2017 Novato, Volume 18, Issue 39 

 8.  Consent – Approve: Final Annual Report Fiscal Year 2016-2017 

 9.  Consent – Approve: Designate Voting Delegate to the ACWA 2017 Fall Conference and 
Authorize Vote in support of proposed ACWA Bylaws Amendment 

 10.  Consent – Approve: Adopt Hazard Mitigation Grant Program Resolution – Project 
Subapplication Oceana Marin Treatment and Storage Pond Repair 

  ACTION CALENDAR 

 11.  Approve: Award Construction Contract to Wildcat Engineering: Recycled Water Central 
Onsite Private Retrofit Project 

 12.  Approve: Follow-Up to Request for Bill Adjustment – 265 Saddlewood Dr. 

 13.  Approve: Fire Disaster Leave For Employees   

  INFORMATION ITEMS 

NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT 
AGENDA - REGULAR MEETING 

November 7, 2017 – 7:00 p.m. 
District Headquarters 

999 Rush Creek Place 
Novato, California 
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Est. 
Time Item Subject 

 14.  Water Conservation Quarterly Update (July-September 2017) 

 15.  Quarterly Progress Report - Engineering Department 

 16.  MISCELLANEOUS 
Disbursements 
John Stuber Obituary 
SCWA- Multiple Local Agencies Act to Prevent Post-Fires Floods, Pollution 
Salinity Notices 
SMSWP WaterSense Award 

  
News Articles: 
Sonoma concerned that toxic ash from fire could hurt water quality 
What the coming La Nina means for California rains 
Novato’s Measure E tax sets flood control as a priority 
Information sessions set on water rate hike 
Researchers propose an open ‘internet of water’ tracking use, quality and costs 
Marin resident to head Golden Gate National Recreation Area 
Point Reyes winemaker wins permits in appeal 
Pension change reflects prudent fiscal outlook 
Marin County pension contributions to rise 

 17.  CLOSED SESSION: In accordance with California Government Code Section 54957 for 
Public Employment, Title: District Secretary 

8:30 p.m. 18.  ADJOURNMENT 
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To:

From

Subj:

MEMORANDUM

Board of Directors

David L. Bentley, Auditor-Controller

lnformation - FY17l18 September Financial Statement
t:\accountants\f inancials\stmtfy'1 B\md&a091 7.doc

Sep-17
Actual
$2,470,981

1,793,634
(39,755)

FY17 t18
ActualYTD

$7,208,486
5,283,074

(74,684)

November 3,2017

FY17t18
Budqet

$19,692,000
19,080,000

FYTD /
Budqet %

37%
28%
22%

693o/o

FYî8 vs 17
Up/(Down)

16%
ao/Lto

FISCAL YEAR PERFORMANCE COMPARED TO THE ANNUAL BUDGET

CONSOLIDATED SUMMARY
Actual vs. Budget
Operating Revenue
Operating Expense
Non-Operating Revenue / (Expense)

Net lncome / (Loss)
Other Sources / (Uses)*

Cash lncrease / (Decrease)

See Page B.

NOVATO WATER
Year over Year Comparison
Operating Revenue
Operating Expense
Other lncome / (Expense)

Net lncome / (Loss)

Active Accounts
Consumption (MG)
Average Commodity Rate / 1,000 gal (net)
lncome / (Loss ) / Active Account
lncome / (Loss) / '1,000 Gal
Connection Fee Revenue
Caltrans Capital Contribution
MMWD AEEP Capital Contribution
Developer'ln-Kind' Contributions

$1 038 $z 521 792

(34 5,000)
$637,592

655,446
$1,850,728

67'1,065
$267,000
(833,000)

$566,000

For the first quarler of the fiscal year the District generated a net income of $1 ,850,728 and saw a net
cash increase of $2,521,792. On a seasonally adjusted basis, Operating Revenue came in 9% over
budget and Operating Expense came in 1o/o under budget. $1,190,508 (7o/o) of the Capital lmprovement
Projects Budget has been expended this fiscal year-to-date. At September 30, $3,146,225 in loan and
grant funds was owed the District for the Recycled Water Distribution System expansion to Central
Novato. The September cash increase ($1,293,038) was due primarily to receipt of SRF loan proceeds
($1,828,922) offset by SRF loan payment for the Recycled Water North Project ($1t0,129) and
payments for Recycled Water Central Project ($216,389) and purchase of granular activated carbon for
sTP ($166,606).

SUMMARY INCOME STATEMENTS BY SERVICE AREA
PRESENTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPALS

Sep-17
Actual
$2,231,120

1,630,590
(12,424)

FY17 t18
ActualYTD

$6,443,835
4,783,643

FY16t17
ActualYTD

$5,548,824
4,709,047

(21,061)'10 025
$5BB 107

20,548
318

$5.83
$28.62

$1.85
$0
$0
$o

$6,832

$818,716 104%

0%
13%
7%

104%
80%

253o/o

(e2%)
0%

(81%)

_____$t910,49_
20,548

901

$5.89
$81 28

$1.85
$709,200

$735
$245,000

$19,046

20,534
795

$5.53
$39.87

$1.03
$201,1 85

$8,766
$245,000
$101 ,889

1



Memo re September Financial Statement
November 3,2017
Page 2 of 3

Consumption for the fiscal year-to-date was 13% more than the prior year same period. Total operating
revenue, which includes wheeling and other miscellaneous service charges, increased 16% ($895,012)
from the prior year same period due to the consumption increase and the 5% rate increase effective
June 1 , 2017. Total operating expense was 2% (fi74,596) more than last year same period. The
Stafford Treatment Plant produced 317 MG this fiscal year-to-date at a cost of $2,545/MG1 versus

$2,72111\/lG'from SCWA. The budget for Stafford is 750 MG at a cost of $2,944lMG.

Staff time (hours) charged to Novato operations was about the same as last year same period. Salary
and benefit cost was $1 ,614,480, which was 25o/o of the $6,532,000 budget for Novato operations.

The fiscal year-to-date net income (which includes non-operating items such as interest revenue and

expense) of $1,670,216 compares to a budgeted net income for the year of $283,000 and to a net

income of $818,716 for the prior year same period. $227,344 (2%) of the Novato Water Capital
lmprovement Project Budget was spent versus $252,581 (3%) for the prior year same period. $709,200
in connection fees have been collected ($780,000 is budgeted). Connection Fee reserves totaling

9266,435 were transferred this fiscal year-to-date to the Recycled Water Fund to cover the debt service
for expansion of the RW distribution system. The Novato Connection Fee Reserve has a deficit of

95,404,695 arising from transfers to the RW Fund in advance of Connection Fee receipts. That deficit
will be reimbursed by future Connection Fee revenue. The Novato cash balance increasedfil,271,629
in September, and stood at $10,039,079 at month end, compared to a budgeted projection of

$7,000,000 at fiscal year-end

NOVATO RECYCLED
Year over Year Comparison
Operating Revenue
Operating Expense
Other lncome / (Expense)

Net lncome / (Loss)

Active Accounts
Consumption (MG)
Average Commodity Rate / 1,000 gal (net)

Deer lsland Production (MG)

Novato Sanitary Production (MG)

Las Gallinas Production (MG)

Potable Water lnput (MG)

Sep-17
Actual

$107,479
81,646

(26,787)

________l$953)_
53

22.7
$4.61

4.1

13.1
7.8
0.0

FY17t18
ActualYTD

FY16t17
ActualYTD

FY18 vs 17

Up/(Down)
13%
2o/o

53%
25%
20%
8%
5%
63%
(2%)
2%

$414,128
266,948
(83,753)

$366,335
260,685
(54,856)

$63 7 $50 794
44

68.2

$5.26
4,3

48.2
¿,t.ó

0.0

53
/ J.J

$5.52
7.0

47.4
24.4
08

73.3 MG was delivered to RW customers this fiscal year-to-date, 8% more than the prior year same
period. Operating revenue was 13% more than last year same period due to the June 1,2017 5o/o rate
increase and the consumption increase. Total operating expense was $6,263 (2%) more than the prior
year same period. The recycled water was produced at a cost of $2,169/MG'z versus 92,721lMG'from
SCWA. The budgeted production cost of recycled water is $2,725lMG.

The fiscal year-to-date net income of $63,427 compares to a budgeted net loss for the year of $203,000
and a net income of $50,794 for the prior year same period. $924,016 (14%) of the Capital lmprovement
Project Budget has been expended this fiscal year-to-date. The Novato Recycled cash balance stood at

$869,672 at month end, which amount resides in a restricted reserve required by State loan covenant for

1 
Stafford production cost = TP op expense ($601 ,305) + SRF loan interest ($65,306) + plant depreciation ($1 40,266) / 31 7 MG prod uced

2 
Recycled Water production cost = purchase water cost ($100,437) + treatment expense ($9,545) + Deer lsland RW Facility SRF loan

interest ($14,566) + Deer lsland plant depreciation ($31,805) I 72.1 l\AG produced
t 

SCWA production cost per MG = O&M charge ($2,202) + debt service charge ($154) + Russian River conservation charge ($325) + Russian

River projects charge ($40)

2



Memo re September Financial Statement
November 3,2017
Page 3 of 3

payment of debt service on the Nor1h, South and Central RW Expansion Projects, compared to a

budgeted projection of $1,263,000 at June 30,2018. At September 30 the Recycled Waterfund owed

the Novato potable water fund $2,285,884 pending receipt of $3,146,225 in SWRCB loan and grant funds
for the Recycled Water Distribution System expansion to Central Novato

FY16l17WEST MARIN WATER
Year over Year Comparison
Operating Revenue
Operating Expense
Other lncome / (Expense)

Net lncome / (Loss)

Active Accounts
Consumption (MG)
Average Commodity Rate i 1,000 gal (net)

lncomei (Loss) i Active Account
lncome / (Loss) / 1,000 Gal
Connection Fee Revenue
Developer'l n-Kind' Contributions

Sep-17
Actual

$1 12,515
67,602

$290,625
193,663

(3,2e6)

$245,446
176,476

(4,840)

______i91¡?9_
781
19.9

$1 0.1 6

$82.1 1

$3,22
$8,000

$0

FY18 vs 17

Up/(Down)
1B%

10%
(32%)
46%

0%
16%
5%

460/o

26%
(100%)

FY17l',lB
ActualYTD Actual YTD

'1,066

$43,848 $93,666
781

23.1

$10.68
$119.93

$4.05
$0
$o

781
9.0

$10.94
$56.14

$4.87
$o
$0

Consumption for the fiscal year-to-date was 23.1 MG, 16% more than prior year same period. Operating
revenue of $290,625 was $45,180 (1S%) more than last year due to the consumption increase and the
5o/o rale increase effective July 1 , 2017 .

Operating expenditures were $193,663, l0% more than the previous year same period. The expenditure
increase is due primarily to the unanticipated rehab of the Gallagher Well. The fiscal year-to-date net

income of 993,666 compares to a budgeted annual net income of $138,000 and to a net income of

$64,129 for the prior year same period. $27,085 (4%) of the Capital lmprovement Project Budget was
expended this fiscal year-to-date, and no connection fees were collected ($23,000 is budgeted). The
West Marin Water cash balance increased $34,825 in September, and stood at$1,322,969 at month end,

compared to a budgeted projection of $942,000 at June 30, 2018

OCEANA MARIN SEWER
Year over Year Comparison
Operating Revenue
Operating Expense
Other lncome / (Expense)

Net lncome / (Loss)

Active Accounts
Monthly Sewer Service Charge
lncome / (Loss) / Active Account
Connection Fee Revenue

Sep-17
Actual

FY17t18
ActualYTD

$59,898
38,820

FY16t17
ActualYTD

FY18 vs 17

Up/(Down)
11%

(15o/o)

11o/o

128%

0%
10%

$19,866
13,797

522 2 341

$53,820
45,672
2,107

$6 591

231
$86

$28.53
$0

$23,419
231

$86
$101 .38

$0

___$1!¿9!_
230
$78

$44.59
$0

Operating revenue of $59,898 was 11o/o more than the previous year same period due to the 10% rate

increase effective July 1,2017 and an additional account. Operating expenditures were 15% ($6,852)

less than the previous year same period. The fiscal year{o-date net income of $23,419 compares to a
budgeted annual income of $49,000 and to a net income of $10,255 for the prior year same period. 5%

of the Capital lmprovement Project Budget has been expended this fiscal year-to-date.

No connection fees have been collected ($30,000 is budgeted). The Oceana Marin cash balance
decreased $13,436 in September, and stood at $384,925 at month end, compared to a budgeted
projection of $342,000 at June 30, 2018.

3



NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

FOR THE PERIOD ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2017

ASSETS
Cash & lnvestments
U n restricted/U ndesignated Cash
Restricted Cash (t'.lote t)
Connection Fee Fund
Wohler Pipeline Financing Fund
Collector #6 Financing Fund
Revenue Bond Redemption Fund
Bank of Marin Project Fund
Deer lsland RWF Replacement Fund
Capital Replacement & Expansion Fund
Tax Receipts Held in Marin Co Treasury
STP SRF Loan Fund-Marin Co Treasury
RWS North/South SRF Payment Fund
RW CentralArea SRF Payment Fund
Designated Cash lttote z¡

Liability Contingency Fund
Self-lnsured Workers' Compensation Fund
Retiree Medical Benefits Fund
Maintenance Accrual Fund
Conservation lncentive Rate Fund
Operating Reserve Fund

Total Cash
Gain/(Loss) on MV of lnvestments

Market Value of Cash & lnvestments

Current Assets
Net Receivables - Consumers
Accrued Water Sales
Accou nts Receivable-Other
RWS Central Expansion SRF Loan Rec
RWS Central Expansion Grant Rec
Prepaid Expense
Reimbursable Small Jobs
lnterest Receivable
lnventories
Deposits Receivable

NOVATO
WATER

NOVATO
RECYCLED

WEST MARIN
WATER

$1,323,015
ar

$10,094
180,770

0

0

0

11,400
5,413

0
0
tt

OCEANA
MARIN
SEWERTOTAL

9577,932

$93,345
409,424

1,609,749
30,000

632,478
0

0
515

844,171
614,299
255,373

922,285
617,783

3,968,114
1,670,702

147,081
240 000

912,633,249
(16,604)

$2,388,362
2,513,424

439,083
682,393

2,461,278
533,695

99,8'12
36,211

530,670
35 800

($os¡

$0
409,424

1,609,749
0

35,482

823,400
590,273

3,968,114
1,670,702

104,369
0

10,055,6r 9
(16,604)

92,221,340
2,137,155

63,067
0

0

522,059
91,164
33,244

530,670
2Ã 800

614,299
255,373

$97,330
195,498
'180,765

682,393
2,461,278

U

0
2,967

0

0

0

0

508
0
n

0

$0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0

171

0

$0 $266,019 $31 1,977

$93,345

0

30,000
596,996

$0
0

0
0

U

0
ô

7

0
U

0

0

959
0

0
tl

000

b

844,

s 0
0
0
0
tt

0

98,885
20,551

0

0

42,712
174 000 bb

o869$ 72
0

$384,943
0

$12,616,645 $10,039,014 $869,672 $'1,323,015 $384,943

$59,598
0

195,250
0

0

¿óo
3,235

0
0

0

$5,634,514 $3,620,230 $207 ,678 $258,319Total Current Assets 99,720,742

t:\accountants\financials\stmtfyv\Tinfyxx.xls'10/18/2017 12:55 PN4



NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF NIET POSITION

FOR THE PERIOD ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 20'17

Loans Receivable
Employee Loans (Note 3)

Due From Other Funds (Note 9)

Other Long Term Receivables lNote +¡

Loans Receivable

Property and Plant

Land & Land Rights
Dam, Lake, & Source Facilities
Treatment Facilities
Storage Facilities
Transmission Facilities (16"+¡

Distribution and Pumping Facilities
Sewer Mains, Pumps, & Laterals

Sub-Total
Less Accumulated Depreciation (Note 5)

Net Property and Plant

Buildings and Equipment 1ruoteo¡

Buildings
Office Equipment
Laboratory Equipment
Trucks & Automobiles
Construction Equipment
Tools, Shop Equipment
Sub-Total
Less Accumulated Depreciation (t'tote s¡

Net Buildings and Equipment

Construction ln Proqress
Developer
District

Total Construction in Progress
Net Utility Plant

Deferred Outflow of Resources
TOTAL ASSETS

$0
0

17

$0
0
0

$o
0
0

TOTAL

$934,200
2,283,299

302 617

$4,520,'116

$1,473,091
5,596,066

21,184,413
20,903,086
28,896,399
83,861,355

1,193,077

$163,1 07 ,487
(51,060.643)

NOVATO
WATER

$934,200
2,283,299

0

$1,368,872
5,103,654

17,603,974
18,278,500
28,774,076
60,755,188

0

$131,884,263
(43,558,079)

NOVATO
RECYCLED

$0
n

2,666,'l98
519,014

0
17,301,278

0

$20,486,489
(2,927,015)

WEST MARIN
WATER

$0

$103,41 1

492,412
319,9'13

2,105,572
122,324

5,804,890
U

88,948,522
(3,596,086)

OCEANA
MARIN
SEWER

$0

$808
0

594,328
U

0
0

1.193,077

91,788,214
(979,463)

1 1,302
217 ,499 $1,302,617

(¡
$112,046,844 $88,326,184 917,559,474 $5,352,435 $808,750

$1,902,893
697,537
317,047

1,232,465
843,914
224 977

$5,218,832
(3,999,956)

$15,657,497
9128,923,217

$2,931,86'l
$158,712,581

$1,e02,893
697,537
317,047

1,232,465
843,914
224,977

$5,218,832
(3,999.956)

$2,575,078
$92,1 20,1 38

$2,931,861
$1 13,943,026

$0

$13,357
12,642.429

$ 1 2,655,785
$30,215,260

$0
$36,007,778

$o

$o
315 766

$315,766
$5,668,202

$0
$7,198,895

$0
0

$4,402
'106 466

$1 10,868

$919,618
$0

$1,562,881

$0
0
0

0
tt

0

$0
0
0
U

0
0

$0
0
0

0

0

0

$0
0

$1,218,876 $1 ,218,876

$336,567 $318,808
2,256,2701ç.

IJ 320 931

$0$0

t:\accountants\financials\stmtfyxx\finfyxx.xlsl0/18/201 7 1 2:55 P[¡



NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

FOR THE PERIOD ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2017

o)

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
Current Liabilities
Trade Accounts Payable
Reimbursement Prog. Unclaimed Funds
Bond Debt Principal Payable-Current
Loan Debt Principal Payable-Current
Bank of Marin Principal Payable-Current
Bond/Loan Debt lnterest Payable-Current
Accrued lnterest Payable-SRF Loan
Deposits/Performance Bonds
Unemployment lnsurance Reserve (Note B)

Workers' Comp Future Claims Payable
Payroll Benefits (Note e)

Due To Other Funds (Note 1o)

Deferred Revenue
Total Current Liabilities

Restricted Liabil ities
Construction Advances

Total Restricted Liabilities
Long Term Liablilities (Note 7)

Bonds Outstanding - PR6 (FmHA)
Bonds Outstanding - PREl (FmHA)

STP Rehab SRF Loan
RWF SRF Loan
RWS North/South Expansion SRF Loan
RWS Central Expansion SRF Loan
Bank of Marin Loan
Net Pension Liability @6130116 (Note 17)

Retiree Health Benefits Payable (Note 2)

Total Long Term Liabilities
Deferred lnflow of Resources

TOTAL LIABILITIES
Net Assets
NV n

Contributions in Aid of Construction
Grants in Aid of Construction
Connection Fees

Total lnvestment

$0
1,950

33,000
0

44,409
1,975

0
20,212

0
5,171

JO, tJ0
0

0

$1,414
0
U

U

0

U

n

3,000
0

1,724
12,046

0

TOTAL

$2,139,532
(1e,e33)
33,000

1,361,440
346,944

4 07Ã

161,132
217,051

26,778
156,694
916,3'13

2,283,299
178 794

$7,803,021

$329 470
9,470

$35,000
26,000

10,050,647
2,189,287
7 ,551,587
4,615,767
5,824,884

11,040,789
1,224,557

655 355

$81,744,374
13,239,197
32,860,256--smw

NOVATO
WATER

$1,555,494
(21,883)

U

790,074
302,536

0
65,306

193,840
26,778

145,725
839,657

0

0

$3,897,526

$317,905

$o
0

'10,050,647

0
0
0

5,079,299
11,040,789
1,224,557

$74,808,727
396,477

24,367,802

NOVATO
RECYCLED

$582,624
0
0

571,367
0

0
95,826

0

0
4,074

28,472
2,283,299

0

$3,565,663

$10,000

54.117,788
10,015,532
6.647,215

Tm-reoF3r

WEST MARIN
WATER

OCEANA
MARIN
SEWER

$679,511
0

550,763
---íT:no=ñ7f7

$317,905 $10,000

178 794
9142,854 $196,977

$0 $1,565
$0 $1,565

$0
0

0
2,189,287
7,551,587
4,615,767

0
tt

0

$35,000
26,000

0
0

0
U

745,585
0

0

$0
0
U

U

0
0
0

0
n

$42,558,517 $27 ,395,292 $14 356,640 $806,585
0655 355 U

$51,346,363 $32,266,079 $17.932,303 $949,440 $198,542

$0
0

$2,138,348
2,827,187
1,294,476

$6,260,011$99,573,006
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TOTAL
NOVATO
WATER

Restricted Reserves
Connection Fee Fund (85,349,144) ($5,404,695)
Wohler Pipeline Financing Fund 409,424 409,424
Collector #6 Financing Fund '1,609,749 1,609,749
Revenue Bond Redemption Fund 30,000 0

Bank of Marin Project Fund 632,478 35,482
Deer lsland RWF Replacement Fund 1,250,789 0

Capital Replacement & Expansion Fund 1 ,198,480 0

RWS North/South SRF Payment Fund 614,299 0
RW CentralArea SRF Payment Fund 255,373 0
Designated Reserves
Liability Contingency Fund 922,285 823,400
Maintenance Accrual Fund 4,340,681 4,340,681
Self-lnsured Workers'Compensation Fund 471,932 444,705
Retiree Medical Benefits Fund 2,743,557 2,743,557
Conservation lncentive Rate Fund 147,081 104,369
Operating Reserve Fund 240,000 0

Earned Surplus - Prior Yrs (33,038,424) (25,824,067)
Net lncome/(Loss) 1,843,328 1,662,720
Prior Period Adjustment 0 0
Transfer (To)/From Reserves (see betow) 1,200,505 1,158,617

Total Restricted & Designated --ßZTnTffÐ remF-sEI
TOTAL NET POSITION $107,366,218 $81 ,676,e48

Transfer (To)/From Reserves

NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

FOR THE PERIOD ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2017

NOVATO
RECYCLED

1,250,789
1 ,198,480

614,299
255,373

0

0

7,082
0
0
0

(6,067,860)
63,458

0
(26,680)

$93,345
0
0

30,000
596,996

0
0
n

il

98,885
tt

'14,910

0
42,712

174,000
(1,228,763)

93,712
0

73,649-----l$ro-,5Ð
$6,249,456

$0
0
0
n

U

WEST MARIN
WATER

OCEANA
MARIN
SEWER

n

0
5,235

0
0

66,000
82,266
23,438

0
(5,080)

$134,065
$1,364,339

($37,7e4)
0

0

0

0

0
U

0
0

{

($2,70s,060)
$18,075,475

Connection Fee
Maintenance Reserve
RWF Replacement Fund
Capital Replacement & Expansìon Fund
Retiree Medical lnsurance Fund
(Gain)/Loss Self-lnsured WC Fund
Bank of Marin Project Fund
RW North/South SRF Loan Payment Fund
RW Central Area SRF Loan Payment Fund
Conservation lncentive Rate Fund
Operating Reserve Fund

Total Transfer

1,223,387
(25,000)
(28,750)

0
(14 063)
83,666
65,968

0

0
(104,s69)

(33s)

1,223,734
(25,000)

0
0

(14,063)
77,658

658
0
0

(104,36e)

0 (347) 0
000

(28,750) o 0
000
000

2,070 3,018 920
0 65,310 0

000
000
000
0 5,667 (6,000)

-------F¿:eeq 

-$T 

d64s- ---l$5,T80)-0

-s1:T5q6T-

$1,200,505
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NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT
SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS STATEMENT - ALL SERVIGE AREAS COMBINED

FOR THE PERIOD ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2017

YTD
Actual

Annual
Budqet

YTD/
Budget %

Prior YTD
Actual

Wheeling & Misc Service Charges 102 051

TOTALOPERATINGREVENUE $7,208,486 $19,692,000

OPERATI NG EXPENDITU RES

OPERATING REVENUE
Water Sales
Bimonthly Service Charge
Sewer Service Charge

Source of Supply
Pumping
Operations
Water Treatment
Sewer Service
Transmission & Distribution
Consumer Accounting
Water Conservation
General & Administrative
Depreciation

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENDITURES

NET OPERATTNG INCOME (LOSS)

NON-OPERATING REVENU EXPENS
Tax Proceeds
lnterest Revenue
Miscellaneous Revenue
Bond & Loan lnterest Expense
Miscellaneous Expense

TOTAL NON-OP REVENUE/(EXPENSE)

NETTNCOME/(LOSS) $1,843,328

OTHER SOURCE USES OF FUNDS

$267,000 690% $943,749

$1,656,003
147,130
211,509
836,932
22]66

773,754
'152,606

6'1,882
566,761

$5,065,000
401,000
810,000

2,340,000
'143,000

3,260,000
677,000
450,000

2,408,000
3,526,000

41%
24%
25%
28%
37%

33%
37%
26%
36%
16%
24%
23%
14%
24%
24%
28o/o

313%

1%
44%
49%
29%
2%

22Yo

24%
85%
33To

12Yo

$5,962,051
1,084,787

59,598

$14,532,000
4,562,000

239,000
359,000

$4,955,333
1 ,1 20,906

53,820
84,366

$6,214,425

$2,019,164
115,544
218,098
596,116

27,787
732,432
'150,050

79,712
393,658
859 464

$5,192,026

$1,022,399

$61 7
37,527
79,900

(1e5,759)
(e36)

($78,650)

$859,464
209,1 85

0

42,047
8,766

34,842
245,000

0
(401,635)
(254,100)

(1,084,592)

861 732

95,290,474

$1,918,012

$708
70,347
67,046

(212,3e7)
(388)

$19,080,000

$612,000

$109,000
161,000
137,000

(732,000)
(20,000)

($74,684) ($345,000)

Add Depreciation Expense
Connection Fees
Loan Proceeds
Grant Proceeds
Caltrans AEEP Capital Contribution
StoneTree RWF Loan Principal
MMWD AEEP Capital Contribution
Capital Equipment Expenditures
Capital lmprovement Projects
Bond & Loan Principal Payments
Change in Working Capital

TOTAL OTHER SOURCES/(USES) $678,465 ($833,000)

$861,732
709,200

2,033,836
636,756

735
35,686

245,000
Û

(1,187,e65)
(250,851)

(2,405,665)

$3,526,000
833,000

6,200,000
5,333,000

0

217,000
245,000

(210,000)
(17,745,000)

(1,802,000)
2,570,000

16%
100%
0%
7%
14%
-94%

cASHTNCREASE/(DECREASEI $2,521,792

($341,023)

----Tf-fu7?€_

I
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NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT
INCOME STATEMENT AND CASH FLOW BY SERVICE AREA

FOR THE PERIOD ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2017

SUMMARY INCOME STATEMENT

Operating Revenue
Operating Expense
oPERATTNG TNCOME(LOSS)
Non-Operating Revenue/(Expense)

NET TNCOME(LOSS)

$7,208,486 $6,443,835 $414,128
791 140 266,916

TOTAL
NOVATO
WATER

NOVATO
RECYCLED

WEST MARIN
WATER

OCEANA
MARIN
SEWER

5,290 474 4
$290,625

193,617
$59,898

38,801

$1,918,012
(74,684)

$1,652,695 9147,211
10.025 (83,753)

$e7,008 $21,097
2,341(3,296)

$1,843,328 81,662/20 $63,458 s93,712 $23,438

CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS
RW CentralArea Expansion Grant
Developer I n-Kind Contributions
Caltrans AEEP Capital Contributions
MMWD Capital Contribution
Connection Fees
FRC Transfer

CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS

CHANGE IN NET POSITION

Net Position June 30, 2017
Net Position September 30,2017 $81,677,110 $18,075,475 $6,249,456 $1,364,177

$598,9'19
19,227

735
245,000
709,200

0

$0
'19,046

735
245,000
709,200

(266,435)

$598,919
180

0
0
0

266.435

$o
0
0
0

0
0

$0
0
0
0
0
0

$'1,6'10,918

$3,454,246
103,911,972

$745,384

$2,408,104
79,269,006

$865,534

$928,992
17,146,483

$0

$93,712
6,155,744

$0

$23,438
1,340,740

$107,366,218

CASH FLOW STATEMENT

Net lncome/(Loss)
Add Depreciation
Cash Generated From Operations

Other Sources (Uses ) of Funds
Connection Fee Revenue
Loan Proceeds
Grant Proceeds
Capital Assets Acquisition
Caltrans AEEP Capital Contribution
StoneTree RWF Loan Principal Pmts
MMWD AEEP Capital Contribution
Principal Paid on Debt
Consumer Receivables Decr (lncr)
Construction Advances (Decr) lncr
Other Assets Decr (lncr)
Other Liabilities (Decr) lncr
Trade Accounts Payable (Decr) lncr
Connection Fee Transfer
lnterdistrict Loan Due To (From)
Total Other Sources (Uses)

Net Cash Provided (Used)

MV Cash & lnvestments June 30,20'17
MV Cash & lnvestments Sept 30,2017

861 732 I 423

$2,705,060 $2,348,189 $182,063 s141,947 $32,860

$1,843,328 $1,662,720
685,469

$63,458
1 18,605

993,712
48,235

$23,438

$0
0
0

(9,519)
0
0
0
0

(57,554)
0

(183,397)
178,373

0
U

0

$709,200
2,033,836

636,756
(1 ,187,965)

735
35,686

245,000
(250,851)

(1,365,767)
93,549
63,388

184,717
(1 ,381 ,551)

0
0

$709,200
0

c / ,ÕJo
(227,344)

735
0

245,000
(91,759)

(1,202,282)
93,549

(621,253)
(247,363)

(1,510,856)
(266,435)

3,273,809

$0
2,033,836

598,919
(e24,016)

o

35,686
0

(146,254)
(33,080)

o

871,402
259,513
129,305
266,435

$o
0
0

(27,085)
0
0
0

(12,838)
(72,851)

0
(3,364)
(5,806)

0
0
0(3,273 ,809)

10 094 852 7 497 987

($ 1 82,063)

$0

869,672

($183,267) $1e2,838

$2,521,793 $2,541,027

($121,944) ($72,oe8)

$20,003 ($3e,238)

1 303 012 424,181

___qgq,e1!___q_?, 6_19, 6$___qrp99p1l_ ___$999, 6Z?_ $1,323,015
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NOVATO WATER
DETAIL INCOME STATEMENT

FOR THE PERIOD ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2017
SEPTEMBER YEARTO DATE YTD/

2017 ACTUAL BUDGET%
PRIOR YTD

ACTUAL

OPERATING REVENUE
Water Sales
BillAdjustments
Bimonthly Service Charges
Accou nt Turn-on Charges
New Account Charges
Returned Check Charges
Hydrant Meter Up/Down Charges
Backflow Service Charges
Lab Service-Outside Clients
Wheeling Charges - MMWD
Regulation'1 5 Forfeiture

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE

TOTAL EXPENDITURES
SOURCE OF SUPPLY
Supervision & Engineering
Operating Expense - Source
Maint/Monitoring of Dam
Maint of Lake & lntakes
Maint of Structures
Maint of Watershed
Water Quality Surveillance
Erosion Control
Purchased Water

SOURCE OF SUPPLY $542,677
PUMPING

$1,858,676
(5,688)

344,743
7,735

900
81

800
12,131

1,253
10,489

0
s2,231,120 $6,443,835

$5,330,467
(21,410)

1,034,230
23,840
2,165

297
2160

35,350
9,1 08

27,628
0

41%
-25%
24%
33%
31o/o

30o/o

2160/0

25%
36%
30%
o%
36%

$4,426,351
(32,087)

1,071,282
19,340
2,280

682
500

33,797
7,529

1 9,1 50
0

$431
28

652
0
0

2,304
563

0

$2,299
468

12,455
452

0

4,095
2,306

0

524 301

$1,546,377

$o
5,460
9,449

'105,996

$o
652

2,560
36,243

11%
s%
20%
3o/o

8o/o

9%

33%
32o/o

0%
20%
14%
42%

35%

35%
24o/o

21o/o

24%
25%
26%

$0
8,276
2,440

92,669

$5,548,824

$2,727
2,748

16,913
1,027

0
15,206

97
JÖZ

538 699 1 870 181

$1,909,281

Supervision & Engineering
Operating Expense - Operations
Maintenance Expense
Telemetry Equipment/Controls Maint
Leased Lines

Operating Expense - Pumping
Maint of Structures & Grounds
Maint of Pumping Equipment
Electric Power

OPERATIONS
$103,385

$64,033
78,126
10,907
23,665

4 622

$181 ,352

PUMPTNG $39,455 $120,905

$59,313
85,230
12,000
22,227

270

oPERATTONS $55,378 $183,040

$15,605
28,934
2,974
6,428
1,438 4
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NOVATO WATER
DETAIL INCOME STATEMENT

FOR THE PERIOD ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2017
SEPTEMBER YEAR TO DATE YTD/

2017 ACTUAL BUDGET%
PRIOR YTD

ACTUAL

WATER TREATMENT
Supervision & Engineering
Operating Expense - Water Treatment
Pu rification Chemicals
Sludge Disposal
Maint of Structures & Grounds
Maint of Purification Equipment
Electric Power
Water Quality Programs
Laboratory Direct Labor
Lab Service-Outside Clients
Water Quality Supervision
Laboratory Supplies & Expense
Customer Water Quality
Lab Cost Distributed

WATER TREATMENT
TRANSMISSION & DISTRIBUTION
Supervision & Engineering
Maps & Records
Operation of T&D System
Facilities Location
Safety: Construction & Engineering
Customer Service Expense
Flushing
Storage Facilities Expense
Cathodic Protection
Maint of Valves/Regulators
Maint of Mains
Leak Detection - Mains
Backflow Prevention Program
Maint of Copper Services
Maint of PB Service Lines
Single Service lnstallations
Maint of Meters
Detector Check Assembly Maint
Maint of Hydrants

TRANSMISSION & DISTRIBUTION
CONSUMER ACCOUNTING
Meter Reading
Collection Expense - Labor
Collection Expense - Agency
Billing & Consumer Accounting
Contract Billing
Stationery, Supplies & Postage
Credit Card Fees
Lock Box Service
U ncollectable Accounts
Office Equipment Expense
Distribuied to West \Aarin (4.1%)

CONSUMER ACCOUNTING

$190,950 5777 ,723

$9,965
46,8'13
51,789
11,502

1,731
6,824

12,123
10,362
24,799

4,251
6,280
4,343
3,703

(3,535)

$29,875
131,908
302,323
23,060

5,556
40,822
67,762
31,644
86,857
15,492
21,485
16,161
13,177
(8,3e9)

28%
36%
71o/o

23%
7%
23%
49%
30o/o

22%
22%
27o/o

19%
19o/o

34o/o

36%

28o/o

25%
160/0

36%
lOo/o

27%
o%
23%
12%
27%
54%
24%
12o/o

17%
27%

$34,451
125,412
82,102
3'1,886
14,498
34,030
40,042
31,262

102,640
12,412
24,824
20,361
13,939
(7,457)

$52,143
9,795
7,308

11,434
2,495

18,219
91

2,139
0

3,200
27,256

286
12,011

8,1 05
57,423

3,917
4,079

17,196
3,448

$167,543
41,960
31,176
35,320
6,500

53,483
91

33,667
3,1 53

57,900
66,594

1,645
35,692
30,599

120,311
7,974

21,520
17,205
11 197

$560,401

$139,954
43,464
25,792
39,981

5,747
37,728
2,000

29,410
3,539

38,836
36,987

1,956
40,257
47,B9B

161,134
1,766

16,947
12,121
I 828

$694,346

$38,297
6,336

927
68,811
4,357

14,684
7,353
2,736
1,552
'1,390

(4,104)

$240,547 $743,530

20%
26%
15o/o

24%

17%
20o/o

160/o

25%
21%
23%
39%
25%
23%
42o/o

28%
23%

912,263
2,303

215
17,733
1,046
3,429
1 ,718

912
(22e)
860

(1,072)

$34,593
7,755

475
67,526

3,864
tz,öÕo
11,987
2,736
3,1 95
6,235

(4,407)

$39,178 $146,845 $ 142,339
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NOVATO WATER
DETAIL INCOME STATEMENT

FOR THE PERIOD ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2017
SEPTEMBER YEAR TO DATE YTD/

2017 ACTUAL BUDGET%

PRIOR YTD
ACTUAL

WATER CONSERVATION
Residential
Commercial
Public Outreach/l nformation
Large Landscape

TOTAL WATER CONSERVATION

GEN ERAL AND ADM INISTRATIVE
Directors Fees
Legal Fees
Human Resources
Auditing Fees
Consulting Services/Studies
General Office Salaries
Safety: General District Wide
Office Supplies
Employee Events
Other Administrative Expense
Dues & Subscriptions
Vehicle Expense
Meetings, Conferences & Training
Recruitment Expense
Gas & Electricity
Telephone
Water
Buildings & Grounds Maint
Office Equipment Expense
lnsurance Premiums & Claims
Retiree Medical Benefits
(Gain)/Loss on Overhead Charges
G&A Applied to Other Operations (5.9%)
G&A Applied to Construction

GENERAL & ADMINISTRATIVE

Depreciation (Note 5)

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSE

$20,243 $60,522

$17,014
218
327

2,684

$49,491
1,090
1,409

14%
6%
4%
32%

14%

19%
3Bo/o

26%
90%
1o/o

27%
15%
15%
19o/o

19%
49%
25%
11o/o

22%
30o/o

24%
13%
22%
31%
19%
23o/o

-135%
23%
22%

24%

$67,910
647

1,900

$2,365
(727)

2,503
9,1 00
1,860

115,438
2,461

140
480
979

16,583
676

9,083
75

5,235
503

0
3,564
6,424
7,364

13,008
129,945
(15,457)

$7,804
6,494
7,'158

15,300
4,925

347,202
9,850
6,854
2,241
3,300

33,639
2,028

26,437
659

11,524
1,885

259
12,276
Jb,co /
22,091
39,250
52,584

(39,556)
(84,03e)

Õ 532 6 524

$76,980

$18,393
4,257
9,634

16,'100
2,428

344,266
7,001
4,634

316
2,889

18,848
2,028

43,850
326

11,470
2,160

380
11,772
38,859
24,279
40,041

(131 ,BB1)
(32,937)

30,715) (7e ,646)

$280,885

228,774

$1,638,086

$526,729

685,469
$4,791,140

24%
28%

$359,466

681,495

$4,709,047

oPERATING INCOME/(LOSS) $5e3,034 $1,652,6es 317% $839,776
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NOVATO WATER
DETAIL INCOME STATEMENT

FOR THE PERIOD ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2017
SEPTEMBER YEAR TO DATE YTD/

2017 ACTUAL BUDGET%
PRIOR YTD

ACTUAL

NON-OPERATING REVENUE
lnterest:
General Funds
Wohler Pipeline Financing Fund
Collector #6 Financing Fund
Retiree Medical lnsurance Fund
Self-lnsured Workers' Comp Fund
Aqueduct Energy Efficiency Proj Fund
Funds Held in County Treasury
Recycled Water Advance (Note 1o)

Total lnterest Revenue
Rents & Leases
Other Non-Operating Revenue
Gain/(Loss) on MV of lnvestments

NON-OPERATING REVENUE

NON-OPERATING EXPENSE
Bank of Marin AEEP Loan lnterest Exp
STP SRF Loan lnterest Expense
Drought Loan lnterest Expense
Other Non-Operating Expense

NON-OPERATING EXPENSE

NET TNCOME/(LOSS)

BEGINNING FUND EQUITY
NET TNCOME/(LOSS)
CONTRIBUTED CAPITAL
SCWA 84 Water Conservation Grant
Developer'ln-Kind' Contributions
Caltrans AEEP Capital Contribution
MMWD AEEP Capital Contribution
Connection Fees
FRC Transfer to Recycled Water
Prior Period Adjustment (Note 12)

ENDING FUND EQUITY

$24,445 $122,148

$o
530

2,083
5,125

BB9
46

0

$0
1,461
5,745

14,063
2,475

128
1,082

Oo/o

37%
38%
37%
35o/o

$0
'1,319

5,1 88
12,090
2,022

127
802

0

$17,858
4,938
6,1 36

(4,487)

$55,603
48,294
'16,486

1,765

I 185 30 647
14o/o

56o/o

58%
33%

52%

24o/o

25%
o%
2%

24o/o

588%

100%
91o/o

15%

fi21,547
32,207
48,896
(1,703)

$15,406
21,295

0
167

$46,430
65,306

n

3BB

$100,947

$48,917
72,209

218
663

$36,869

$580,610

580,610

35,098
6,832

8112,124

$1,662,720

$122,008

$818,716

$79,268,844
1,662,720

$79,479,151
818,716

0
'10'1,889

8,766
245,000
201,185

(242,225)
(247,077)

0
0
0

(122,720)
0

37,838
r 9,046

-71 tr

245,000
709,200

(266,435)
0

$81,676,948

-

$80,365,405
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NOVATO RECYCLED WATER
DETAIL INCOME STATEMENT

FOR THE PERIOD ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2017
SEPTEMBER YEARTO DATE YTD/

2017 ACTUAL BUDGET%
PRIOR YTD

ACTUAL

OPERATING REVENUE
Recycled Water Sales
Bimonthly Service Charges
Water Loads
Account Turn-on Charges
Returned Check Charges

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE

OPERATING EXPENSE

SOURCE OF SUPPLY
Purchased Water - NSD
Purchased Water - LGVSD

SOURCE OF SUPPLY
PUMPING
Maint of Siructures & Grounds
Electric Power

PUMPING
OPERATIONS
Supervision & Engineering
Operating Expense - Operations
Potable Water Consumed
Maintenance Expense
Telemetry EquipmentiControls Maint

OPERATIONS
WATER TREATMENT
Purification Chemicals
Maint of Purification Equipment
Electric Power
Laboratory Direct Labor
Lab Expense Distributed from Novato

WATER TREATMENT
TRANSMISSION & DISTRIBUTION
Supervision & Engineering
Maps & Records
Operation of T&D System
Facilities Location
Cathodic Protection
Customer Service Expense
Storage Facilities Expense
Maint of Valves/Regulators
Maint of Meters
Maint of Mains

TRANSMISSION & DISTRIBUTION

$107,479 $414,128 45%

$18,341

$104,621
2,948

(e0)
0
0

$404,879
8,364

885
0
0

10 905
$66,314

34,124

46%
25%

43%
54%

46%

2%
Oo/o

0%

$358,893
7,430

0
12

0

$366,335

$67,462
33,282

$29,246 $100,437

$400 sl,207

0%
40o/o

30%

26%
19%
36%
117%
21%
31o/o

21%
97%
0%
15%
20%
460/0

$100,743

253
$1,253

$0
400

$0
1,207

$0

$656
1,191

0
2,380

606 2 680

$3,063
3,903
3,949
5,837

$4,218
5,861

424
2,533
5,832

$4,834 $19,432 $18,868

$809
906

0
1,034

642

$842
654

0
510
328

9842
8,703

0
923
593

$2,334 $11,061

$369
0
0

112
0
ô

26
357
717
B87

$0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0

0

0%
0%
0%
36%
72%

$3,391

$2,821
72

0

0
0

541
2,060

22
0

7

$2,468 4% $5,522

14

$o
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NOVATO RECYCLED WATER
DETAIL INCOME STATEMENT

FOR THE PERIOD ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2017
SEPTEMBER YEAR TO DATE YTD/

2017 ACTUAL BUDGET%

9214 21%
21%

PRIOR YTD
ACTUAL

CONSUMER ACCOUNTING
Distributed from Novato (0.2%)

CONSUMER ACCOUNTING
GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE
Distributed from Novato (2.4o/o)

GENERAL & ADMINISTRATIVE

Depreciatiolt (Note s)

TOTAL OPERAT¡NG EXPENSE

oPERATING TNCOME/(LOSS)

NON-OPERATING REVENUE
lnterest:
General Funds
RWF Replacement Fund
Capital Repl & Exp Fund
Self-lnsured Workers' Comp Fund
StoneTree RWF Loan

Total lnterest Revenue
Other Non-Operating Revenue

NON-OPERATING REVENUE

NON-OPERATING EXPENSE
RWF SRF Loan lnterest Expense
Expansion SRF Loan lnterest Expense
Other Non-Operating Expense
lnterest-Advance from Novato (Note 1o)

NON-OPERATING EXPENSE

NET TNGOME/(LOSS)

BEGINNING FUND EQUITY
NET TNCOME/(LOSS)
Developer'ln-Kind' Contributions
FRC Transfer from Novato
RW CentralArea Expansion Grant

ENDING FUND EQUITY

$52 $1 97

$5,272

39,477
$81,614

$13,492

1 18,605
$266,916

$sz

$s,272

$214

$13,492

$1 97

$11 986
$12,709

'1 18,003
$260,685

23%
23%

25o/o

29%

3680%

Oo/o

27o/o

21%

25o/o

25o/o

37%

(32%)

15%
11%

$25,865 $147,211 $105,65'1

$0
0
0
0

9672

o{,

9,04

$9,043 21%

$o
694

96
39

10,31 1

$11,140
0

$11,140

$15,840
50,045

111
0

$65,996

$50,794

$16,993,634
50,794

0
242,225
42,047

$17,328,700

0
0
0

')J

$2,967
0

$9,043
0

$2,967

$4,750
15,818

0

$14,566
47,582

0

I 185 30 647
$29,754

($e22)

$92,796

$63,458

$17,146,483
63,458

'180

266,435
598,9'19

$18,075,475

(e22)
0

122,720
331,538
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WEST MARIN WATER
DETAIL INCOME STATEMENT

FOR THE PERIOD END¡NG SEPTEMBER 30, 2017

SEPTEMBER
2017

YEAR TO DATE

ACTUAL
YTD/

BUDGET%

PRIOR YTD
ACTUAL

OPERATING REVENUE
Water Sales
BillAdjustments
Bimonthly Service Charges
Account Turn-on Charges
New Account Charges
Returned Check Charges
Backflow Service Charges

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE

OPERATING EXPENSE

SOURCE OF SUPPLY
Supervision & Engineering
Operating Expense
Maint of Structures
Water Quality Surveillance

SOURCE OF SUPPLY

PUMPING
Maint of Structures and Grounds
Maint of Pumping Equip
Electric Power

$1 12,515 $290,625

9424 $424
565

8,200
0

$98,671
(220)

14,065
0

0

0
0

$255,080
(7,850)
42,194

144
40
I

'1,009

40o/o

24%
14%
4%

20%

36%

5%
176%
25%
56%

40%
10%

10%
20%
17%

$211,525
(e,350)
42,194

70
30
51

926

1 59
0
0

9%
103%
0%
61%

$245,446

$44
910

7,925
261

$583

$z
15,862
2,893

$9,1 89

$383
'17,588

7,047

$9,140

$2,293
127

8 341

PUMPING $18,762 $25,018 $10,761

OPERATIONS
Supervision & Engineering
Operating Expense
Maint of Telemetry Lines
Maint of Telemetry Equipment
Leased Lines

OPERATIONS

WATER TREATMENT
Supervision & Engineering
Operating Expense
Purification Chemicals
Maint of Structures & Grounds
Maint of Purification Equipment
Electric Power
Laboratory Direct Labor
Laboratory Services
Water Quality Supervision
Customer Water Quality
Lab Expense Distributed from Novato

WATER TREATMENT

$1,747
493

0
'1,356

394

$3,985
1,659

0
2,200
1,191

$3,50r
3,509

163
9,557

148
990

$424
989

1,297
0

0

3,487
4,195

0

228
575

2,696

$9,036

$1 ,1 87
9,232
3,281

242
3,227
9,670

11,350
BBO

570
1,215
7,295

17%
44%
66%
24%
13%
46%
34%
22%
7%
30%
a oo/JO /O

JJ 70

$17,878

$1,062
3,436
2,940

0

1,301

5,797
9,776

560
0

'1,380

6 071

$13,891 $48,1 48 $32,324
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WEST MARIN WATER
DETAIL INCOME STATEMENT

FOR THE PERIOD ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2017

SEPTEMBER
2017

YEAR TO DATE

ACTUAL
YTD/

BUDGET%

PRIOR YTD

ACTUAL

TRANSMISSION & DISTRIBUTION
Supervision & Engineering
Maps & Records
Facilities Location - USA
Customer Service Expense
Flushing
Storage Facilities Expense
Cathodic Protection
Maint of Valves
Valve Operation Program
Maint of Mains
Water Quality Maintenance
Maint of Backflow Devices
Backflow Dev lnspection/Survey
Maint of Copper Services
Maint of PB Service Lines
Maint of Meters
Detector Check Assembly Maint
Maint of Hydrants
Hydrant Operation
Single Service lnstallation

TRANSM¡SSION & DISTRIBUT¡ON

CONSUMER ACCOUNTING
Meier Reading
Collection Expense - Labor
Uncollectable Accounts
Distributed from Novato (3.6%)

CONSUMER ACCOUNTING

WATER CONSERVATION
Water Conservation Prog ram

TOTAL WATER CONSERVATION

GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE
Consu lting Services/Studies
Distributed from Novato (3.6%)

GENERAL & ADMIN¡STRATIVE

Depreciation (Note 5)

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSE

$545
0

1,214
476

0
747

0
172

0

0
0

0
0

0
1,884

123
0

0
0
0

1B%

0%
7B%
97%
0%
14%
7o/o

6%
0o/o

0%
0%
0%
28%
0%
14%
20%
0%
0%
0%

21%

10%
16%
0%
29%
19%

$2,454
0

5,449
5,823

0

4,105
485
378

0
16

0

0

840
14

2,792
988

$1,450
0

I ,714
1,759

0
4,561

538
768

0
204

0

0
1,760
4,035

11,764
4,459

0

0
0

(446)

0
0
0

4124

$5,1 62 927,757 $32,565

$3,506
0

102
3,483

$0
0
0

896

$1 ,1 98
156

0
3,706

$896

$476

$5,059

$1,360 14%

14%

0%
23%
21%

25%
27%

$7,090

92,732

$476

$0
743

$7,743

16,052

$67,555

$1,360

$0

$2,732

$0
7 19 815 15 578

$19,815

48,235

$193,617

$15,578

48,409

$176,476

oPERAT|NG TNCOME/(LOSS) $44,e60 $97,008 98% $68,969
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WEST MARIN WATER
DETAIL INCOME STATEMENT

FOR THE PERIOD ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2017

SEPTEMBER
2017

YEAR TO DATE
ACTUAL

YTD/
BUDGET%

PRIOR YTD

ACTUAL

NON-OPERATING REVENUE
lnterest - General Funds
lnterest - FRC
lnterest - Self-lnsured WC Fund
lnterest - Bank of Marin Project Fund
lnterest - CIR Fund
Rents & Leases
Tax Proceeds - OL-2 G.O. Bond
Tax Proceeds - PR-2 Tax Allocation
Other Non-Operating Revenue

NON-OPERATING REVENUE

NON-OPERATING EXPENSE
Bank of Marin Loan lnterest Expense
PRE-1 Revenue Bond lnterest Exp
PR-6 Revenue Bond lnterest Exp
Drought Loan lnterest Expense

NON-OPERATING EXPENSE

NET TNCOME/(LOSS)

BEGINNING FUND EQUITY
NET TNCOME/(LOSS)
CONTRIBUTED CAPITAL
Connection Fees

ENDING FUND EQUITY

$2,262
158
192

0

$6,815
475
575

0

$7, I 80
625
700

24

$470
123

31

860
55

0
0

5
0

$1,316
347

87
2,372

104
0

0

342
0

12%

24o/o

1o/o

$4,569 7%

$750
295

70
2,142

4ÕôIJJ

0

0
299

0

$3,68e

$8,529

$64,1 29

$6,150,369
64,129

8,000
$6,222,498

0%

$1,545

$7,865

$93,712

$6,155,744
93,712

0

____$9¿19119_

28%
16%
19%
0%
25%82,612

$43,894

43,894

6B%

0 0%
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OCEANA MARIN SEWER
DETAIL INCOME STATEMENT

FOR THE PERIOD ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2017

SEPTEMBER

2017

YEAR TO DATE

ACTUAL

YTD/

BUDGET%

PRIOR YTD

ACTUAL

OPERAT¡NG REVENUE
Sewer Service Charges
lnspection Fees

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE

OPERATING EXPENSE

SEWAGE COLLECTION
Supervision & Engineering
lnspection
Operating Expense
Facilities Location
Maint of Telemetry Equipment
Sewer Service I nstallation
Maint of Lift Stations
Maint of Manholes
Maint of Sewer Mains
Electric Power

SEWAGE COLLECTION
SEWAGE TREATMENT
Operating Expense
Maint of Structures
Maint of Equipment
Laboratory Direct Labor
Lab Expense Distributed from Novato
Electric Power

SEWAGE TREATMENT
SEWAGE DISPOSAL
Operating Expense
Maint of Pump Stations
Maint of Storage Ponds
Maint of lrrigation Field

SEWAGE DISPOSAL
CONSUMER ACCOUNTING
Collection Expense - County of Marin
Distributed from Novato (0.6%)

CONSUMER ACCOUNTING

$2,545
384

1,632
563
389
104

1,182
0

0
3,519

$3,289
540

1,518
1,231
3,098

0

750
0
0

$19,866
0

$59,598
300

25% $53,820
0

$19,866

1,207

$59,898 25%

14%
38%
23%
56%
10%

24%
0%
0%

29%
19%

$53,820

J 156

$13,580

523
384
466
229

20
0

281

0
0

$t

$4,1 1 0 $10,317

$1 ,1 64
0
0

795
511

$4,326
0

628
1,197

743

$1,490
0

183
795
511

5%
0%
2%
13%
26%
50o/o

10%

9%
14%
49%
21%
18%

1 009

$3,478
9872 1 525

$8,419$5,966

$55
183
141

0

$1,073
1 ,130
1,962

$4,525
255
628
380718

$378 $5,883 $5,787

$0
124

$0
488

$0
424

$124 $488
24%
24% $424
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OCEANA MARIN SEWER
DETAIL INCOME STATEMENT

FOR THE PERIOD ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2017

SEPTEMBER

2017

YEAR TO DATE

ACTUAL

YTD/

BUDGET%

PRIOR YTD

ACTUAL

GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE
Consulting Services/Studies
Distributed from Novato (1.1To)
Liability lnsurance

GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE

Depreciatiorì (Note 5)

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSE

NON-OPERATING REVENUE
Rents & Leases
lnterest - Connection Fee Reserve
lnterest - General Funds
lnterest - Self lnsured WC Fund
Tax Proceeds - OM-1/OM-3 Tax Alloc
Other Non-Operating Revenue

NON-OPERATING REVENUE

NON-OPERATING EXPENSE
Other Non-Operating Expense

NON-OPERATING EXPENSE

NET TNCOME(LOSS)

BEGINNING FUND EQUITY
NET TNCOME/(LOSS)
CONTRIBUTED CAPITAL

Contribution in Aid of Construction
Connection Fees

ENDING FUND EQUITY

$o
$2,442

159

$0
$6,250

476

0%
23%
24%
12%

18o/o

16%

(1e2%)

$5
$0

373
532

$2,601

3,087

$13,779

$6,725

9,423
$38,801

$5,905

11,557

$45,672

oPERATTNG TNCOME(LOSS) $6,087 $21,097 $8,1 48

$o
0

506
10
b
0

$500
18

1,408
24

318
0

$500
0

1,446
29

365
1

36%

1%

48%

0o/o

$522

$o

$2,341 4% $2,269

$1 62$0
$0

$6,609

$0

$23,438

$1 62

$10,255

$1,339,774
10,2556,609

0
0

$1,340,901
23,438

____$1,394É99_ $1,350,029

0
0

0
0
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NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT
ANALYSIS OF WORKERS'COMP, CIR AND CONNECTION FEE FUNDS

FOR THE PERIOD ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2017

WORKERS' COMPENSATION FUND

WC Cash Balance 6130117

Less: Projected Prior FY Claims Liability

Add: Funds borrowed to subsidize operations

WC Reserve Balance 6130117

Add: WC Expense Charged to Operations FYTD

lnterest Earned

Subtotal
Less: Claims Expense Paid

Excess lnsurance Premium

Administration Fees

WC Reserve Balance 9l3Ûl17

Add: Projected Claims Liability

Funds borrowed to subsidize operations
WC CASH BALANCE 9I3OI17

CONNECTION FEE FUND

Connection Fee Cash Balance 6130117

Add: funds borrowed to subsidize operations

Connection Fee Reserve Balance 6130117

Add: Connection Fees Collected FYTD

lnterest Earned
Subtotal
Less: Fees Expended FYTD

Fees transferred to RWS FYTD (Note 14)

Connection Fee Reserve Balance Bl31l17

Less: Funds borrowed to subsidize operations

CONNECTION FEE CASH BALANCE 9I3OI17

TOTAL
NOVATO
WATER

WEST MARIN
WATER

OCEANA
MARIN
SEWER

$8,268
2,113

0

RECYCLED
WATER

$o

4,995
14.147

$733,571
192,121

14.147

$701,035
178,673

0

$24,268
6,340

0

$555,597
27,315

2,592

$522,362
25,376

$17,928
983

87

$6,1 55

300

29

$9,1 52

656

02 475

$585,504
98,075
12,497

3,000

$550,214
91,112
1 1 ,610

$18,998
3,531

450
108

$6,485
1,079

t'Jl

33

$5,235
1,724

0

$471,932
156,694

10,842\

$444,705
145,568

0

$14,910
5,64'l

0

$9,808
2,354

300

72

$7,082
3,761

(1o,842)

$o

2 787

$617,783 $590,273 $20

$98,780
0

$6 959

$98,780
(5,693,040) (5,655,246

$o $o
(37.794\

($5,594,260)

709,200
347

($4,884,713)

197,996
266,435

($5,655,246)

709,200

0

($4,946,046)

192,214
266,435

$98,780
0

J4 I

$99,1 27

5,782
0

794

7e4)

($ez

($¡z

0

0

0

0

($5,404,696)

5,404,696)

$93,346 $o $93,345

1 
On September'1, 2009 the Board authorized water conservation expenditures to be charged against the Conservation lncent¡ve Rate Fund

($5,349,145)
(5,442,489\

$93,345
0

($37,7e4)
7 794\J

$0
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NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT
CONNECTION FEE ANALYSIS

FOR THE PERIOD ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2017

The Connection Fee (FRC) Fund is comprised of cash available from collection of Facility Reserve Charge Fees.
The FRC fee is charged to developers based upon the estimate of cost necessary to construct capacity to serve the
new development. These funds are restricted by law for expansion of the facilities within the service area where the
new development occurs. Funds are disbursed from the Connection Fee Reserve as expenditures to increase
system capacity to serve new development are incurred.

TOTAL
EXPENDITURE

% FUNDED BY
CONNECTION

FEES

TOTAL FROM
CONNECTION

FEESlFY17 CONNECTION FEE EXPENDITURES
Novato Water
Bank of Marin AEEP Debt Service
STP Rehab SRF Loan Debt Service
Water Conservation Expenditures
San Marin Pump Station Can Rehab
Center Rd 6" CIP
Grant Ave Bridge Pipeline Replacement
Detector Check Assembly Upgrades
San Mateo Tank Recoat

Recycled Water
NBWRA Grant Program Administration
RW Expansion Central Area Local Share
RW Expansion North Area Debt Service
RW Expansion South Area Debt Service

West Marin Water
Bank of Marin Debt Service
Water Conservation Expenditures

25,993

____$19!,89q_

30,1 28
16,326
60,480

7,269
20,541
42,751

8,221
6,498

___91s221!_

$18,508
31,566

116,129
100,233

_____$?qØ99_

$4,422
360

120,510
65,306
60,480
29,077
41,081
88,471
32,885

$18,508
31,566

116,129
100,233

25%
25%
100%
25%
50%
sjo/o
25%
25%

$266,435

$17,690

100%
100%
1O0o/o

100%

25o/o

100%360

$1e 050 $5,782

Oceana Marin Sewer $o

$749,288 $464,431

'The Percentage Funded by Connection Fees is the percentage of total projeci cost paid by FRC funds, which are allocated to
new growth based on historic NMWD practice. The Total From Connection Fees amounts shown are FRC (connection fee)
expenditures only, and do not include operations funding, which is also used to pay for these projects.
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NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT
EQUIPMENT EXPENDITURES

PERIOD ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2017
t:\acæuntants\financials\stmtfyl 8\lcpm091 7.xls] €quip

SEPTEMBER
2017

FYTD
TOTAL

FY 17t18 (OVER)

BUDGET UNDER Notes

1 ADMINISTRATION
a. Virtual Server

2 CONSTRUCTION
Fittings & Hose for Emergency Hose Trailer

3 OPERATIONS/MAINTENANCE
a. Replacement Closed Circuit TV System
u. Replacement lncubator
c. Metals Analyzer

3 VEHICLE & ROLLING EQUIPMENT EXPENDITURES
a. Hybrid 4x4 SUV
b. 112 Ton Pickup MTool Box & Radio

TOTAL EQUIPMENT EXPENDITURES

Notes
(1) Replacement item

$0 $135,000 $135,000

$35,000
28,000

$0 $0 $210,000 $204,000

$0 $6,000 $6,000
$0 $0

$0

$6,000 $6,000

$6,000 $6,000 r

$o $o

$0
0

0

$6,000 $6,000

$15,000
15,000

105,000

$15,000
15,000

105,000

$o

$o
0

$35,000
28,000

000
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NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT
OVERHEAD ACCOUNT ANALYSIS

FOR PERIOD ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2017

YEAR TO DATE
ACTUAL

ANNUAL
BUDGET

YTD/
BUDGET%

PRIOR YTD
ACTUAL

Material Handlinq
Material Overhead Recovered (15%)

Labor
Materials, Supplies & Expense
Correction to lnventory Counts
Depreciation

Construction Supplies
Const Supplies Overhead Recovered (10%)

Labor
Materials, Supplies & Expense
SmallTools
Depreciation

Net Constr Suppties Gain / (Loss)

Vehicle & Equipment
Vehicle & Equipment Recoveredl

Labor
Materials, Supplies & Expense
Fuel
Depreciation

Net Vehicle & Equip Gain / (Loss)

Pavroll
Overheaded Payroll Recovered

Salary lncluding Leave Time
Employer FICA & Medicare Tax
lnsurance'
Worker's Compensation
Retiree Medical Accrual
CaIPERS Retirement
Unreconciled Difference

Net Payroll Gain / (Loss)

TotalOverhead Gain / (Loss)

$12,578 $l 30,000 10o/o

$21,754

Net Material Handling Gain / (Loss) ($9,f 76)

160/o

25o/o

$130,000

$0

17o/o

17o/o

$62,450 $260,000 24o/o

$17,079
2,480

524
1,673

$1 10,000
10,000

0
10,000

$12,864

915,252
495

(1,147)
2,509

$1 7,1 09

-($4,24Ð$67,419

$14 ,771

847,679 $215,000

$45,000

$33,787

$33,632

$89,538

$12,691
14,831
16,529
33,1 1 9

$77,170

$12,368

$1,993,361

$14,491
25,171
7,768

249

$95,000
94,000
24,000

2,000

15o/o

27o/o

32o/o

12o/o

22o/o

33o/o

15o/o

27o/o

21o/o

25o/o

22%

-98o/o

24o/o

24o/o

25o/o

23o/o

68o/o

25o/o

24o/o

2s%

813,227
18,364

1,407
789

$95,498

$14,554
22,560
17,163
32,428

$98,000
84,000
83,000

132,000

$388,000 250/o

$1,966,327

$1 ,316,81 3
1 03,1 76
232,218
78,145
20,438

256,275
26,236

$1,227,595
94,434

226,661
10,097
19,625

243,606
81,217

$'1,903,235

$90, I 26

$131,881

$86,705

$8,793

$397,000

_$9999_

$8,155,000

$5,473,000
408,000

1,007,000
1 15,000
83,000

1,066,000
0

$2,033,299 $8,152,000

$3,000 3

_ ($5Z,SAa¡ $39,ooo -135%

($66 ,972)

t Vehicle & Equipment Recovered is the amount charged to projects and operations to recover the expense of owning and
operating the asset. The recovery rate is $7/hr for veh¡cles 3/4-ton and under and $14lhr for larger vehicles. An additional 50% is
charged to developer projects to reflect the fair market value of the asset used.

'lnsurance lncludes Medical, Dental, Vision, Cafeteria, Life & Unemployment.3Projected gain on self-insured worker's compensation gives r¡se to the budgeted payroll gain.

T:\Accountants\Financials\stmtfyl B\overhead analysisl g.xls
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NORTH MARIN WATËR DISTRICT
EXPENDITURES BY CATEGORY

FOR PERIOD ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2017

West Oceana YTD
Marin Marin Total

Annual YTD Prior
Budget Budget% YTDActual

o/
IO

OPERATING EXPENSE Novato ed c
1

2
a

4

5

6

7

I
o

l0
11

12

13

14

15

16

tt

Water Purchases
Depreciation
Materials, Services & Supplies
Consulting Services/Studies
Chemicals
Electric Power
Vehicles and Equipment (Distrib)

Tools & Supplies (Distrib)

Retiree Medical Expenses
Water Conservation Rebates
lnsurance & Claims
Office Supplies & Postage
GASB 68 Adjustments
Overhead Charges (Gain)/Loss

Distributed Costs (Lab,G&A,ConsAcctg)

Total Operating Expense

lnterest Expense & Other

Total Expense
.ij._;r::, >.Ji .:rjlr' rrl:,.ri.if ì - !.

Warehouse. Shop & Yard

Salaries & Benefits
Materials, Services & Supplies
Depreciation
Distributed Costs

Total W/H, Shop & Yard

District Capital Outlay
Salaries & Benefits
Equipment Expenditures
Debt Principal Payments
Materials, Services & Supplies

Total District Capital Outlay

Develooer Funded Proiects
Salaries & Benefìts
Materials, Services & Supplies

Total Developer Projects

Total

1,524,301
685,469
363,851

4,925
302,323
173,758
60,868
50,392
39,250
6,109

22,091
19,740

0

52,584
(136,497)

100,437
1 18,605

8,677
0

842
1,207
1,095

0
48,235
32,979

0
3,281

16,717
3,781
3,319

0

0
0

0
0

0

30,862

1,624,738
861,732
408,599

4,925
306,446
1 98,1 89
66,380
55,828
39,250

6,1 09
22,566
19,740

0
52,584

(84,550)

$46,1 23
74,358
35,310

(155,791)

$157,518
0

250,851
1,030,447

$62,1 48
48,064

9110,212

$7,044,886

4,867,000
3,526,000
1,903,000

382,000
434,000
459,000
287,000
185,000
172,000
104,000
144,000
102,000

0
(39,000)

(384,000)

$299,000
307,000

0
(606,000)

$222,000
130,000

$352,000

$39,938,000

33o/o

24%
21%

1%
71%
43%
23o/o

30%
23%

60/o

16%
19%

-135%
22o/o

28%
28%

15%
24%

0%
26%

19%
0o/o

14%
6%

28%
37%

31%

1,970,924
859,464

367,700
3,151

85,851
152,783
68,941
62,373
40,041
16,990
24,810
26,671

0
(131,881)

(80,3e0)

$5,192,025
196,695

$41,170
$50,479
$36,417

(128,065)

$160,270
0

254,100
246,O29

$45,752
59,483

$105,235

$6,154,354

-17 %
0 o/o

11%
56 o/o

256%
29%
-3 o/o

-10%
-1%

-64%
-9%

-25 o/o

-139 %
5 o/o

1%
8 o/o

1%

12 0k

47%
-3%
21%

-1 o/o

-1 o/o

318 %

117 o/o

35%
-19%

4 o/o

I
3

0

,423
,091

0
0

,507
637
638

n
rì

476
n

0

,756

6

o,33014

1,479
0

0
0

0
0

0

$0
0

0
0

$4,783,643
112,124

$46,1 23
74,358
35,310

(155,791)

$93,558
0

91,759
133,786

$55,778
47,424

$103,202

$5,318,072

$266,948
92,796

$50,537
0

146,254
873,479

$1 32
49

$1 80

$1,430,194

$193,663
7,865

$38,820
0

$5,283,074 $19,080,000
212,785 752,0001a

Erg 28% $5,388,720$4,895,767 $359,744 $201,529 $38,820 $5,495,859 $19,832,000

20

21

22

ZJ

24

25

26

27

28

29

$o

$o
0
0
0

$0
0

0
0

$o $0 $0 $0 $o $0

$817,000
210,000

1,799,000
16,928,000

$319,103 51,070,271 $39,923 $9,519 $1,438,815 $19,754,000 7% $660,399

$7,459
0

12,838
19,626

$0
(2,04s)

$(2,04e)

$239,402

$5,964
0
0

3,555

$6,238
2,641

$8,879

s57,218

30

31

32

18% 14 o/o
JJ

11:27:12AM 10118t2017 \\nmwdaccountinE\aæounting\SageSoftwâre\SAGE1 00w201 6\MAS90\Repods\1 PAS ExpCategory FYI I rpt



Veh#

NORTH MARIN WAT'ER DISTRICT
VEHICLE FLEET ANALYSIS

FOR PERIOD END¡NG SEPTEMBER 30,2OI7
Fiscal Year to Date

2 Gainilloss¡ Mi

Vehicle Cost MiIe

Life to Date FY18 FY17 FY16

47
49
53
54
56
57
58
59

50'1

502
504
505
506
509
510
511
512
513
515
516
517
518
520
521
522
523
524

N)
o)

Year

z 2002 ChevKl500 4x4
s 2003 Dodge Dakota 4x4
¿ 2OO4 Chev C1500
s 2OO4 Chev C 1500 Xtra Cab
o 2005 Honda Civic Hybrid
t 2005 Honda Civic Hybrid
e 2005 Ford Ranger
s 2005 Ford Ranger
ro 2006 Chev Colorado
tt 2007 Chev K2500 4x4
tz 2007 Chev Colorado
rs 2008 FordE2504x4
u 2008 FordF2504x4
rs 2008 Chev Colorado 4x4
ro 2009 Toyota Prius Hybrid
t¡ 2O1O Ford F150 4x4
rc 2010 Ford F150
tg 2010 Ford F150
zo 2012 Ford F250
zt 2012 Ford F250
zz 2014 Ford F150
zz 20'15 Ford F25O 4x4
z¿ 2Q15 Ford Escape 4X4
zs 2015 Ford F150 4X4
za 2Q16 Nissan Frontier
zz 2Q17 Ford Escape 4X4
za 2016 Nissan Frontier

r 1999
z 2OO2
s 1999
¿ 20O6
s 2009
a 2012
z 2015
a 2017

Ford F350 WSvc Body
lnt'l 5 Yd Dump
Ford F550 3-Yd Dump "
lnt'l 4300 Crew
Peterbilt 335 Crew
lnt'l 5 Yd Dump
lnt'l 5 Yd Dump
Ford F350 4x4

Pearce

19 Pool
44 Construction
52 Construction
503 Breit
508 Lemos/Reed
514 Rupp
519 Sjoblom
525 LeBrun

Latanyszyn
Stompe
STP
Pool
Engineering
Clark
Pool
Bynum
Pool
Corda, Joe
Rodriguez
Cilia
STP
Engineering
Eng¡neer¡ng
STP
Kurfìrst
On-Gall
Reed
Castellucci
Grisso
Kehoe, Chris
Arendell
Lemos
Roberto

3,017
1,293
1,191

513
377
823
458

0
629

1,731
3,570

924
1,897

985
3,467
1,824
1,878
3,313
2,625
2,3U

383
3,449
4,336
2,756
3,848
1,844

$681
$1,924

$614
$721
$688
$591
$190

$0
$285

$2,493
$742

$3,447
$443
$266
$480
$479
$531

$1,405
$812
$978
$106

$1,622
$1,256

$632
$1,1 50

$347

$1,1 06
$940
$529
8257
$494
$455
$410

$0
$350

$2,524
$3,024
$1,477

$581
$882

$1,547
$700

$2,884
$2,648
$3,143
$2, I 56

$798
$4,868
$2,542
$1,136
$3,332
$1,124

132,703
100,232
124,740
97,850
78,309
75,264

128,622
127,821
't38,617

98,756
63,004
91,554
67,338
97,317

108,462
73,615
96,375
68,671
43,815
50,490

9,095
55,172
35,402
25,752
18,625
9,144

$0.36
$0.43
$0.46
$0.47
$0.29
$0.24
$0.45
$0.47
$0.37

$0.46
$0.62
$0.51
$0.37
$0.41
$0.24
$0.27
$0.37
$0.27
$0.30

$0.23
$1.49
$0.52
$1.41
$1.82
80.72
$0.41

$0.38
$0.46
$0.46
$0.79
$1.81
$0.1 5

$1.07
$0.66
$0.20
$0.77
$0.36
$1.80
$0.63
$0.29
$0.13
$0.69
$0.44
$0.54
$0.84
90.47
$0.21
$0.41
$0.18
$0.17
$0.38
$0.30

$2.08
$6.81
$1.68
$3.75
$¿.0¿
$1.14
$r.10
$0.52

$0.42
$0.33

$0.74
$0.69
$0.47
$2.44
$0.66
$0.38
$0.31
$0.36

8220

$0.67
$3.67
$0.44
$0.20
$0.33
$0.39
$0.40
$0.67
$0.35
$0.56
$0.57
$0.41
$0.40
$0.54

$0.58
$0.41
$0.76
$0.76
$0.34
$0.20
$0.s0
$0.48

$425
($ee+¡

($8s¡
($4os¡
($1s+¡
($t

$2
$

$

$2,
$
$2,
$

$0
$65
$31
282
970

$0.45
$1.44
$0.21
$3.73
$0.23
$0.27
$0.14
$0.26
$0.28
$0.42
$0.31
$0.42
$0.28
$0.47
$0.29
$0.23
$0.30
$0.19
$0.44

38
Þ

$1
$61

066
$22

353

33
17

$692
$3,246
$1,286

$s0s
62,182

$776Lab

,243
1

I

$1699 175 846 $ 099

134,052
97,241
89,279
38,714
29,876
31,582
23,113

717

395
825
694
827
718

1,566
1,669

$810
$2,033

$980
$804
$667

$2,445
$1,622

$980
$3,766
$2,1u
$s,138
$7,210
$3,976
$4,868

$170
$1,733
$1,154
$4,334
$6,543
$1,531
$3,246

$0.80
$r.76
$0.99
s2.62
$2.1 5
$1.42
$0.98
$0.48

$2.42
$1.51
$1.15
$2.19
$1.35
$1.15
$0.78
$0.78

$2.05
$2.46
$1.41
$0.97
$0.93
$1.56
$0.97
$0.47$1

on
t E pen=e amornt shown excludes depreciation (approximately $85,OOO for FY18).

$7/hr and the recovery rate for vehicles 1-ton and over is $14lhr. An additional 50olo is charged to developer projects to refect the fair market vafue of the veh¡cle being used.
3 Purchased used in 2OO4 w¡th 33,500 miles. Mileage shown is total incuned since District purchase.



NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT
WATER CONSERVATION PROGRAM DETAIL
ooo o=*'oo =*o'*o tttt="t-* to''ott 

-,,.,**"uro***"oo**-,ooo'*,ro*==,*'"*"

-osr 

rHRú SEeTEMBER FYTD FY 17t18 (ovER) TorAL
on JUNE 2017 2017 TOTAL BUDGET UNDER COST

1-770ç01

1-7700-02

1-770ùO3

1-7700-06

1-7700-07

1-770ù11

1-7700-12

1-770G.13

1-7700-1 5

i-7i00-16

1-7700-17

't-7700-19

1-770G08

't-7700-20

1-770ù21

1-770ù23

1-770G24

1-770G25

1-7700-26

't-770G27

$378,476
22,667
44,652

343,746
54,416

964,946
18,173

328,236
242,177

85,576
2,997

30,385
1,312,551

73,519
2,797
2,314
1,927

66,064

66,961
15,890

56,769
74,879
20,290

1 10,892
149,846

11,098

$2,669
19

0
69

0
857

0
1,480

0
630

0
20

9,059
1,611

19
539

0
0

2

$6,1 23
215

0
314

0
3,710

0
3,803

0
2,U3

81
938

26,243
4,657

19
648

0
357

0
1,090

78

$65,000
5,000
5,000

10,000
1,000

30,000
2,000

67,000
0

10,000
1,000
5,000

140,000
15,000
2,000
1,000
2,000

o

10,000
9,000

$58,878
4,785
5,000
9,686
1,000

26,290
2,000

63,1 98
0

7,658
919

4,062
1 13,758

10,343
1,981

352
2,000

(357)

10,000
7,910

3,000
277

4,000
1,922

$384,599
22,882
44,652

344,060
54,416

968,656
18,173

332,038
242,177

87,919
3,078

31,323
1,338,794

78,176
2,816
2,962
1,927

66,421

66,961
16,980

56,769
74,879
20,290

112,221
149,926
11,098

89,427
36,904
14,460
18,731
48 715

1-7700,28

a. Residential
t Cash for Grass
z Landscape Efficiency Rebates
¡ Fixtures Purchases
+ Washing Machine Rebates
s Demonstration Garden lmprovements
o Toilet Rebate SF
z Toilet Rebate MF
a Residential Audits
s High Effìciency Toilet Distribution
ro Water Waste Ordinance Monitoring
rr Swimming Pool Cover Rebate
rz ET Controller Rebate
re Administration
r¿ New Development Wtr Cons Program
rs Demand Offset Rebate Program
ro Grant Administration
17 Hot Water Recirculation Rebate
re Residential Fill Station

b. Commercial
r Toilet Rebate Program
z Commercial Audits

c. Public Outreach/lnformation
t Fall Newsletter
z Spring Newsletter
3 Summer Newsletter
¿ Public Outreach / H,O Fair
s Marketing
o Public Outreach/Leadership Novato

d. Large Landscape
t Large Landscape Audits
z Large Landscape Budgets
s Large Landscape lnig Efficiency Rebates
¿ CIMIS Station Maintenance
s Administration-Large Landscape

TOTAL NOVATO WATER CONSERVATION

N){

1-770G29

1-7700-30

1-7700-31

1-770ù32

1-7700-33

1-770ù34

1-7701-O2 1-7701-O5

1-7701-O3 1-7701-O4

0
218

0
0
0

327
0
0

1-8672-17

1-æ72-14

't-7700-04

1-770G.05

1-770G22

0
0
0

1,329
80

0

8,000
9,000

0
7,000

16,000
0

8,000
9,000

0
5,671

15,920
0

1-865+O2

1-7702-01

1-7702-02 1-7702-04

1-E65&01

1-7702-03

89,427
36,1 81
14,460
18,653

0
107

0
0

577

3,000
1,000
4,000
2,000

10,000

0
723

0

2-516È00 $81,581

TOTAL WATER CONSERVATION EXPENDITURES'

7 731

$476 $1 ,360 $10,000 $8,640 $82,941
WEST MARIN WATER

581 1

tFY18 total excludes $254 ,457 (5,813.5 AF x $43.77) paid to SCWA for water conservation services provided to NMWD.

640 1



NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS

PERIOD ENDING SEPTEMBER 30,2OI7
tþccoumG\lnanoaFffi t¡yt ð{cpmu9t /,ft þrojec

COST ÍHRU
JUNE 20I7

SEPTEMBER
2017

FY 17t18
BUDGET

(OVERYUNDER
BUDGET

FYTD
TOTAL

TOTAL
cosr

t-7t61{0

1 -7r68{0

a.

r R¡dge Road 6" ACP (8'@ 1,400')
2 Center Rd 6' CIP (8"@l,200')

n. Main/Pipeline Additions
1 San Mateo 24" lnleVOutlet Pipe (2,200')

c. PB Service Line Replacements
r Replace PB in Sync w/City Paving (30 svcs)

e Other PB Replacements (85 services)

3 Country Lane 2" Plastic
¿ Grant Ave Bridge Pipe Replacement

d. Relocat¡ons to Sync w/City & County CIP
r Other Relocations

TOTAL PIPELINE REPLACEMENTS/ADDITIONS

e. Aqueduct Replacements & Enhancements
r MSN B2-Utility Agreement Costso
2 AEEP Post Construction Costs

$52,152
30,329

27,824

0
0

5,997
0

874,192
816

$0
0
0
0

1,112
860,747

$0
51,870

0

s194,714

$2,325
26,618

547

78
3,454

0
80,575

$0
76

0
1,372

0
2,706

925

s1 56

$6,838
41,081

3,672

78
3,454

0
88,471

$735

$325,000
175,000

50,000

70,000
180,000

0
0

$150,000
1,500,000

30,000

50,000
490,000

0
0

$31 8,1 62
133,919

46,329

$58,990
71,410

31,495

78

$0
52,598

0

$1 99.522

1-7139-21

1-7123'20

r-716900

1 -717440

r -71 50-00

1-8737-u

1Æ50217

69,922
176,546

0
(88,471)

3,454
5,997

88,471

$0 $74,927

$0
32,885

0
1,922
1,112

867.824
51 316

786

0

$o
0

0

$o
32,885

0
1,922

0
7,077

0
896

1-711842

1-711*11

$o
0

N)
@

2 SYSTEM IMPROVEMENTS
14677-21 a. (12 b¡enially)

i-7007-11 b. Detector Check Assembly Repair/Repl 1-t+rg
1-7oeo-04 c. Anode lnstallations ltsoly4
i-7i3244 d. Radio Telemetry
1-7157{0 e. Automate Zone Valve-Slowdown Ct
r.7iso{o r. Advanced Meter lnformation Retrofitl
i-?r36-00 g. Facilities Security Enhancements

TOTAL SYSTEM IMPROVEMENTS

3 BUILDINGS, YARD, & S.T.P. IMPROVEMENTS

14501-43

165014

a. Administration Building
I Electronic Document Management System
z Officellard Build¡ng Renovation'

b. Corp YardM/arehouse/Construction Office
r Other Yard Improvements

c. Stafford Treatment Plant
r Stafford Dam Concrete Repair
z Coat Concrete Clearwells (Both units)

¡ Watershed Erosion Control
4 Stafford Dam Armoring Retrofit

TOTAL BUILDING, YARD, & STP IMPROVEMENTS

390
0

3,534
156

143,234
0

3,534
156

$50,000
190,000
30,000
25,000

100,000
4,700,000

0

$50,000
157,115
30,000
23,078

100,000
4,692,923

$0
727

$0
0

$150,000
1,499,273

30,000

49,610
490,000

(3,534)
(1 56)

00

1 6600€9

I 660G89

I €600-70

I 660G90

42,844 0
0
0

56

0
0
0

s4.808 s2.220.000 s2.2'15j92



NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS

PERIOD ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2OI7

Description JUNE 2017 2017 TOTAL BUDGET BUDGET COST

4 STORAGE TANKS & PUMP STATIONS

,712740

5405&10

5605&15

5-605&20

5S05&25

54058-30

s05&35

ffi058-40

ffi058-50

s058-60

5423+20

6

14221-21

1-7'170{0

14'112-21

14112-25

1 -6117 "27

1{141{0

44672-28

8-7163{0

a-708542

8-71 64-00

8-717140

8-6607-22

&7r 73-00

ç717240

$39,1 56
0

102,499
0

29,077
43. I 69

$213.901

$1,268,876
1 ,1 1 8,933

86,978
154,940
29,038

3,230,293
346,919

6,334,951
141,522

9,252
0

0

$77,648
21,977

0
0

$99,625

$39,1 95
15,674
33,114

0
0

3,964
0
0

$25.606

$0
0

238
2,756

52
42,477

5,793
115,406
27,342

187,813
0
0

2,487

$7,737

$0
0
0
0
0

1,666
1,901

$25,993
7,792

0
0
0

527

$18,508
3,044

238
18,606

313
100,329

6,743
330,369
241,934
203,932

0
0

$12,595
0
0

14,490

$1,900,000
30,000

100,000
15,000
15,000
60.000

$80,000
6,365,000

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

50,000
50,000

$550,000
75,000
50,000

0

$61,492
6,361,956

(238)
(18,606)

(313)
(1 00,329)

(6,743)
(330,369)
(241,934)
(203,932)

50,000
50,000

$537,405
75,000
50,000

(14,490)

$40,000
79,405
20,000
20,000
50,000
(2,763)
(2,2s1)

$65,149
7,792

102,499
0

29,077
43.697

s248.214

s1,287,384
1,121,976

87,2't7
173,546
29,351

3,330,622
353,662

6,665,321
383,456
213,184

0
0

$90,243
21 ,977

0

14,490

$39,1 95
16,269
33,114

0
0

6,727
2,291
3 869

a. San Mateo Tank Recoat (5 MG)
b. Hydropnuemat¡c Tank Repairs
c. Lynwood Pump Station Motor Control Center
d. Lynwood Pump Station Can Rehab
e. San Marin Pump Station Can Rehab
f. Crest P.S.(Design/Const)/Reloc School Rd P.S.

TOTAL STORAGE TANKS & PUMP STATIONS

$r 7,579
7,792

0
0
0

234

$1,874,007
22,208

100,000
15,000
15,000
59.473

s34.313 S2.120.000 $2.085.687

5 RECYCLED WATER
a. NBWRA Grant Program Administration
b. Expans¡on to Central Area3
c. RW Central Right of Way Costs3
c. RW Central Private Onsite Retrofif
e. RW Central Public Onsite Retrofif
r. RW Exp-Central-East Side Const3

s. RW-Central East-Rowland Wat'
n. RW Exp-Central-West Side Consf
i. RW Central-Norman Tank Rehab/Consf
j. RW Central-Highwayl 01 Crossing
k. Upgrade Auto-Fill Valve at Reservoir Tank
t. Other Recycled Water Expenditures

TOTAL RECYCLED WATER
WEST MARIN WATER SYSTEM

$12,721 ,702 $381 ,878 $924,01 6 $6,545,000 $5,620,984 $13,645,71 8

$5,250
0
0

N)(o 2+;263.20 a. Replace PRE Tank #44 (25K Gal w/82K Gal)
z-zreo¡o b. Green Sand Filter Med¡a Replace
24s2s-00 c. PB Replace in Sync w/County Paving
zæo+zt d. Gallagher Well Motor Operated Valve

TOTAL WEST MARIN WATER SYSTEM

7 OCEANA MARIN SEWERSYSTEM
a. lnfiltration Repair
b. Des¡gn/lnstall 8th Disposal Trench (300')
c. Tahiti Way Lift Pumps Rebuild (2)
d. Tahit¡ Way Power Relocation
e. Pond Dredging & Relining
f. OM Waste Water Treatment Pond-FEMA
g. OM Treatment Pond Rehab
¡r. OM Force Main & Lift Station Upgrade

TOTAL OCEANA MARIN SEWER SYSTEM

$27,085 $675,000 $647,91 5 $126,710

$0
595

0
0
0

2,763
2,291

$40,000
80,000
20,000
20,000
50,000

0
0
0869

519 101

TOTAL PROJECT EXPENDITURES 514,425,148 $541,490 $1,187,965 $17,745,000 816,507,771 $15,613,113

000



NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS

PERIOD ENDING SEPTEMBER 30,2OI7

Descr¡pt¡on JUNE 2017 2017 TOTAL BUDGET BUDGET COST

8 LESS FUNDED BY GRANTS, LOANS & REIMBURSEMENTS
(Accrued)/Deferred

a. RW Expansion - Central Service Area SRF Loan3
b. RW Expansion - Central Service Area Granf
c. MSN Aqueduct Caltrans Reimb-Segment B2o
d. Advanced Meter lnformation Retrofitl
e. OfficefYard Building Renovationz

FUNDING BY OTHERS (ACCRUEDyDEFERRED
Received

a. RW Expansion - Central Service Area SRF Loan3
b. RW Expansion - Central Service Area Granf
c. MSN Aqueduct Caltrans Reimb-Segment B2a

a. Advanced Meter lnformation Retrofitl
e. OfficeAlard Building Renovation'?

FUNDING BY OTHERS RECEIVED

NET PROJECT EXPENDITURES

($3,841 ,213) ($1 ,828,922) ($3,775,591) ($1 1 ,s33,000) ($7,757,409) ($7,616,804)

1U 75 000 $5 261

Notes to Capital lmprovement Proiects Schedule:
(1) Radio Read Meter Retrofit to be funded by SRF or Bank Loan.
(2) Officel/ard Refurbish to be funded by Bank Loan.
(3) $1 1.7M RW Central Expansion funded by Federal Grants, SRF Loan, local

contribution & Marin Country Club contribution. Debt service paid from FRC Funds.
Fu 100% Caltrans.

($2,796,097)
(3,664,767)

(270)
(860,747)

($1,899,538)
(1 ,881 ,701)

(ss,e74)
0
0

($500,568)
135,848

0
(2,706)

($s34,331)
(894,5e1)

0
0
0

$2,112,376
1,242,264

(73s)
(7,077)

($2,033,836)
(1,741,755)

0
0
0

($2,773, I 60)
($2,559,840)

0
(4,700,000)
(1.500.000)

2

($2,112,376)
(1,242,264)

735
7,077

($739,324)
(8r 8,085)

0
(4,700,000)
(1.500.000)

($683,721 )
(2,422,503)

(r,005)
(867,824\

($3,933,374)
(3,623,4s6)

(5s,e74)
0
0

$o
0
0
0

(5't.870\ 0 (727) o 727 (52.597\
($7,373,7s1) ($367,426) $3,346,101 $0 ($3,346,101) ($4,027,650)

(t
O

Novato Water Capital Projects
Novato Recycled Water Capital Projects
West Marin Water Capital Projects
Oceana Marin Sewer Capital Projects

CIP SUMMARY.GROSS EXPENDITURES
5,

21Io

lmGross
7

14o/o

4%
6,545,000

675,000

Current Month FYTD Total

924,016
27,085

381,878
7.737

121

Novato Water Capital Projects
Novato Recycled Water Capital Projects
West Marin Water Capital Projects
Oceana Marin Sewer Gapital Projects

CIP SUMMARY-NET EXPENDITURES:

7

42%
4o/o

5o/o519I 21
Net

Current Month FYTD Total

(1,811,764)
7,737

1,212,000
675,000

503,065
27,085

CONSULTING SERVICES/STUDIES

f. Stafford Lake Water Rights Update
g. STP Efficiency lmprovements
h. Novato Asset Management Study
i. P¡pe Crossing Repairs-Novato & Rush Creek & Leveroni Bank
j. Digitize West Marin Water Facil¡ty Maps
k. RW Eng¡neering Report Update
l. Oceana Marin Vulnerability Study

33,482
0

458
0
0
0
0

1 1,506
10,200
31,589

0

0
0

399
0
0
0

342
119

0
0
0

0
570

0
0
0

342
705

0
0
0

150
45
30
50
75
75

10

25

0
000
000
000
000
000
000

0
000

0
000

430
000
000
000
658
705)
000

0

35,790
0

1,028
0
0
0

342
13,211
10,200
31,589

0

44,
30,
50,
75,
74,
(1,
10,

1 -1059.00

t406GOO

1 4063-00

f 4@+{0

2,308

860

a.lÆ5m0

00025
5

(2,308)
150,000

r¿ose-oo b. Novato Creek Steelhead Recovery
1-40s7{0 c. Local Water Supply Enhancement Study
r-tozsl2 d. Novato Water Master Plan Update
i4ose-oo e. Cost of Service Study Peer Review



North Marin Water District
Financial Statement Notes

North Marin Water District Financial Statement Notes
Notel -RestrictedCash

Connection Fee Fund: Cash available from collection of Connection Fees. The fee is charged to
developers based upon the estimate of cost necessary to construct capacity to serve the new
development. These funds are restricted by law for expansion of the water or sewer facilities within the
service area where the development occurs. Funds are disbursed from the Connection Fee Reserve as
expenditures are incurred to increase system capacity to serve new development. The fund balance
accrues interest monthly.

Wohler Pipeline Financing Fund: ln December 2002 the Sonoma County Water Agency sold $6.8
million (par) of 3O-year revenue bonds to finance the Wohler to Forestville Pipeline. NMWD's share of the
debt is $844,050 ($6,800,000 X 11.2 I 90.4). ln January 2003 the District established this designated cash
and corresponding reserve account and transferred $844,050 of FRC money into the fund. The Wohler
Pipeline Financing Fund is credited with interest monthly.

Gollector #6 Financing Fund: The Sonoma County Water Agency received a $15.8 million State
Revolving Fund loan commitment at an interest rate of 2.8o/o repa\lable over 20 years for construction of
Collector #6. NMWD's share of Collector #6 is $1 ,950,000 ($15,800,000 X 1 '1 .2 I 90.4). ln January 2003
the District established this designated cash and corresponding reserve account and transferred
$1,950,000 of FRC money into the fund. The Collector #6 Financing Fund is credited with interest
monthly.

Revenue Bond Redemption Fund: Comprised of one year of debt service as required by West Marin
revenue bond covenants. These funds are restricted for payment of bond principal, interest and
administration fees. The fund balance does not accrue interest.

Bank of Marin Project Fund: The District received an $8 million loan from the Bank of Marin in October
2011 lo fund the Aqueduct Energy Efficiency Project. The 2O-year, 3.54% annual percentage rate loan
requires monthly payments of $46,067 and will be fully amortized on 1012712031 . ln Ju ne 2012 ithe Board
authorized reallocating $1 million of this loan to West Marin Water to repay Novato Water $223,000 owed
for previous loans to fund Long Range lmprovement Projects and the remainder to fund the Solids
Handling Facility at the Point Reyes Water Treatment Plant. The unexpended fund balance accrues
interest monthly.

Deer lsland RWF Replacement Fund: The State Revolving Fund (SRF) loan agreement required the
District to agree to establish and maintain a Water Recycling Capital Reserve Fund (WRCRF) for the
expansion, major repair, or replacement of the Deer lsland Recycled Water Treatment Plant. The
WRCRF is maintained in compliance with the "Policy for lmplementing the State Revolving fund for
Construction of Wastewater Treatment Facilities" in effect at the time the agreement was signed by the
District. The September 2003 Recycled Water Master Plan prepared by Nute Engineering recommended
limiting ihe reserve to fund replacement of the RWF electrical and mechanical equipment (including
transmission pumps) as they wear out. The cost of said equipment was $1,483,000 which, at Nute's
recommended 6% interest rate factor and 25-year life, renders an annual funding requirement $115,000.
The fund balance accrues interest monthly.

Recycled Water Capital Replacement and Expansion Fund: The 201'l lnteragency Agreements for
Recycled Water between NSD, LGVSD & NMWD require that any payments to the Distributor (NMWD)
by the End User (Consumers) in excess of actual costs (marginal payments) shall be deposlted in this
fund. Operation and Maintenance Costs are defined as the actual cost of: labor (including general and
administrative overhead plus tools and supplies normally applied), equipment and vehicle charges,
consumables (such as chemicals and electrical power), and spare parts and/or replaced components
necessary to reliably treat and deliver recycled water to the End Users. Operation and Maintenance
Costs do noi include costs for major capital replacement or process changes.

Tax Receipts held in Marin County Treasury: Balance of tax proceeds collected and disbursed by the
County of Marin for repayment of the Olema (OL-2) general obligation bond debt. The County credits
interest io these funds quarterly.

31

t: \accountanls\financials\stmtfy 1 B\fsnote 1 B. docx



North Marin Water District
Financial Statement Notes

STP SRF Loan Fund - Marin Gounty Treasury: The 2004 Stafford Treatment Plant State Revolving
Fund (SRF) loan agreement requires the District to build a Reserve Fund equal to one year of payments
(91,044,474) in the Marin County Treasury during the first ten years of the 2)-year repayment period.

Every January I and July 1, commencing January 1,2010, the District deposits with the County 10% of
the semi-annual SRF payment. The County credits the fund with interest quarterly, and will use the
Reserve to pay the last 2 semi-annual SRF loan payments.

RWS North/South SRF Payment Fund: The State Water Resource Control Board Agreements for the

seven Clean Water State Revolving Fund Loans made for expansion of the Recycled Water System
distribution system require that the District establish a reserve fund equal to one year's debt service
($614,299) prior to the construction completion date.

RWS Central SRF Payment Fund: The State Water Resource Control Board Agreement for the Clean
Water State Revolving Fund Loan made for expansion of the Recycled Water System distribution system
requires that the District establish a reserve fund equal to one year's debt service ($255,373) prior to the
construction completion date.

Note2-DesiqnatedCash

Liability Contingency Fund: Established in 1986 when the District first elected to self-insure its general
liability risk. This reserve was funded with $1 million initially and $200,000 annually thereafter until it
reached a balance of $2 million. ln FYgB the West Marin Water System was included in the fund and

built-up a proportional reserve of $74,000 over several years. Commencing FY93, $1 million of the
reserve was made available to fund loans to eligible employees under the District's Employer Assisted
Housing Program. ln August 2008, $500,000 was transferred into this reserve from the Self-lnsured
Workers' Compensation Fund and made available to fund Employer Assisted Housing Program loans.

Currently there are $1,234,200 in EmployerAssisted Housing Loans outstanding (see Note 3). ln March
2005, $652,400 was expended from the fund to purchase a home at 25 Giacomini Road in Point Reyes
Station. The home is currently rented. ln 2006, $B,BB5 was added from the sale of surplus property in

West Marin. The fund balance does not accrue interest.

Self-lnsured Workers' Compensation Fund: Commencing July 2011, the District began self-insuring its
workers' compensation liability. The savings accrued through self-insuring the liability is reserved in this
fund for possible future claims expense. The District carries a workers' compensation excess policy for
claims that exceed $750,000. See schedule on page 21.

Retiree Medical Benefits Fund: NMWD pays the cost of health insurance for retirees between the ages
of 55 and 65 and spouse under any group plan offered by CaIPERS. The retiree must be at least 55 and

have a minimum of 12 years of NMWD service at the date of retirement. NMWD's contribution toward the
chosen plan is capped in the same manner as all other NMWD employees in the same class. Coverage
terminates for the spouse when the spouse becomes eligible for Medicare, or for both the retiree and

spouse when the retiree becomes eligible for Medicare. When the retiree or spouse becomes eligible for
Medicare, NMWD pays up to the couple annuitant rate, which is capped at $3,830 per year ($319/month).
ln August 2003, NMWD transferred $2.55 million ($2.3 million for current retirees plus $250,000 for future
retirees) from unrestricted cash into a reserve to fund this obligation. ln 2010 the Board directed staff to
add $1,500 per employee annually as a payroll overhead to accrue and accelerate amortization of this
liability. The accrual is maintained as a Long-Term Liability entitled Retiree Health Benefits Payable. The
Retiree Health Benefits Payable plus the Retiree Medical Benefits Reserve Fund currently has a balance
of $3.9M. ln 2015 an Actuarial Analysis calculated NMWD's total actuarial liability at $5.6 million. The
Retiree Medical Benefiis cash fund earns interest monthly. Accounting Standards require that the $5.6M
reserve by fully funded in 20 years.

Drought Contingency (Rate Stabilization) Fund: ln August 2008, the Board directed staff to establish
this reserve with $'135,000 from the Self-lnsured Workers'Compensation Fund for the Novato district to
draw upon during dry years. A threshold of 3.2 billion gallons of potable consumption was established as

a benchmark for 'normal' years. During any fiscal year that water sales volume exceeds 3.28G, the

incremental revenue generated is deposited into the Drought Contingency Reserve. ln those years when
sales volume falls below the benchmark, funds are withdrawn from the reserve to maintain the budgeted
revenue forecast. The goal is to build a reserve equal to 20o/o (currently $2,500,000) of budgeted annual
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water commodity sales. ln FY09 $50,335 was added to the reserve. The fund was fully depleted in FY'10.

The fund balance accrues interest monthly.

Maintenance Accrual Fund: Established in FY91 to provide a source of maintenance money for
replacement of treatment, storage, transmission and distribution facilities as they wear out. The annual
contribution from operating reserves was initially $200,000. Net polybutylene claim settlement proceeds
of $671,060 were closed into the fund in FY93. ln FY94 the annualcontribution was reduced to $100,000.
The District's goal is to build a reserve equal to 10% of the net book value of Novato's existing plant,

currently $7.0M. Funds are borrowed from the Maintenance Accrual Fund to offset the shortfall in

unrestricted Cash & lnvestments. The fund balance does not accrue interest.

Conservation lncentive Rate Fund: |n2004 and 2005, a Conservation lncentive Tier Rate was enacted
in Novato and West Marin respectively. Monies derived from this tier-rate charge are set aside in the
Conservation lncentive Rate Reserve, and used for conservation programs designated by the Board.

Operating Reserve Fund. This reserve, comprised of four months of budgeted operating expenditures
(less depreciation) as recommended by the District's financial advisors, serves to ensure adequate
working capital for operating, capital, and unanticipated cash flow needs that arise during the year. The
fund balance does not accrue interest.

Note3-EmploveeLoans

Housing Loans: The District's Employer Assisted Housing Program allows up to $300,000 to be loaned
to an employee for a period of up to 15 years for the purchase of a home within the District service
territory that will enable the employee to respond rapidly to emergencies affecting the operation of the
District. Repayment is due upon sale, termination of employment, or other event as described in the
Program. lnterest on the loan is contingent upon and directly proportional to the appreciation in value
occurring on the purchased property. There are five employee-housing loans currently outstanding
totaling $934,200: a $250,000 loan dated August 2004, a $39,200 loan dated September 2004, a

$150,000 loan dated November 2007, a $245,000 loan dated June 20'10, and a $250,000 loan dated
March 2015.

Note 4 - Other Lonq Term ReceivaÞles

The District entered into a temporary water service agreement with Black Point Golf Links in '1999 to
provide potable water for StoneTree Golf Course until recycled water was available. ln 2006 the District
received a $4.3 million 2)-year 2.4% SRF loan to finance the Deer lsland Recycled Water project, and
Black Point Pariners agreed to pay the District $3,612,640 in bimonthly payments of $41 ,762 at 2.4%
coinciding with StoneTree's water service payments. The final payment from StoneTree is due in

February 2024.

Note 5 - Depreciation

Assets are assigned a useful life based on consultations with the District Chief Engineer and a survey of
other water agencies. Depreciation is computed on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of
the various classes of property as follows:

Facilitv Life (Years)

Aqueduct... 1 50

Dam......... 100

Buildings & Structures... 40

Mains... 50

Pumping Equipment... 25

Water Treatment Equipment.. 20

Storage & Transmission (16"+) Facilities........ 50
Distribution Facilities (includes Pump

Stations)...... 50

Office, Laboratory, Construction & Shop Tools & Equipmeni... 'l 0

Vehicles '1 ton or greater... 'l 0

All other vehicles...... 5

Sewer Mains... 40

Sewer Pumps. 10
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Note 6 - Capitalization Policy

The Government Finance Officers Association Guide for State and Local Governmenfs recommends that
a capitalization policy incorporate a minimum threshold of $5,000 and an estimated useful life of at least
two years. lt also cautions that federal grant and loan requirements prevent the use of capitalization
thresholds in excess of $5,000. Thus NMWD's capitalization threshold is $5,000.

NoteT-Bond&Loan

Servicing Schedule for FiscalYear 2017-2018

FY18

Service Area Description
lssue
Date Rate

Original
Amount

Payment
Due

lnterest
Expense

Principal
Paid

6/30/1 I
Outstanding

Balance
Final
Pmt

1 Novato

2 Novato

3 RWTP

4 RW North

5 RW South

6 RW Central

7 PRE

8 Point Reyes

9 WM Water

SRF Loan
STP

Bank Marin
Loan

SRF Loan

SRF Loans
(4)

SRF Loans
(3)

SRF Loan

$5,359,858

$4,610,852

Varies

12t31t47

$96,062

$0

$233,1 45

$0

s4,278,721

$4.610.852

2004 2.39o/o $16,528,850 711 & 111 711129

2011 3.54% $7,000,000 2Ttilmo 10127t31

Novato Total

$254,401 $790,074 $10,050,647

$1 81,BB8 $300,1 53 $5,1 55,896

$436,289 sl ,090,227 $1 5,206,543

2006 2.4% $4,302,560 6/1 I 6119127 $57,718 $215,648 $2,189,287

2013 2.6% $4,375,605 Varies Varies $89,924 $189,808 $3,351 ,BB5

2013

201 6

2.2%

1.0%

Varies

12t18

Recycled Water Total $243,704 $638,601 $14,430,745

1980 5.0% $240,000 10t1 & 4t1 4t1t20 $1 ,900 $12,000 $26,000
PRE-1
Revenue

PR-6
Revenue

Bank
Loan

Marin

1981 5.0% $217,800 711 & 111 711121 $2,300 $11,000 $45,000

2012 3.54% $1,000,000 ZTthlmo 10127t31

West Marin Water Total

$26,699 059 $756.524

$30,899 $67,059 $827,524

FYl B Total $710,892 $1,795,887 $30,464,812

1. ln April 2004 the California State Department of Water Resources approved a 2.39% 2}-year loan for
reconstruction of the Stafford Water Treatment Plant. The project was completed in FY09 with repair
of the Outlet Tower Sluice Gate. lnterest paid during construction totaled $1,636,378. The loan
covenants require an annual reserve fund contribution of $104,447 (10% of the annual debt service
obligation) be deposited into the Marin County Treasury during each of the first ten years of the
repayment period. Debt service is funded 25% by Facility Reserve Charges. The first payment was
made in December 2009.

2. lnOctober20l'1 Bankof Marinmadea2}-year3.54% (APR) loanof $SmilliontofundtheDistrict's
share of the Aq ueduct Energy Efficiency Project. See Note 1 5, and note to loan '1 '1 below.

3. ln August 2006 the California State Department of Water Resources approved a2.4% 2)-year loan of
94,264,545 for construction of the Deer lsland Recycled Water Facility. With the addition of $38,015
in Construction Period lnterest, the loan principal totaled $4,302,560. The project was completed in

June 2007, and the first paymentwas made June 19,2008.
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4. ln July 2011 the California State Departmentof Water Resources approved a series of four 2.6%20-
year loans which totaled $4,375,605 for the Recycled Water North Service Area Expansion Project.
The projects were completed on October 31,2012, and the first payment was made in November of
2012.

5. ln March 2012 the California State Department of Water Resources approved a series of three 2.2o/o
2)-year loans totaling $5,361,952 for the Recycled Water South Service Area Expansion Project. The
projects were completed on September 4, 2013, and the first payment was made in December of
2013.

6. ln May 2016 the California State Department of Water Resources approved a 1.0o/o 3O-year loan of
$6,592,295 for the Recycled Water Central Service Area Expansion. The project will be completed in
December 2017, and the first payment will be made December 31 ,2018.

7 . The Paradise Ranch Estates private water system was created by David Adams and Sons in 1 952 to
provide water to 85 homes in the PRE subdivision located north of lnverness Park. Problems with
water quality and quantity developed and in '1969 the Marin County Health Department issued a boil-
water order to all customers of the company. ln '1972[he County declared a moratorium on issuance
of building permits. A suit by property owners resulted in an agreement reached in Marin Superior
Court in late '1978 directing Adams to finance a District feasibility study for the takeover of the system.
This culminated in formation of lmprovement District PRE-'1 and an election authorizing issue of
$240,000 of 5% 4O-year revenue bonds, which, in conjunction with a $720,000 Farmers Home
Administration grant, financed system rehabilitation. Service was provided from the Point Reyes
System by installation of an additional well, expansion of the treatment plant, and a 6-inch pipeline
connection at the lnverness Park pump station extending 1.6 miles along Sir Francis Drake Boulevard
to the newly reconstructed Paradise Ranch Estates distribution system. On 4122180 the USDA
purchased the revenue bond issue in its entirety.

L ln '1 98 1 work commenced on rehabilitating the Point Reyes lnverness Park water system. 1 8,865 feet
of pipeline was either replaced or installed, a 300,OOO-gallon tank was added in Point Reyes Station
and a 100,000-gallon tank was added in lnverness Park. Total cost of these improvements was
$820,01 5. A 72% grant combined with a $217,800 5o/o  }-year revenue bond acquired 8128181 by the
Farmers Home Administration financed the project.

9. ln June 2012 irhe Board authorized reallocating $1 million of the Bank of Marin loan to West Marin
Water to repay Novato Water $223,000 owed for loans to fund Long Range lmprovement Projects
and the remainder to fund the Solids Handling Facility at the Point Reyes Water Treatment Plant.
See note to loan 2 above.

Note I - Unemplovment lnsurance Reserve

NMWD uses the "Reimbursable Method" of paying for Unemployment Costs. Under this method, the
District reimburses the State Employment Development Department for all unemployment benefits paid
on our behalf. The reserve is maintained at an amount equal to the higher of the average claim amount
paid over the last 5 years or 52 times the maximum weekly benefit amount (currently $450 x 52 =
$23,400).

Note 9 - Pavroll Benefits

Payroll Benefits payable includes payroll taxes; vacation, sick, and holiday leave; Section 125 payments;
cancer, long term care and disability insurance premiums; union dues; and employee benefit fund.

Note 10 - lnterest Policv on lnter-Distríct Loans

ln the event an improvement district expends all of its Undesignated Funds, it shall borrow funds from that
improvement district's Board Designated Fund reserves to meet ongoing requirements. ln the event an
improvement district expends all of its Board Designated Fund reserves, it may receive a loan from the
Novato lmprovement District in an amount sufficient to meet its ongoing requirements Restricted Funds
shall not be used to finance ongoing normal operating expenses.

No interest shall be paid by an improvement district on funds borrowed from that improvement district's
Board Designated Fund reserves. lnterest on loans from the Novato lmprovement District shall be paid by
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the recipient district to the Novato district based upon the outstanding loan balance at the close of the
previous accounting period. lnterest shall be calculated at the higher of 1. The weighted average interest
rate of Novato improvementdistrict debt(2.78%at6130117); or2.The average interest rate earned on the
District treasury since the close of the previous accounting period; plus $50 per month.

Note 11 - Budqet Auqmentations

Note 12 - Prior Period Adiustment

Note 13 - Explanation of Financial Statement Gomponents

The District's financial statement is comprised of four components: 1) Statement of Net Position, 2)
Sources and Uses of Funds Statement - All Service Areas Combined, 3) lncome Statement and Cash
Flow by Service Area, and 4) Notes to the Financial Statements. This report also contains other
supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements themselves.

The Statement of Net Position (page 4) reports the District's assets and liabilities and provides
information about the nature and amount of investments in resources (assets) and the obligations to the
District's creditors (liabilities). The difference between assets and liabilities is reported as nef position.
Over time, increases or decreases in the fund balance may serve as a useful indicator of whether the
financial position of the District is improving or deteriorating.

The Sources and Uses of Funds Statement - All Service Areas Combined (page B) compares fiscal
year-to-date performance against the Board approved annual budget - presented in the adopted budget
format. This Sources and Uses of Funds Statement varies from the income statement in that it includes
capital expenditures, debt principal repayment, connection fee revenue, and cash infusions from debt
issuance.

The lncome Statement and Cash Flow by Service Area (page 9) presents the net income (loss) for the
fiscal year-to-date (FYTD) period for each of the District's four service areas. The income and expenses
on this report are presented in conformity with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) and
comply with Governmental Accounting Standards Board pronouncements. Accordingly, all income and
expenses are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the
timing of related cash flows. This statement measures the success of each service area's operations and
can be used to determine whether the service area has successfully recovered all costs through user fees
and other charges.

Also included at the bottom of page 9 is a statement of Cash Flow by Service Area. The primary purpose
of this statement is to reconcile in an informative manner the difference between the net income/(loss) for
the period of each service area with the resultant change in cash balance that occurred over the same
period.

Notes to the Financial Statements (page 31)provide a summary of significant accounting policies and
assumptions and other information of value to the financial statement reader.

Other Supplementary lnformation includes Detail lncome Statements presented in accordance with
GAAP for each of the four service areas (pages 10, 14, 16, 19). These statements present income and
expenditures in close detail for further analysis. Other supplementary schedules of note include the
Vehicle Fleet Analysis (page 25), Equipment Expenditures (page 22) and Capital lmprovement Project
Expenditures (page 27), which show outlays to date, compared with budget authority.
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Note 14 -Connection Fee Transfe rs from Novato Water To Recvcled Water

The following Connection Fee (FRC) reserve amounts have been transferred to the Recycled Water fund

Expansion Local Share SRF RWF Expansion

North South Central NBWRA Loan SRF Loan CIP Total

Transfer

Executed

FYOT

FYOS

FYO9

FY1O

FY11

FY12

FY13

FY14

FY,I5

FY16

FY17

FY1 B

$133,659

$233,478 $265,500

$236,291 $723,525

$17,563

$o$0

$4,024
($4,oza¡

$66,729

$362,524

$31,566

$29,725

$50,478

$150,455

$75,198

$133,319

$1 15,883

$315,023

$63,035

$38,283

$102,842

$194,636

$18,508

$22,795

$22,795

$22,795

$22,795

s22,795

$22,795

$22,795

$22,795

$22,795

$22,795

$464,572

$500,529

$614,299

$614,299

$614,299

s216.362

$36,687

$29,725

$73,273

$173,250

$231,652

$1 56,1 1 4

$637,656

$802,390

$1,550,200

$688,916

$806,664

$1,230,939

$133,659

$1,970,400

$1,550,200

$688,916

$806,664

$1,230,940

$266,43535

$603,428 $1,006.589 $460,819 $1,287,385 $227,949 $3,024,359 $36,687 $6,647,217 $6,647.216

Note 15 -Debt Service Coveraqe Ratio

Debt Service Coverage Ratio is the ratio of net income/(loss) plus interest expense, depreclation, and

connection fee revenue for the fiscal year to the sum of the fiscal year's principal and interest payments

on the District's total debt.

FY14 FY1 5 FY16 FY17 Budget FY18

Net lncomei(Loss)

Depreciation

lnterest Expense

Connection Fees

Total Available For Debt Service

Annual Debt Service

Debt Service Coverage Ratio

Bank of Marin Debt Service

Coverage Calculationl

$3,815,820

$3,128,302

$830,830

$152,800

$1,050,523

$3,183,725

$847,951

$801,600

$91 ,719

$3,286,353

$807,035

$278,690

(sI17,451)

$3,416,411

5757,781

$1,034,585

$267,000

$3,526,000

$732,000

$833,000

$7,927,751

$2,448,968

3.24

$5,883,799

$2,534,473

2.32

$4,463,797

$2,528,938

1.77

$5,091,326

$2,527,022

2.01

$5,358,000

$2,534,000

2.11

FY14 FY15 FY1 6 FY17 FY1 8

Change in Net Position2

lnterest Epense

Depreciation & Am ortization

Total Available for Debt Service

$1,999,996

$830,830

$3,128,302

$5,051,394

$847,951

$3,183,725

$4,230,767

$807,035

$3,286,353

$11,525,937

$757,781

93,416,411

$4,850,000

$732,000

$3,526,000

Bank of Marin Annual Debt Service

Bank of Marin Coverage Ratio

1 Per the October 27,2011 Bank of Marin loan agreement, each June 30, beginning June 30, 2012,the Debt Service Coverage

Ratio shall not be less than 1.2 to 1. "Debt Service Coverage Ratio" shall mean the ratio of (i) Borrower's change in net assets plus

¡nterest, depreciation, and amortizaiion during the fiscal-year period ending on the Determlnation Date to the sum of the scheduled
principal and inierest payments on the Loan during the twelve-month period following the Determination Date.

2 FYlB Budgeted Net lncome ($267,000) + FRC ($833,000) + 6¡tn1t ($3,750,000) = $4,850,000. See page 9 for YTD.

$5,959,128

$552,800

10.78

$10,269,919

$552,800

18.58

$8,324,154

$552,800

15.06

$15,700,129

$552,800

28.40

$9,108,000

$552,800

16.48
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Note 16 - Deferred lnflow and Deferred Outflow of Resources

Deferred lnflow of Resources is the changes in actuarial assumptions and the differences between the
actual contribution & proportionate share of contribution, which for FY1ô was $655,355 and is recognized
in FY'17. Deferred Outflow of Resources is the fiscal year 2017 pension contribution ($926,447) adjusted
by the difference in actual & expected experience, difference between projected and actual earnings on
investments, and the differences in proportions of net pension liability share of contributions from the
CaIPERS Actuarial Report ($2,005,413) for a total of $2,931 ,860 at June 30, 2017

Deferred
Outflow

Defe rre d

lnflow
FY1 7 Pension Contributions
Differences between actual & expected experience
Changes in actuarial assumptions

$926,447
$22,831

($280,202)

Net difference between projected & actual earnings on inrestments
Differences between actual contribution & proportionate share of
Adjustment due to differences in proportions of net pension liability

Total at June 30, 2017

$1,458,356
($375,1 53)

$524,226
$2,931,860 ($655,355)

Note 17 - Net Pension Liabilitv

The net pension liabilitylis required by GAS868 for accounting purposes and is the difference between
the total pension liability (the present value of projected benefit payments to employees based on their
past service) and the assets (mostly investments reported at fair value) set aside in a trust and restricted
to paying benefits to current employees, retirees, and their beneficiaries.

PY Deferral Net Pension
FY1 7 Entries Amortization Adjustment

Net Pension Liability 613012016

Reclassify FY1 6 Contributions to FY1 7

Defer FY1 7 Contributions

Difference between Expected & Actual Experience2

Change in Proportion3
-APensron txpense

Change in Actuarial Assumptionss

Difference in Actual Contrib & Proportionate Share of Contrib6

Difference between Projected & Actual Earnings on lnvestments

Net Pension Liability 613012017

$8,619,837
($828,7e2)

ç926,447
($6,4e0)

$308,659

$544,527
($26,574)

($33e,974)

$1,843,149

($13,561)

($267,014)

$147,431

$152,076

s162,477
($181 ,40e)

$8,619,837
($828,7e2)

$926,447
($20,051)

$41,645

$691,958

$125,502
($177,497)

$1 ,661,740

$11,040,789 $0 $11,040,789

1 Net Pension Liabititv NPL) = Total Pension Liability (TPL) - fiduciary net position (market value of
assets)

'The D¡fference between the Expected and Actual Experience measures the difference between what the
projected actuarial factors for retirement age, salary increases, and mortality rates were assumed to be
with what NMWD's factors actually turned out to be.

3 Chanqe in Proportion reflects the difference from the prior year of NMWD's net pension liability as a
percentage of the CaIPERS Miscellaneous Pool aggregate net pension liability
t_" Pension Expense = service cost + interest on TPL + current period benefit changes - member
contributions - expected earnings on plan invesiments + administrative expenses + recognition of
deferred outflows - recognition of deferred inflows
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5 Actuarial Assumr:tions include projections of retirement age, discount and inflation rates, salary
increases, return on investment, mortality rates, and retiree cost-of-living adjustments.
u The D¡fference in Actuat Contribution and Prooortionate Share of Contributlons identifies the difference
between NMWD's actual pension contribution compared to its proportionate share of the actuarially
required cumulative contribution of all employers in the CaIPERS Miscellaneous Pool based on NMWD's
net pension liability relative to the CaIPERS Miscellaneous Pool aggregate net pension liability.

Unfunded Accrued Liabilitv (UAL) is the Actuarial Valuation which relates to funding and is a calculation
of Entry Age Normal Accrued Liability and Plan's Market Value of Assets. This District's UAL at June 30,
20 1 6 (latest available) is $1 2,242,255.
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ITEM #.q

MEMORANDUM

To: Board of Directors

From: Drew Mclntyre, General Manager

November 3,2017

Subj: Designate Voting Delegate to the ACWA 2017 Fall Conference and Authorize Vote in
support of proposed ACWA Bylaws Amendment
t:\gm\acwa\authorize vote 201 7,docx

RECOMMENDED AGTION: Authorize Auditor-Controller to be the District's Voting Delegate at

the upcoming ACWA Fall Conference and Authorize vote in the
atfirmative for the proposed ACWA Bylaws Amendments

FINANCIAL TMPACT: None at this time

Attached is a memo from the Association of California Water Agencies (ACWA)

Executive Director with information on the upcoming General Session Membership meeting to

be held on November 29 at the Fall 2017 ACWA Conference. David Bentley will attend the

conference including the General Membership Meeting. Elections for President and Vice

President will be held as well as voting on proposed Bylaws amendments. The attached ACWA

memo summarizes the election process and proposed amendments to ACWA's Bylaws. The

Bylaws amendments make changes in five areas:

1. Provides flexibility in appointing members to standing committees and provides

an odd number committee composition total.

2. Revises committee composition description for better uniformity.

3. Creates an agriculture committee to increase engagement from ACWA's

agricultural members,

4. Changes legal affairs committee so there is a resulting odd number committee

composition total. - _.

5. Revises the deadline to submit amendment requests from 30 to 90 days to

provide more time for review and analysis.

A copy of the proposed Bylaws amendments are enclosed with the Attachment.

RECOMMENDED AGTION:

1. Board designate the Auditor-Cbntroller as the District's voting delegate at the

ACWA General Session Membership meeting on November 29,2017 .

2. Authorize the Auditor-Controller to cast North Marin Water District's vote for

Brent Hastey as ACWA President and Steven LaMar for ACWA Vice President.

3. Authorize the Auditor-Controller to vote in the affirmative for the proposed ACWA

Approved by

Bylaw amendments

Date



ACVVA MEMORANDUM

RFCEf V'ËD

Associotion of Cqlifornio Woter Agencies

TO:

FROM:

DATE:

ACWA Members: General Managers and Board Presidents

ACWA Board of Directors

Timothy Quinn, ACWA Executive Director

October Lt,20L7 North Marirr Water District

cc
0Ui 1 / tutt

SUBJECT: General Session Membership Meeting at ACWA 20t7 Fall Conference

There will be a General Session Membership Meeting at the 20]-7 Fall Conference in Anaheim, California,

on Wednesday, November 29. The meeting will be held in the Platinum Ballroom 1-6, Marriott Anaheim,

at 1:20 p.m. The purpose of the meeting is to formally nominate and elect ACWA's President and Vice

President for the 2At8-20I9 term and to conduct a vote by the membership on proposed amendments

to ACWA's Bylaws as recommended by the Board of Directors at its meeting on September 29,2O17 .

Election of President/Vice President

The ACWA Nominating Committee has announced a 2018-20L9 slate that recommends current Vice

President Brent Hastey for ACWA President and current Federal Affairs Committee Chair Steven LaMar

for ACWA Vice President. As provided by ACWA's Bylaws (Article 9, Section 9) nominations from the

floor will be accepted prior to the vote. Such nominations and seconds must be supported by a resolu-

tion of the governing body of the member agency making and seconding such nomination. (See

attached for General Session/Election Procedures.)

Proposed Amendments to ACWffs Bylaws

As part of the ongoing efforts to ensure ACWA's Bylaws are current and reflect consistency with other

governance documents and daily operations, the Board of Directors is recommending several

amendments to the bylaws for consideration by the membership. A Legal Affairs Committee (LAC)

Workgroup reviewed the proposed amendments and provided an analysis pursuant to ACWA's Bylaws

(Article 9, Section 8).

Following is a list of the proposed amendments to the bylaws along with the rational for the change and

the LAC Workgroup's analysis.

SACRAMENTO 910 K Street, Suite 100, Sacramento, CA 95814 . (91ó) 441-4545
WASH INGTON, D.C. 400 North Capitol Street NW, Su¡te 357, Washington, DC 20001 . (202) 434-4760



ACWA Members: General Managers and Board Presidents
General Session Membership Meeting at ACWA 2OL7 Fall Conference
October !1,,2017 o Page 2

Article 7 - Standing Comm¡ttees

ACWA@

L. Section 4. Committee Cornnosition. Each limi d standine committee shall have a membershio
comoosition that is comorised of members in the ouantitv and with oualifications as defined bv the

tst osition shall not be included in the

mitiee com ostïton

committee chair shall. however, be a votins ber of their respective committee subiect to the
rules and orocedu res of each committee.

Ratíonale: Staff is recommending this amendment to the bylaws to allow the President

flexibility in appointing members to limited standing committees and to provide an odd

number committee composition total,

LAC Workgroup Analysis: The proposed revision is clear and meets its intended purpose

2. Committee Composition Terms in Sections 5 through L7.

Rationale. Staff noted that the use of the term "individual" versus "representative"
(and one instance of "member") was inconsistent throughout the committee
composition description for each of the standing committees in Article 7. Staff asl<ed the
LAC Worl<group to review Section 1, Qualifications, as well as each of the committee
descriptions to make a determination as to which term best applies for all of the

committees for purposes of consistency throughout Article 7.

LAC Workgroup Analysis: Reading of the various ACWA committee sections suggests

that "Member" would be the most appropriate word for consistcncy throughout the
bylaws. However, the use of a single term, may require some minor revisions to
surrounding text for clarity (for an example see Section 1-5 (State Legislative Committee)

where "membe/' is separately used to denote a "member agency" and so would need

to state "member-agency" consistently to accommodate the more general use of
"member" throughout the bylaws).

Staff Response: Staff revised the terms in the committee section descriptions (Sections

5 through 1-7) to "member" for consistency and the surrounding language where

needed in response to the LAC Workgroup's analysis. (See attached bylaws for
proposed amendments to these sections.)

3. Section 5. Aericulture Committee. There shall be n Asriculture Committee whose dutv it shall be to
recommend Association oolicv. oositions and rams to the Board of Directors. State Lesislative

Committee. Federal Affa irs Committee or other committees. as aþoroo riate, reearding agricultural
issues affectine the i sts of AeWA and its memh-r

member from each region.

ers. The committee shall consist of at least one
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ACwAb

Rationale: The 2016-2017 Busíness and Strategic Plan initiative to increase involvement

and engagement from ACWA's agricultural members has successfully generated

momentum amongst ACWA's agricultural members and a renewed attention to and

involvement in key policy issues that uniquely affect agricultural water suppliers. Amidst

this success, a concern has arisen that the momentum could be lost once the Board of

Directors finishes its current term and the initiative sunsets. This concern has sparked

the suggestion that ACWA should consider creating an Agriculture Committee as the

thirteenth standing committee of the Association to continue the objectives of the Ag

lnitiative long-term.

LAC Workgroup Analysis: The proposed revision is clean and meets its intended

purpose.

4. Section 12. Legal Affairs Committee. There shall be a Legal Affairs Committee whose duty it shall be

to support the mission of the Association, and more particularly to deal with requests for assistance

involving legal matters of significance to members.ef-the-Asse¡:iatien agencies, including but not

limited to state and federal court litigation, water rights matters, selected regulatory and resources

agency matters, proposed bylaw revisions, review of legislation as requested by the State Legislative

Committee, etc. The committee shall consider matters and issues submitted to it in order to

determine which ones are of major significance to the members-ef+he4sseeia+ien agencies and,

assuming a finding of major significance, recommend to the Board of Directors the position(s) which

the committee believes the Association should take with respect thereto. The committee shall be

composed of between 35 34 and 45 44 attorneys, each of whom shall be a member of the California

Bar and shall be, or act as, counsel for a member ef*he4sser:iatien.ffilgy, representing diverse

interests within the Association, including but not limited to, different geographical areas

throughout the state, large and small agencies, agricultural and urban agencies, agencies created

under the various enabling statutes, etc. Further, there shall be at least ene representative frem
¡nmmifloo chall ¡nncicl nf ¡ laaci nna mamhar on

Rationale: Change the committee composition range so there is a resulting odd number total

when the chair is added.

LAC Workgroup Analysis: Considered together with the general change in Section 4, Committee

Composition, above, this change accomplishes its purposes and maintains the current overall

LAC membership numbers.

Article 9 - Meeting of Members

5. Section 8. Amendments, Revisions, and Resolutions. Before any amendments or revisions to the

bylaws, or resolutions, may be considered at any meeting of the Association, any such amendment,

revision, or resolution shall be submitted to the executive director/secretary at least 39 90 days

prior to the first day of such meeting. The executive director/secretary shall promptly distribute any
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ACWA@

proposed amendments or revis¡ons to the Legal Affairs Committee for the Legal Affairs Committee
to develop an unbiased analysis of the amendments or revisions. Following development of an

analys¡s for the proposed amendments or revlsions, the executive director/secretary shall distribute
copies of any resolutions, amendments or revisions, including any applicable analyses, to all

members of the Association a+l€€s++ive not less than 10 days or more than 90 davs prior to
presentation at such meeting notice of the membersh

votine member of the Association consistent with the provisions defined in Section 3. The 3O iQ-day
rule may be suspended at a ny meeting of the Association by consent of three-fourths of the
members present. Voting on resolutions, amendments, or revisions shall proceed as provided by

Sections 3 5 and 4 6 of this Article.

Rationale: Staff recommended that the deadline for submitting requests for amendments,
revisions, and resolutions be changed from 30 to 120 days prior to any membership meeting to
provide the Legal Affairs Committee sufficient time to review and develop the required analysis

and for staff to provide adequate notice to the members as set forth in Article 9, Sections 3 and

4 of the bylaws. Note: Staff typically notifies ACWA members at least 45 days prior to a given

membership meeting to allow the member agency boards adequate time to designate their
authorized votine reoresentative.

I AC Wnrkprntln Analvqic' Thic nrnnncorì rarricinn ic rlorr rnrl moatc í+c in+on¡la¡l hr rrh^cô
'''''P.|,ulPvJu.

However, workgroup members did express some conÇern that the 1-20-day submission

requirement may unduly limit the Association's ability to quickly respond to state or federal
legislative or administrative acts appropriately. A supermajority of the Association may vote to
suspend the requirement, however, it may be advisable to require only 9O-days for submission

while retaining the general Association distribution timing of no later than L0-days and no

earlier than 9O-days prior to presentation at an Association meeting.

Staff Response: Staff revised the proposed amendment to state 90 days instead of 120 days in

response to the LAC Workgroup's analysis.

The Board of Directors recommends adoption of the proposed amendments to ACWA's Bylaws through
a vote of the membership.

Webinar on Proposed Amendments to Bylaws

ACWA staff is hosting a webinar on Tuesday, November 7, at L0:00 a.m. in advance of the membership
meeting to answer any questions members may have pertaining to the proposed amendments to the
bylaws. Please register for the webinar at the link listed below:

Please register for Bylaws Webinar on Nov 07,2OI7 1-0:00 AM PST at:
httos : //a tte n cle ,eotowebina r.com/resister/ 1.8153322847 13267 5

After registering, you will receive a confirrnation enrail containing information about joining the
webinar.
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Membership Voting Process

ACWA will issue each member agency present one proxy card for voting purposes based on the

designated voting representative identified by the member agency on the proxy designation form. The

designated voting representative is required to register and sign as the proxy holder to receive the proxy

card. Proxy cards will only be available for pick-up on Wednesday, November 29, between 9:00 a.m.

and 12:00 p.m. at the ACWA General Session Desk in the main foyer outside of the Marquis Ballroom

Center, Marriott Anaheim. The luncheon and General Session Membership Meeting will be held in the

Platinum Ballroom 1-6.

To expedite the sign-in process at the ACWA General Session Desk, please indicate your voting delegate

on the enclosed proxy designation form and return it by email (donnap@acwa.com) or fax

(916-325-4857) at your earliest convenience prior to conference. lf there is a last minute change of

delegate, please let us know before the meeting date by contacting ACWA's Clerk of the Board,

Don na Pa ngborn, at 9L6-44t-4545 or don na p @acwa.com.

lf you have any questions regarding this process, please contact Clerk of the Board Donna Pangborn at

the ACWA office at 916-44t-4545 or donnap@acwa.com.

dgp

Enclosures:

L. General Session/Election Procedures

2. Proposed ACWA Bylaws Amendments - Redline Version

3. Proxy Designation Form



The following information is provided to inform the ACWA member agency delegates attending the 2017 Fall Conference of

the procedures to be used pertaining to the nomination and election of ACWA officers and the vote by the membership on

proposed amendments to the bylaws during the General Session Membership Meeting.

pRoxy cARDS - (REQUTRED FOR VOTTNG)

ACWA will issue each member agency present one proxy card for voting purposes based on the designated voting

representative identified by the member agency. ln order to vote during the General Session Membership Meeting, the

designated voting representative is required to register and sign as the proxy holder by 12:00 p.m. on Wednesday,

November 29. Upon registration and sign-in, the voting delegate will receive the required proxy cards. Proxy cards will be

available for pick-up on Wednesday, November 29, between 9:00 a.m. and 12:00 p.m. at the ACWA General Session Desk

in the main foyer outside of the Marquis Ballroom Center, Marriott Anaheim. The luncheon and General Session

Membership Meeting will be held in the Platinum Ballroom 1-6.

GENERAL SESSION MEMBERSHIP MEETING, WEDNESDAY, NOV,29 (DOORS OPEN AT L:05 P.M.)

1, The General Session Membership Meeting will be called to order at L:20 p.m. and a quorum will be determined. The

presence of50 authorized voting representatives is required to establish a quorum fortransacting business.

2

3

Legal Affairs Committee ChairJeni Buckman will provide an overview of the agenda and election procedures.

Nominating Committee Chair John Coleman will present the committee's report and announce the candidate for ACWA

President.

4. President Kathy Tiegs will call for floor nominations for ACWA President.

lf there are no floor nominations for President, the election will proceed. President Tiegs will close the nominations and

delegates will vote by holding up their "Yes" or "No" proxy voting cards.

6. lf there are floor nominations for President, the nomination will follow the procedures established by Article 9 of

ACWA's Bylaws, stating floor nominations and seconds must be supported by a resolution of the governing body of the

member agency making and seconding such nomination. Note: lf there are floor nom¡nations, the election of officers

will proceed during Wednesday's General Session as outlined below and the proposed bylaws amendments will

move to the Thursday General Session Membership Meetíng as outlined in item 12 below.

a. Ballots will be distributed to the voting delegates.

b. Delegates will complete their ballots and place them in the ballot box, which will be centrally located in the

Platinum Ballroom L-6 meeting room.

Tellers' Committee will count the ballots. President Tiegs has appointed the following staff members to serve as the

Tellers'Committee: Clerk of the Board Donna Pangborn; Director, Business Development & Events Paula Currie; and

Executive Assistant Lili Vogelsang.

d. Legal Affairs Committee Chair Jeni Buckman will serve as the proctor to oversee the ballot counting process.

e. Candidates are welcome to designate an observerto be present during the ballot counting process.

Results of the ballot count will be announced. Election of ACWA's officers will be determined by a majority of the

members present and voting. lf any one candidate does not receive a majority of the vote, successive ballot counts

will be conducted until a candidate is elected, consistent with Robert's Rules of Order.

Þ next page

5

f



7. Nominating Committee Chair John Coleman will announce the candidate for ACWA Vice President.

B. President Kathy Tiegs will call for floor nominations for ACWA Vice President.

9. lf there a re no f loor nom inations for Vice Preside nt, the e lection will proceed. Presid ent Tiegs will close th e

nominations and delegates will vote by holding up their "Yes" or "No" proxy voting cards.

L0. lf there are floor nominations forVice President, the nominations will followthe procedures described in item 6 above,

and the election will proceed according to the steps outlined in 6.a. through 6.f.

IF THERE ARE NO FLOOR NOMINATIONS FOR THE ELECTION OF OFFICERS, THE WEDNESDAY

GENERAL SESSION MEMBERSHIP MEETING WILL PROCEED WITH A VOTE ON THE PROPOSED

AMENDM ENTS TO THE BYLAWS.

11. Legal Affairs Committee Chair Jeni Buckman will provide an overview of the proposed amendments to the bylaws.

a. Consideration of amendments to the bylaws.

b. Request for motion / second from the floor to approve the proposed amendments to the bylaws.

c. Discussion of proposed amendments.

d. Opportunity for members to offer changes to proposed amendments to the bylaws. Any proposed changes to the
bylaw amendments as currently proposed require a majority vote of the voting members present.

e. Call for the question. A two-thirds vote of the members present and voting is required to amend the ACWA Bylaws

IT THERE ARE FLOOR NOMINATIONS FOR THE ELECTION OF OFFICERS, THE OVERVIEW AND VOTE

ON THE PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO THE BYLAWS WILL BE TAKEN UP AT THE GENERAL SESSION

MEMBERSHIP MEETING ON THURSDAY AS FOLLOWS.

L2. The votc by thc mcmbcrship on the proposed amendments to the bylaws will occur at the Thursday, General Session

Membership Meeting, at the Platinum Ballroom 1-6, Anaheim Marriott, at L:20 p.m.

The General Session Membership Meeting will be called to order at 1:20 p.m. and a quorum will be determined
The presence of 50 formally designated voting representatives is required to establish a quorum for transacting

bu si ness.

b. Legal Affairs Committee Chair Jeni Buckman will provide an overview of the proposed bylaws amendments.

c. The meeting will proceed according to the steps outlined 11.a. through 1l-.e. above.

Rev:9/26/77
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EffiWA@.Associotion of Cofifornío WoterAgencies

ByI-Rws oF THE

ASsocIRrIoN oF CALIFoRNIA WATER ACEIICITS

(As omended by the Members on December 2, 2075)

Anncle 1- Gerurnnl

Section 1. Name. The name of this California nonprofit corporation shall be the Association of California

Water Agencies (hereinafter referred to as the Association).

Section 2. Principal Office. The principal office for the transaction of business of the Association is

located at 910 K Street, Suite l-00, Sacramento, California; provided, however, that the Board of
Directors may change the location of the principaloffice by resolution and without amendment of these

bylaws.

Section 3. Purposes. The purposes of the Association shall be to work together with its members and

others for the best interests of California and its citizens and landowners who use, need and depend

upon water; to encourage the orderly development of the waters of the state; to seek means of

obtaining and making available to all of California a dependable water supply of the best possible quality

at the lowest possible cost, giving due consideration to environmental factors involved therein; to
provide inspiration and leadership in meeting and solving the water supply problems of this state; to
propose and advocate such policies and measures-local, state and federal-that serve the best

interests of the Association, opposing those of contrary nature; to assist in promoting the health, safety

and welfare of the employees of its members; and to do all other things that are in the best interests of
its members.



BylRws oF THE AssoclRttoru op CRllroRNtA Wnrrn Acrrucrrs

ARnclr 2 - Mrn¡eERsHtp nrup Durs

Section 1. Membership.

A. Members. Only a public district, public agency, or public organization created and operated for
the purpose of controlling, treating, developing, acquiring, using or supplying water for any
hrrrh^c6 fnr inh¡hif¡h+c ^p l-^¡. '.,i+hi^ +L^ -+^+^ ^{ a^l;C^-^:^ ^- ¡^, rL^ --^r^-r:-.^ r--:.---- -.-rv, rrrrruvrrur¡Lr vr rorrur vvrLril¡r Lrrç JLdLg ut Ldilturiltd, ut tul Ultr ptuLcLLtull, uldllldH,g ul

reclamation of lands within the state of California, may become a member of the Association.
Such an entity will become a member upon written application, approval by the Board of
Directors, and the payment of the required dues. Acceptance to membership shall authorize full
participation in Association activities. Except as otherwise provided in subsection (B) below, in

no case may an organization other than a state, a political subdivision (as defined in 5 1-.103-1(b)

of the lncome Tax Regulations) of a state or an entity the income of which is excluded from
gross income under $ 115 of the lnternal Revenue Code be a member of the Association.

B. Honorary Life Members. Any person who has rendered conspicuous service in furthering the
purposes of the Association may, by vote of the Board of Directors, be granted an honorary life
membership in the Association without payment of dues or assessments. All past presidents of
the Association shall automatically be honorary life members without vote of the Board of
Directors. Honorary life members shall not be entitled to a vote or to hold office automatically
beCaUSg Of theif Stalr rc rc hnnnrarrr lifa mamharc

l^ Tormin¡iinn a{ l\/lamha*¡ l\r^ñl-^..1^¡^ -L^ll ^^^-^,,^^- +L^ Í^:1..-^ ^r --.. -^--L-- 
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dues provided for in Section 2 of th¡s Article. The membership of any member may be

terminated at any time by such member sending written notification of its intention to withdraw
to the Assr:ciation's principal office. The Board of Directors may terminate the membership of
any member upon 30 days' written notice by first-class mail when it is determined at any regular
Board meeting or at any special Board meeting called for that purpose that continuance of such

membership would not be in the best interests of the Association. Withdrawal or termination of
membership ends any participation in Association activities and shall terminate a member's
interest in the Association's assets.

Section 2. Dues. The annual dues of each member of the Association shall be established by the Board
of Directors; provided, however, that any member may apply for a change in its dues because of
conditions that differentiate such applicant from other members.

Section 3. Liability of Members. No member shall be liable for any obligation incurred by the
Association with the following exception: (1) the payment of the annual dues while it remains a

member; and (2) the payment of emergency assessments, which shall not exceed 1-0 percent of current
annual dues for each member in any calendar year while it remains a member, No emergency
assessment may be levied against anv member during its first two years of membership in the
Association.

As amended by the ACWA Members on December 2,2Ot5 Page | 2
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Annclr 3 - Orprcrns

Section 1. President and Vice President

A, General. The president and vice president of the Association shall be the elected officers of the

Association. At the time of their election the president and vice president shall each be an

elected or appointed member of the governing body or commission (as appropriate) of a

member agency of the Association. The president and vice president shall be elected by the

members of the Association at its fall conference in each odd-numbered year, shall take office

on January 1 of the calendar year following election, and shall hold office until such time as their

successors take office or are appointed. An elected president shall not be permitted to succeed

himself/herself to that office. Except as provided in this Article, should vacancies occur in either

office of the president or vice president, the Board of Directors shall appoint persons to fill such

offices for the unexpired terms thereof.

B. President. The president shall preside at all meetings of the Board of Directors, the Executive

Committee, and the general membership; shall appoint members of all committees, including

the chair and vice chair of each, upon recommendation from members and regions (as

communicated by the region chairs), with each such committee chair and vice chair ratified by

the Board of Directors; and shall perform all other duties necessary to carry out the functions of

the office. The president shall be a non-voting ex officio member of each committee, but shall

not be an ex officio member of the Nominating Committee or the region boards.

The president may be expelled from office with or without cause, upon the satisfaction of the

following two events: (1) a two-thirds vote of the Board of Directors; and (2) a subsequent

simple majority vote of the members of the Association during a meeting of the membership.

C. Vice President. The vice president shall, in the absence of the president, assume all of the duties

of that office and, if a vacancy occurs, succeed thereto for the unexpired term. The vice

president shall sit as a member of the Executive Committee of the ACWA Joint Powers lnsurance

Authority and shall perform such other duties as assigned by the president.

Section 2. Executive Director/Secretary and Control ler/Treasurer.

A. General. The executive director/secretary and controller/treasurer of the Association shall also

be officers of the Association. The executive director/secretary shall be appointed by and hold

office at the pleasure of the Board of Directors of the Association.

B. Executive Director/Secretary. The executive director/secretary shall: (1) advise and assist the

Board of Directors, all committees, the boards of each region, and the workgroups of each

region; (2) be responsible for administering the total operations of the Association; (3) employ,

direct, and release all employed staff in accordance with the policies adopted by the Board of

Directors and consistent with the budget adopted by the Board of Directors; (4) provide relevant

As amended by the ACWA Members on December 2,2O75 Page | 3
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information to the Board of Directors needed by the Board to tal<e actions; (5) give members
notice and record minutes of all meetings of the membership, Board of Directors, and Executive
Committee; and (6) have such other powers and perform such other duties as may be provided
and assigned by the Board of Directors directly or through the president of the Board or the
Executive Committee, The executive director/secretary, with the assistance of the
controller/treasurer, shall render a report to the Board of Directors at the first meeting
foilowing the close of each caiendar year showing the membership of the Association, the
receipts and expenditures during the year, and the work accomplished during the previous year.

C. Controller/Treasurer. The controller/treasurer shall report to and act under the direction of the
executive director/secretary. The controller/treasurer shall be a signatory on all accounts held
by the Association and shall act as a fiduciary for all assets of the Association.

Annclr 4 - Bonno oF DtREcroRs

Section 1. Membership. The Board of Directors shall consist of:

A. The Association president and vice president.

B. The chair and vice chair of each region,

C Tho rh¡ìr nf or¡h cf¡n¡lina ¡nmmìf*nntõ uvt ¡ tt I ¡tlLç9.

D. The most immediate active past president,

E. The vice president of the ACWA!oint Powers lnsurance Authority,

Section 2. Term of Office. The term of offíce of all members of the Board of Directors shall commence
on January 1- of the calendar year following election of the president and vice president, except for those
persons who serve on the Board of Directors by nature of their position as chairs of standing
committees, whose terms shall instead commence upon their ratification by the Board of Directors.
Except as provided in Article 4, Section 11, the term of office for all members of the Board of Directors
shall terminate on December 3L of the following odd-numbered year two years later, or until their
successors ta ke office.

Section 3. Attendance Requirement. Any member of the Board of Directors who misses two
consecutive regular Board meetings without being excused by the Board will no longer be a member of
the Board of Directors.

Section 4. Regular Meetings. Regular meetings of the Board of Directors shall be held bimonthly at such
times and places as the Board may determine,

Section 5. Special Meetings. Special meetings rnay be called by the president upon the president's own
volition or shall be called by the president when requested in writing by five directors. prior to
conducting such a special meeting, the president shall consult with the Executive Committee to ensure

As amended by the ACWA Members on December Z, ZOts Page | 4
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that adequate information is available to the Board of Directors for any necessary decisions; and where

such meeting is called upon the president's own volition, the president shall also consult with the

Executive Committee as to the necessity of the special meeting. Notice for special meetings shall be

provided in the following manner: (1) upon 1-0 days' written notice sent by mail to each director and

addressed to each at the address as shown upon the records of the Association; or (2) upon 48 hours'

notice with notice provided by electronic means. When the meeting is called upon the president's own

volition, the president shall choose the form of notice; when the meeting is called by a request of five

directors, the five directors shall choose the form of notice and the president shall promptly call the

meeting. No business except those items described in the notice shall be transacted at any special

meeting, except by consent of three-fourths of the members of the Board of Directors present.

Section 6. Meeting Requirements and Quorums. Any meeting, regular or special, may be held in person

or by telephone conference, web video conference, or other electronic video screen communication or

electronic transmission. At any meeting of the Board of Directors, the attendance of 50 percent of the

voting members of the Board of Directors, or their permitted alternates as specified in these bylaws,

shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of any business. The Board may hold a closed session for

discussion of personnel matters or enforcement of violations of the code of conduct.

Section 7. Alternates. Each region shall designate an alternate for each chair and vice chair, who shall

meet the qualification requirements for chair and vice chair, to act at meetings of the Board of Directors

when the chair or vice chair is unable to attend. The vice chair of each standing committee will be the

alternate to act at meetings of the Board of Directors when the chair is unable to attend. An alternate

may not act or vote on behalf of more than one member of the Board of Directors. A member of the

Board of Directors may not act as an alternate for any other member.

Section 8. Vacancies for Standing Committee Chairs and Vice Chairs. Should a vacancy occur in the

office of any standing committee chair or vice chair before the end of the term, the president shall

appoint a new committee chair or vice chair to fulfill the unexpired term of such committee chair or vice

chair subject to ratification by the Board of Directors. A vacancy in the office of any such standing

committee chair or vice chair as described in the previous sentence shall be deemed to exist when the

chair or vice chair: (1-) resigns the office; (2) no longer is an officer, employee, or member of the

governing body of a member agency of the Association, or other representative duly designated by a

member agency of the Association to represent that member; or (3) is otherwise removed by a member

agency of the Association.

Section 9. Duties, Authorities, and Delegation. Subject to the provisions and limitations of California

Nonprofit Corporatìon Law, other applicable laws, and the provisions of these bylaws, the Association's

activities and affairs are to be exercised by or under the direction of the Association's Board of Directors.

The Board of Directors is responsible for the overall supervision, control, and direction of the

Association. The Board of Directors shall: (L) employ and release the executive director/secretary; (2) set

performance expectations for the executive director/secretary; (3) receive, review, and consider

approval of executive director/secretary recommended compensation, other terms and conditions of

As amended by the ACWA Members on December 2,2OI5 Page | 5
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employment, and annual evaluations as prepared by the Executive Committee; (4) annually adopt a

budget; and (5) set the level of dues for the Association. Except as to the duties listed in the previous

sentence, and subject to Article 3, Section 2, the Board of Directors may delegate the supervision,

control, and direction of the Association's affairs to any person or group, including a committee,
provided the Association Board retains ultimate responsibility for the actions of such person or group.

Where such powers are delegated, the delegation shall be documented in writing.

Section 10. lmmediate Past President. The immediate past president automatically assumes this
position after serving as the Association's elected president and is a voting member of the Board of
Directors and Executive Committee. The term of office for the immediate past president shall

commence on January 1" of the calendar year following election of the president and vice president and

shall terminate on December 3L of the following odd-numbered year two years later, ln the event the
most immediate active past president is unavailable to serve, the most recent and available active past

president in succession shall serve in this capacity.

Section 11. Code of Conduct of Board Members.

A. Code of Conduct: Purpose and Adoption. The Board of Directors shall establish, and update as

appropriate, a code of conduct for its Directors that recognizes the Association's commitment of
integrity, respect, and fair representation to its members and the public they serve and

establishes minimum ethical standards for the performance of the duties of office. The code

shall be consistent with the procedural processes contained in this section. The code shall be

distributed to all new Direetors and shall be distributed annually to all members of the
Association.

B. Violations and Ënforeement Process. A violation of the code of conduct may result in removal,
public censure, or private reprimand of a Director, or such other action as contained in the code

of conduct. However, removal and public censure shall be reserved only for serious violations. A

Director may not be removed or publically censured absent an affirmative vote of two-thirds of
the voting members of the Board of Directors. A Director may be privately reprimanded for a

violation of the code of conduct upon the majority vote of the quorum, Complaints of violation
of the code of conduct may be filed with the president, or the vice-president if the allegations

are made against the president. The president may refer a complaint of violation to the
executive director/secretary for investigation. The executive director/secretary may retain a

special investigator or special counsel to conduct or assist the investigation. A Director accused

of a violation shall be provided a copy of the complaint. A Director that takes any hostile or
retaliatory action, directly or indirectly, against a complainant is subject to removal from the
Board in conformance with the process identified above. Prior to scheduling a Board action on a

complaint, the president shall consult with the Executive Committee and the chair of the Legal

Affairs Commìttee. A Director accused of a violation of the code of conduct shall be provided at
l^^^t 4t )----, .-.-:!r--- Lred5r l-) udys wftrrcil iluLrue or afry flreeltrìg oì trìe öo¿ìr0 ¿lt wnlcn a oetermtnailon oT

enforcement will be considered. A determination of enforcement may be made only at a regular

As amended by the ACWA Members on December 2,2015 Page I 6
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meeting of the Board and shall be made in closed session. The determinations of the Board

under this section shall not be admissible in any criminal or civil proceeding brought against the

Director for conduct that violates any other law,

ARncle 5 - Reerorus

Section 1. Boundaries of Each Region

A. There shall be a maximum of L0 regions within the state. The Board of Directors shall determine

the regional boundaries. lnsofar as is practicable, the regions shall have a numerical balance in

members of the Association; make geographic sense; and promote regional problem solving.

B. A member of the Association may file a written petition to the Board of Directors requesting a

change in regions. Such petition shall set forth the reasons for such requested change, The

Board shall, within a reasonable time, act upon such petition and set forth the reasons for its

action, Such action by the Board shall be based on factors in (A) above, as well as others deemed

by the Board of Directors to be relevant to the decision.

Section 2. Officers.

A. The officers of each region shall be a chair and vice chair and three to five region board

members who shall be elected by the region by September 30, or the preceding Friday if
September 30 falls on a weekend, of odd-numbered years. A region may maintain a board of
fewer than five but not less than three members as provided in the region's rules and

regulations. The officers of the region board shall take office on January L of the calendar year

following election and shall hold office for two years, or until their successors take office.

Regions shall hold elections by electronic ballot. ACWA staff shall verify the legitimacy of the

ba llots.

B. The officers of each region sha ll: (1) exercise the powers a nd perform duties of the region du ring

the interim between region meetings; and (2) make recommendations to the president

regarding appointments to committees. The chair and vice chair shall be the region's

representatives to the ACWA Board of Directors.

C. Each officer of a region shall be an officer, employee, or member of the governing body of a

member agency of the Association, or other representative duly designated by a member

agency of the Association to represent that member at the time of the appointment. Where an

individual ceases to meet these criteria during the term of the office, the individual may not

serve during the remaining term of that office unless that individual can again meet the criteria

for the office and is appointed to complete the term. The region board may adopt more

stringent criteria for board member qualifications as part of the region's rules and regulations,

D. Should a vacancy occur in any of the region board positions before the end of the term, the

remaining members of the region board shall appoint a new member. Avacancy in the office of

As amended by the ACWA Members on December 2,201,5 Page | 7
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any region board position shall be deemed to exist when a region board member: (i.) resigns the
office; (2) no longer is an officer, employee, or member of the governing body of a member
agency of the Association, or other representative duly designated by a member of the
Association to represent that member; or (3) is otherwise removed by a member agency of the
Association.

Seetion 3. Nominating Commlttees. There shall be a ncrninating committee for each i.egion consisting
of three or more designees, each representing a member of the Association located within the region,
appointed by the chair of the region and approved by the region board. Nominating committees shall be

formed by February 28 of each odd-numbered year. The nominating committee shall announce its
nominations for chair, vice chair, and region board members by August L of an election year. All regions
must complete the election process by September 30 of the election year, or the preceding Friday if the
September 30 falls on a weekend,

Seetion 4. Meetings. The meetings of each region shall be held at both the spring and fall conferences
and at such other times and places as may be determined by the region chair. Representatives of five or
more members of the Association from the region present at any region meeting shall constitute a

quorum for purposes of conducting the business of the region. Any meeting, regular or special, may be

held in person or by telephone conference, web video conference, or other electronic video screen
communication or electronic transmission.

Section 5. Workgroups. Workgroups may be appointed by the region chair as needed.

Section 6. Rules. Each region shall organize and adopt rules and regulations for the conduct of its
meetings and affairs not inconsistent with the Articles of lncorporation or bylaws of the Association.
Each region shall abide by the code of conduct adopted by the Board of Directors of the Association.

Annclr 6 - ExrcunvE CoMMtrrEE

Section 1. Membership. There shall be an Executive Committee consisting of the following: the
president of the Association, who shall be the chair thereof; the vice president; the most immediate
active past president; the chair of the Finance Committee; and three at-large representatives selected
from and by the members of the Board of Directors. The election of the three at-large representatives to
the Executive Committee shall occur at the first Board of Directors meeting held in each even-numbered
year and the elected representatives shall serve immediately following their election and until such time
as their successors take office. To the extent practical, the Executive Committee should be constituted
so as to reflect the geographic extent of the Association and the functions of the members of the
Association.

Section 2. Powers. The Executive Committee shall have the following authority:

^ 
ñ^-------l --.1-!- ! rA. Personne¡. 5ubject to the budgei adopied by the Boarci of Directors, the Ëxecutive Committee
shall perform the following personnel actions: (L) recommend compensation for the executive
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director/secretary to the Board of Directors for approval; (2) perform annual reviews of the
executive director/secretary and submit that review to the Board of Directors; (3) review and

approve the classification and compensation plan and publicly posted salary schedule for
Association employees submitted by the executive director/secretary, which shall be reviewable
by the Board of Directors, in closed session, upon request of the Board of Directors; (4) establish
personnel policies for the conduct and behavior of employees, which shall be reviewable by the
Board of Directors; and (5) undertake such other personnel actions as may be requested by the
executive director/secretary in support of his or her oversight of all other personnel matters,
which shall be reviewable by the Board of Directors, in closed session, upon request of the
Board of Directors.

B. Delegation. The Executive Committee may act pursuant to any authority specifically delegated

to it by the Board of Directors. The delegation shall indicate whether the authority is still subject
to the ultimate authority of the Board.

C. Authority to Act Between Meetings. The Executive Committee may act for the Board of
Directors between Board meetings when calling a special meeting of the Board of Directors is

impracticable, provided that no such action of the Executive Committee shall be binding on the
Board of Directors until authorized or approved by the Board. The Executive Committee has the
authority to authorize actions recommended by the Legal Affairs Committee (such as the filing
of letter briefs and amicus curiae briefs) by electronic means without the need for an in-person

or telephonic meeting, but such actions shall be ratified by the Board of Directors at its next

meeting.

Section 3. Reporting. The president, or any person designated by the president, shall report to the
Board of Directors, at each regular Board meeting, any action taken by the Executive Committee since

the last preceding regular Board meeting. The minutes of Executive Committee meetings, which at that
time may still be in draft form, shall be mailed (usingthe U.S. Postal Service, express delivery, electronic
means, or otherwise) to each member of the Board of Directors at least five days prior to Board

meetings, except in cases in which the Executive Committee meets during or immediately prior to a

conference of the Association or immediately prior to a Board meeting, in which case the minutes,
which may still be in draftform, shall be mailed to each director promptlythereafter.

Section 4. Meetings. The Execut¡ve Committee shall hold regularly scheduled meetings as set by the
president. Special meetings of the Executive Committee may be called by the president upon notice to
the members of that committee or upon written request of three Executive Committee members.

Notice for special Executive Committee meetings shall be provided to the entire Board: (1) upon five
days' written notice sent by mail, or (2) upon 24 hours' notice with notice provided by electronic means;

and all such meetings shall be open to the Board of Directors. Any meeting, regular or special, may be

held in person or by telephone conference, web video conference or other electronic video screen

communication or electronic transmission. All members of the Board of Directors may attend any

meeting of the Executive Committee. Meetings of the Executive Committee may be closed to others at
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thediscretionofthePresidentorcommittee. OnlymembersoftheExecutiveCommitteeareallowedto
vote on matters at a meeting of the committee.

Section 5. Minutes. The minutes of the Executive Comrnittee rneetings shall be kept by the executive
director/secretary at the Association's principal office. Actions of the Executive Committee shall be

reported to the Board of Directors as provided in Section 3 of this Article and shall be available to any
memlfef Of the BOafd nf lìirprtnrc unnn rpnupctt^ thrr avarrrfivo dirnrfnrlcnrrat=r'.t

Anncle 7 - SrnruotNG CoMMtrrEEs

Section 1. Qualification. ln order to serve on any ACWA standing committee, an individual must be an

officer, employee, or member of the governing body of a member agency of the Association, or other
representative duly designated by a member agency of the Association to represent that member at the
time of the appointment. Where an individual ceases to meet these criteria during the term of the
appointment, the individual may not serve during the remaining term of that appointment unless that
individual can again meet the criteria for appointment and is appointed to complete the term.

Section 2. Term of Office. The term of office of standing committee members shall be two years

commencing on January 1 of each even-numbered year. The term of office of standing committee chairs
and vice chairs shall be approximately two years and shall commence as soon after January 1 of the
even-numbered year as they may be appointed by the president and ratified by the then-seated Board
of Directors, and shall terminate on December 3L of the odd-numbered year approximately two years
l-+^- ^-..*til.L-:.-tdLct ut uilLil Utcil suuLessurS ilf e dppotntec ano raïlTlco.

Section 3. Meetings. Meetíngs of standing committees may be called at such times and places

designated by the respective chair thereof except where provided otherwise by these bylaws. Subject to
the provisions of these bylaws and any actions that may be taken by the Board of Directors, the chairs of
each standing committee may establish their own rules for the efficient operation of the committee
they each chair. The chairs of each standing committee are authorized to create subcommittees and
workgroups in order to complete the work of the committee.

Section 4. Com Composition. Each limited standine committee shall ha a membership
comoosition that is comori sed of members in the ouantitv and with ouali ions as defined bv the

of these laws. hair sition e maxtmum cou
rmtnt

shall. however,
n total ittee. The comm

a votine member of their resoe ive committees subiect to the rules and procedures
of each ittee.

Rationale: Staff is recommending this amendment to the Bylaws to allow the president

flexibility in appointing members to limited standing committees and to provide an odd number
com mittee composition total.

IAC Workgroup Analysis: The proposed revision is clear and meets its intended purpose.
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Committee Composition Terms in Sections 5 through 17

Rationale: Review of Committee Composition Terms: Staff noted that the use of the term

"individual" versus "representative" (and one instance of "member") was inconsistent

throughout the committee composition description for each of the standing committees in

Article 7. Slaff asked the LAC Workgroup to review Section 1", Qualifications, as well as each of

the committee descriptions to make a determination as to which term would best apply for all

of the committees for purposes of consistency throughout Article 7,

LAC Workgroup Analysis: Reading of the various ACWA committee sections suggests that

"Member" would be the most appropriate word for consistency throughout the By-Laws.

However, the use of a single term, may require some minor revisions to surrounding text for

clarity (for an example see Section 1-5 (State Legislative Committee) where "member" is

separately used to denote a "member agency" and so would need to state "member-agency"

consistently to accommodate the more general use of "member" throughout the By-Laws).

Staff Response: Staff revisedthetermsinthecommitteesectionsto"member"forconsistency

and the surrounding language where needed in response to the LAC Workgroup's analysis.

Section 5. Agriculture Committee. There shall be an Agriculture Committee whose dutv it shall be to

recommend Association policv, positions and ms to the Board of Directors. State Leeislative

Committee. Federal Affairs Committee or other mittees. as aoorooriate. resardine asricultural

issues affectins the interests of ACWA and its me bers. The committee shall consist of at least one

member fro each resion

Rat¡onale: The 201.6-20L7 Business and Strategîc Plan initiative to increase involvement and

engagement from ACWA's agricultural members has successfully generated momentum

amongst ACWA's agricultural members and a renewed attention to and involvement in key

policy issues that uniquely affect agricultural water suppliers. Amidst this success, a concern has

arisen that the momentum could be lost once the Board of Directors finishes its current term

and the initiative sunsets. This concern has sparked the suggestion that ACWA should consider

creating an Agriculture Committee as the thirteenth standing committee of the Association to

continue the objectives of the Ag lnitiative long-term.

LAC Workgroup Analysis: The proposed revision is clean and meets its intended purpose.

Section-4 6. Business Development Committee. There shall be a Business Development Committee

whose duty it is to develop and recommend to the Board of Directors programs and activities to be

provided or administered by the Association that generate non-dues revenue and provide a service or

benefittoMmemberagencies.Thecommitteeshallconsistofatleastone
@rom each region and from tåe-q¡y o[

the other standing committees.
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Section-S1" Communications Committee. There shall be a Communications Committee whose duty it
shall be to develop and mal<e recommendations to the Board of Directors regarding a comprehensive
internal and external communications program for the Association and to promote development of
sound public information and education programs and practices among members-e$-the-A+seeiatien
asencies. The committee shall consist of no more than 40 +nd+víds+l€rnflþgiå, Of+ga+-n+¡m¡,efiIhg
committee shall consist of at least one i@from each region.

Section--6-.$. Energy Committee. There shall be an Energy Committee whose duty it shall be to
recommend policies and programs to the Board of Directors and to the State Legislative Committee
and/or Federal Affairs Committee as appropriate. The committee shall consist of at least one

@from each region.

Section:Z]$. Federal Affairs Committee. There shall be a Federal Affairs Committee whose duty it shall

be to review all federal legislative proposals and regulatory proposals affecting meffi.berF€fth€
@afterconsultingwithotherappropriatecommittees,andtodevelop
Association positions consistent with existing policy, where it has been established; recommend
sponsorship of bills that will resolve problems or improve conditions for members-€f-+h€*Âs€€€í€++e{+

agencies; and assist in the establishment of the Association's federal legislative program. The committee
shallconsistofatleastone-a+d.þutnomorethanfive@reimeachregion.

Section-8.!Q. Finance Committee. There shall be a Finance Committee whose duty it shall be to make

recommendations to the Board of Directors regarding annual budgets, dues formula and schedules and

other revenue-producing income, annual audit and selection of an auditor, and investment strategies.

The committee shall consist of the president and vice president of the Association as ex officìo
members, ither the chair or ví

Aæ-q-ç-14"!i.-o.-n/5 ef the reÊien bea 10 regionstoards{eithe+$ai.n-e+-viee
ehair},andoneadditional@romeachregionwithexperienceinfinancialmatters.

Section€.!!. Groundwater Committee. There shall be a Groundwater Committee whose duty it shall be

to recommend policies and programs to the Board of Directors and to the State Legislative Committee
and/or Federal Affairs Committee as appropriate. The committee shall consist of at least one

@romeachregion.

Section-S0 12. LegalAffairs Committee. There shall be a Legal Affairs Committee whose duty it shall be

to support the mission of the Association, and more particularly to deal with requests for assistance
involvinglegalmattersofsignificancetomember@,includingbUtnotlimited
to state and federal court litigation, water rights matters, selected regulatory and resources agency

matters, proposed bylaw revisions, review of legislation as requested by the State Legislative

Committee, etc. The committee shall consider matters and issues submitted to it in order to determine
whichoneSareofmajorsignificancetothemember@and,assuminga
finding of major significance, recommend to the Board of Directors the position(s) which the committee
l¡elieves the Association should take with respect thereto, The committee shall be composed of

I bet*"un 35 J.4 a nd 45 44 attorneys, each of whom sha ll be a member of the Ca lifornia Ba r a nd sha ll be,
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oractas,counselforamember@,representingdiverseinterestswithinthe
Association, including but not limited to, different geographical areas throughout the state, large and

small agencies, agricultural and urban agencies, agencies created under the various enabling statutes,

etc.

committee shall consist of at least one member from each region.

Rationale: Change the committee composition range so there is a resulting odd number total

when the chair is added.

LAC Workgroup Analysis: Considered together with the general change in Section 4, Committee

Composition above, this change accomplishes its purposes and maintains the current overall

LAC mem bership numbers.

Section44-!9. Local Government Committee. There shall be a Local Government Committee whose

duty it shall be to recommend policies to the State Legislative Committee, as appropriate, and Board of

Directors on matters affecting water agencies as a segment of local government in California. The

committeeshallconsistofatleastone,anc_þg!-nomorethanthree@fromeach
region.

Section4il,l¿!. Membership Committee. There shall be a Membership Committee whose duty it shall be

to assist staff in developing membership recruitment and retention programs, make recommendations

to the Board of Directors regarding membership policies, eligibility, and applications for membership

and review and make recommendations to the Finance Committee regarding an equitable dues

structure. The committee shall consist of at least one member from each region.

Section*13.!!. State Legislative Committee. There shall be a State Legislative Committee whose duty it

shallbetoreviewallstatelegislativeproposalsaffectingmember@andto
establish Association positions, consistent with existing policy, where it has been established; sponsor

billsthatwillresolveproblemsorimproveconditionsformember-@;and
assist in the establishment of the Association's legislative program. The committee shall consist of

@representingavarietyoftypesof@andatleastone-a+d,
but no more than four i++d¡vidua+s-m€mþqlfrom each region.

Section4416. Water Management Committee. There shall be a Water Management Committee whose

duty it shall be to recommend policy and programs to the Board of Directors on any area of concern in

water management. The committee shall consist of at least one, but -a++4no more than four individuals

members from each region.

Section-tr5.!2. Water Quality Committee. There shall be a Water Quality Committee whose duty it shall

be to develop and recommend Association policy, positions, and programs to the Board of Directors, to

promote cost-effective state and federal water quality regulations that protect the public health, to

enableinterestedmember@tojointogethertodevelopandcoordinatewith
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other organizations, and to present unified comments regarding agricultural and domestic water quality
regulations. The committee shall consist of at least one indivíduat¡smþe¡from each region.

Annc¡.e I - Sprc¡nl CouNc¡Ls, CoMMtrrEEs, AND Tnsx Foncrs

Section 1. Council of Past Presidents. There shall be a Council of Past Presidents composed of all past
presidents of the Association who serve on the councii uniil each is no ionger abie to or wishes to serve.
The council shall provide a mechanism for past presidents to continue to make valuable contributions to
the Association. W¡th approval of the Board of Directors, the president and/or executive
director/secretary may assign specific responsibilities to the council from time to time, Members of the
Council of Past Presidents are invited to attend and participate in the Association's Board meetings.

Section 2. Nominating Committee. There shall be a Nominating Committee consisting of five or more
persons appointed by the president prior to the Association's fall conference in each odd-numbered
year, whose purpose shall be to nominate qualified individuals for the offices of president and vice
president of the Association. The Nominating Committee shall publish its nominations for the offices of
president and vice president of the Association not less than LO or more than 90 days before the
membership meeting is held at fall conference. Additional nominations may be made by any member of
the Association for candidates for the office of president and vice president. ArJditional nominations
shall be made from the floor during the election of president and vice president at the mernbership
mna+inn .^L^¡',1^J f^- -^il ^.¡rrçç1il¡õ JvttçuutEu tut Jdtu put pu5c5.

Qo¡tinn ? rìrhor r^*tmittees and Task Fo¡'ces. Other committees and task forces may be appointed by
the president from time to time as needed, consistent with and supportive of the mission of the
Association.

Anr¡cle 9 - MrenNGs oF Me nneens

Section 1. Meetings. Meetings of the members of the Association shall be held at the Association's
conferences at such times as may be determined by the Board of Directors to conduct necessary
business and to elect the president and vice president, which occurs at the fall conference in each odd-
numbered year.

Section 2. Special Meetings. Special meetings of the members of the Association may be called by the
Board of Directors, the president of the Board of Directors, or by 5 percent or more of the members of
the Association. Except when called by the Board, a request for a special meeting must be in writing and
must be delivered in person or mailed by first-class mail addressed to the president of the Board at the
principal office of the Association, with a copy to the executive director/secretary. The request must
state the general nature of the business proposed to be transacted at the meeting,

A special meeting that has been called by written request of 5 percent of the member agencies of the
Association to the Board of Directors shall be set by the Board of D¡rectors on a date that is not less than
35 or more than 90 days after receipt of the request.
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Section 3. Notice Requirements for Membership Meetings. Written notice of any membership meeting

shall be given to each voting memberof the Association. The notice shall state the date, time, and place

of the meeting; the means by which members may participate; and the general nature of the business to

be transacted. The notice of any meeting at which Board officers are to be formally nomÌnated and

elected shall include the names of the recommended slate of candidates forthe offices of president and

vice president in addition to the election procedures. The member notification information shall also be

posted on the Association's website.

Except as otherwise provided in these bylaws or California law, a written notice of regular membership

meetings shall be given not less than i.0 or more than 90 days before the date of the meeting to each

member who, on the record date for notice of the meeting, is entitled to vote; provided, however, that

if notice is given by mail, and the notice is not mailed by first-class, registered, or certified mail, that

notice shall be given not less than 20 days before the meeting.

Section 4. Notice Requirements for Special Meetings. The executive director/secretary shall cause

notice to be given to all members of the Association of the date, time, and place of the meeting and the

general nature of the business to be transacted at the meeting. No business except that specified in the

request and notice may be transacted at said special meeting. lf notice of the requested special meeting

is not given within 20 days after receipt of the request, the person or persons requesting the meeting

may give the notice.

Section 5. Voting. Each member of the Association shall be entitled to one vote that shall be cast by its

authorized representative. All questions, except amendments or revisions of these bylaws, shall be

determined by a majority of the members present and voting. A roll call may be requested by any

representative.

Section 6. Amendment of Bylaws. These bylaws may be amended or revised by two-thirds of the

member agencies of the Association present and voting at any meeting.

Section 7. Quorums. The presence of the authorized representative of 50 members of the Association at

any meeting of the members shall constitute a quorum for transacting business.

Section 8. Amendments, Revisions, and Resolutions. Before any amendments or revisions to the

bylaws, or resolutions, may be considered at any meeting of the Association, any such amendment,

revision, or resolution shall be submitted to the executive director/secretary at least 3g 9q days prior to

the first day of such meeting. The executive director/secretary shall promptly distribute any proposed

amendments or revisions to the Legal Affairs Committee for the Legal Affairs Committee to develop an

unbiased analysis of the amendments or revisions. Following development of an analysis for the

proposed amendments or revisions, the executive director/secretary shall distribute copies of any

resolutions, amendments or revisions, including any applicable analyses, to all members of the

Associationdaysormorethan90davspriortopresentationatsuch
meeting, The written notice of the membership meeting shall be eiven to each votine member of the

Association consistent with the provisions defined in Section 3. The 30 90-day rule may be suspended at
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any meeting of the Association by consent of three-fourths of the members present, Voting on
resolutions, amendments, or revisions shall proceed as provided by Sections3 5 and 46 of this Article.

Staff Rationale: Staff is recommended that the deadline for submitting requests for
amendments, revisions, and resolutions be changed from 30 lo I20 days prior to any

membership meeting to provide Legal Affairs Committee sufficient time to review and develop
thp reollirpd analr¡cic an.l fr'r <feff tn nrnr¡ido adenrrata nnfi¡o tn fho momharc .c c6l- fnrth in

"''.',''.qvvYggl!

Article 9, Sections 3 and 4 of the Bylaws. Note: Staff typically notifies ACWA members at least 45

prior to a given membership meeting to allow the agency boards to designate their authorized
representative.

LAe Workgroup Analysis: This proposed revision is clear and meets its intended purpose.

However, subcommittee members did express some concern that the l2}-day submission
requirement may unduly limit the Association's ability to quickly respond to state or federal
legislative or administrative acts appropriately. A supermajority of the Association may vote to
suspend the requirement, however, it may be advisable to require only 9O-days for submission
while retaining the general Association distribution timing of no later than L0-days and no

earlier than 9O-days prior to presentation at an Association meeting.

Staff Response: Staff revised the proposed amendment to state 90 days instead of I2O days in

response to the LAC Workgroup's analysis.

Section 9. Nomination of Presldent and Vice President.

A. Qualification. At the time of their election, the president and vice president of the Association
shall each be an elected or appointed member of the governing body or commissîon (as

appropriate) of a member agency of tlre Association.

B. Nominating Committee Process. All nominations for the positions of president and vice
president shall be accompanied by an official resolution from the Association member agency
on whose board the nominee serves. Said resolution shall be signed by an authorized signatory
of the member agency's Board of Directors.

C. Nominations from the Floor. Additional nominations may be made by any member of the
Association for the office of president and vice president, Said nominations and seconds shall be

made from the floor during the election of the offices of president and vice president at the
membership meeting scheduled for said purposes (as provided for in the penultimate sentence
of Article 8, Section 2). Such nominations and seconds shall be made by a member of the
Association and must be supported by a resolution of the governing body of the member
making and seconding such nomination. The member agency on whose board the nominee
serves shall submit a resolution of support if they are not the agency making the floor
nnminafinn nr ca¡nnd
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Section 10. Additional Procedures for Election of Officers. The Board shall have the authority to

develop additional procedures for elections of president and vice president when not otherwise covered

by these bylaws.

Annclr 10 -lruoe vrNrFrcATtoN oF DrREcroRs, OFFIcERs, AND Orurn Ae rrurs

Section 1. Right of lndemnity. To the fullest extent permitted by law, this Corporation shall indemnify its

Directors, Officers, employees, and other persons described in Section 7237(a) of the California

Corporations Code, including persons formerly occupying any such position, against all expenses,

judgments, fines, settlements and other amounts actually and reasonably incurred by them in

connection with any "proceeding," as that term is used in that Section, and including an action by or in

the right of the Corporation, by reason of the fact that the person is or was a person described in that

section. "Expenses," as used in this bylaw, shall have the same meaning as in Section 7237(a) of the

California Corporations Code.

Section 2. Approval of lndemnity. On written request to the Board by any person seeking

indemnification under Section 7237(b\ or Section 7237(cl of the California Corporations Code, the Board

shall promptly determine under Section 7237(e) of the California Corporations Code whether the

applicable standard of conduct set forth in Section 7237(b) or Section 7237(c) has been met and, if so,

the Board shall authorize indemnification.

Section 3. Advancement of Expenses. To the fullest extent permitted by law and except as otherwise

determined by the Board in a specific instance, expenses incurred by a person seeking indemnification

under these bylaws in defending any proceeding covered by those Sections shall be advanced by the

Corporation before final disposition of the proceeding, on receipt by the Corporation of an undertaking

by or on behalf of that person that the advance will be repaìd unless it is ultimately determined that the

person is entitled to be indemnified by the Corporation for those expenses.

Section 4. Insurance. The Corporation shall have the right to purchase and maintain insurance to the full

extent permitted by law on behalf of its Off¡cers, Directors, employees, and other agents, against any

liability asserted against or incurred by any officer, director, employee, or agent in such capacity or

arising out of the officer's, director's, employee's or agent's status as such.

ARncle 11 - MrscELLANEous

Section 1. Conduct of Meetings. All meetings of the Association shall be conducted in accord with the

code of conduct and in substantial accordance with the latest edition of Robert's Rules of Order Newly

Revised unless the Board adopts alternate rules of conduct for itself and/or its committees, region

boards, and region workgroups.

Section 2. Funds. The funds of the Association shall be used to further the aims and purposes of this

Association. They shall be kept by the controller/treasurer and paid out by checks or other electronic

means, which shall only be valid with two authorized signatures. The Board of Directors shall designate
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by resolution which persons, other than the controller/treasurer, may sign for expenditures. The Finance

Committee shall implement procedures to ensure necessary internal controls over the receipt and

expenditures of Association funds and arrange for an external audit. Audìt reports shall be presented to
the Board of Directors.

Section 3. Disposition of Assets upon Dissolution. The Association's properties and assets are

irrevocablv dedicated to the fulfillment of the Association's purposes as described in Article 2 of the

Articles of lncorporation, No part of the Association's net earnings, properties and assets, on dissolution

or otherwise, may inure to the benefit of any private person. Upon the dissolution of the Association, all

debts thereof shall be paid and its affairs settled, and all remaining assets shall be distributed to the
Association's member political subdivisions for a public purpose, consistent with the provisions of the

California Nonprofit Corporation Law relating to public benefit corporations then in effect and with the

Articles of I ncorporation.

Section 3. Definitions. As used in these bylaws, the term "notice provided by electronic means" shall

refer to notice given by fax or e-mail.

Amended comprehensively December l-, 20L0

Amended May 9,20L2
Amended May 7,20L4

Amended December 2, 20L5
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PROXY DESIGNATION FORM

ASSOCIATION OF CALIFORNIA WATER AGENICIES

GEt{ERAL SESS¡Ohr rMEh/BERSHTP h/EET! NG(S)

WEDNESDAY, NOVEMBER 29, 2OI7 AT 1:20PM

THURSDAY, NOVEMBER 30, 2OI7 AT L:20PM (lF NEEDED)

TO: Donna Pangborn, Clerk of the Board

EMAIL: donnap@acwa.com

FAX 9L6-325-4857

The person designated below will be attending the ACWA General Session Membership Meeting(s) on

Wednesday, November 29,2OL7 (and November 30, 2Ot7 iÎ necessary) as our voting delegate.

t lf your agency designates a delegate from another entity to serve as its authorized voting representative,

please indicate the delegate's entity in the appropriate space above, Note: Delegates need to sign the proxy

form indicating they have accepted the responsibility of carrying the proxy.

REMINDER: Proxy cards will be available for pÌck up on Wednesday, November 29, between 9:00 a.m. and

12:00 p.m. at the ACWA General Session Desk in the main foyer outside of the Marquis Ballroom Center,

Marriott Anaheim. The luncheon and General Session Membership Meeting will be held in the Platinum

Ballroom l--6.

eÇ,*w@

MEMBER AGENCY'S NAME AGENCY'S TELEPHONE No.

M E M BER AG E N CY'S AUTH O RIZI N G R EP RES E NTATIV E SIGNATURE

DELEGATE'S NAME SIGNATURE

DELEGATE'S EMAIL DE LEGATE,S TELEP HON E N o.

DELEGATE S AFFTLTATON (if different from assigning agency)' DATE

Proxy Designation Form_General Session Fall 2017.Docx





 

      

     

          
     

  

        

     

           

            

               

             

              

                

               

        

              

              

          

             

              

             

      

  

 



  

  

            

    

          

               

            

       

                

              

                

  
   

             





 

   

     
    

          
  

                

       
        
  

     

            

             

              

               

                
            

              

     

 

     

            

              

 

          

            

              

             

              

    

 

             

           

            



           
 

   

           

              

            

             

             

              

            

           

             

         

    

              

             

             

              

            

            

             

              

    

     

      

     

            

           

     



RECYCLED WATER ONSITE RETROFIT CONSTRUCTION PROJECT
CENTRAL SERVICE AREA - TASK 2

@ NORTH MARIN
wATtR DtSfRtCl

Russell D. Milchell Associalcs, Inc,

2760 C.m¡ìo Di¡blo
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lcl 925.919.3t85 I fûx 925.912.5671
\!s1r-ilairi grlion.conì
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VìSION BYN0. DATE

NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT
NOVATO, CALIFORNIA

GENERAL SITE PLAN

EAST
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CENTRAL SERVICE AREA PRIVATE RETROFIT SITES . EAST
SECTION AND DETAIL NUMBERING SYSTEM

SECTION NUMBER

CE-s . SUTTER HEALIH 165 ROWLAND WAY
't) sEcTloN cuT 0N

DWG Nl L
DRAWING ON WHICH
SECTION APPEARS

CE_g _ SUTTER HEALTH 101 ROWLAND WAY

2) oN DWG Nl
THIS SECTION IS
IDENTIFIED AS

SECTION NUN¡BER

SECTION DRAWING FRON/

WHICH SECTION IS

TAKEN

3) DETATLS ARE CROSS-REFERENCED lN A SIMILAR MANNER,
EXCEPT THAÍ DETAILS ARE IDENTIFIED BY LETTER RATHER
THAN NUMBER.

cE-13 - OFFTCE BUTLD|NG 84/BB ROWLAND WAy

CE_B _ ROLAND PLAZA OWNERS ASSOCIATION 5 ROWLAND WAY
CE_12 - CHICK_FIL-A J5 ROWL,AND WAY RETROFIT SITE SHEET

NUMBERING SYSTEM:

SHEET NUMBER

PROJECT SITE NUMBER
(cE-1, CE-14, flc..)

CE_4 _ TACO BELL 180 ROWLAND BLVD

N

CE_6 _ VINTAGE OAKS SHOPPING CENTER

CE_6 _ VINTACE OAKS SIIOPPING CENTER

CE_6 _ VINTAGE OAKS SHOPPING CENTER

'122 VINTAGE WAY

'1 11 VINTAGE WAY

142 VINTAGE WAY

o
NOT TO SCALË

CE_6 _ VIN-TAGE OAKS SHOPPING CENTER 214 VINTAGE WAY

CE_6 _ VINTAGE OAKS SHOPPING CENTER 216 VINTAGE WAY_IN AND OUI

CE_6 - VINTAGE OAKS SHOPPING CENTER 210 VINTAGE WAY

ATTACHMENT 1



RECYCLED WATER ONSITE RETROFIT CONSTRUCÍION PROJECT

CENTRAL SERVICE AREA - TASK 2

@ NORIH MARIN
WATTR DISTRICT

Rnsscll D, Mílch¿ll Associalcs, Iilc
2760 Catr\nìo Di¡bìo

lvaknf Creck, C^ 94597

ld r25-919.398t i fix 92J.912.5ó71

\rww.mr¡nri g¡lioil.coilr

bûD FOR BID

APPN0. DAlE REVISION

NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRIC-I
NOVATO, CALIFORNIA

GENERAL SITE PLAN

WIST

AS NO1EDDR CH SCAL

M LB CL 7DA

SHTET NO. 6J SI]EE'IS)I /CHIIF ËNGINEER

NO. ROJ
SERVICE 5 5.6058.20

SECTION DETAIL NUMBERING SYSTEM:

CENTRAL SERVICE AREA PRIVATE RETROFIT SITES - WEST
SECIION NUMBER

rt

.'..
1) sEcTroN cuT oN LDWG Nl

DRAWING ON WHICH
SECTION APPEARS

2) ON DWG Nl
THIS SFCTION IS
IDENTIFIED AS

SECTION NUMBER

SECTION DRAWING FROM
WHICH SECTION IS
TAKEN

'i¿

&-.

\l
3) DEIAILS ARE CROSS_REFERENCED IN A SIMILAR MANNER', 

EXCEPT THAT DETAILS ARE IDENTIFIED BY LETER RATHER

THAN NUMBER.

CW-12 ^ THE REDWOODS

,i:.

"i: ^
CW_18 - VTLLAGE CIRCLE HOA

_ 309 VILLACE CIRCLE_ 100_600 CUTLASS DRIVE

'í
CW_11 _ SEÀSCAPE VILLACE HOA

_ 10 SEASCAPE DRIVE SHEETRETROFIT
NUMBERING SYSTEM:

CW_1 1 _ SEASCAPE VILLAGE HOA
_ 704 REDWOOD BLVD

CW*17 - SCOTTSDALE LAKE HOA
_ 71 SCOTTSDALE WAY q".

''ru CW_1l _ SEASCAPE VILLAGE HOA
_ 2 SFASCAPE DRIVE

.:. SHEE-T NUMBER

PROJECT SITE NUIüBER
(cw-1, cw-14, ETC,.)CW_17 ' SCOTTSDALE LAKE HOA

_ 33 LAKEVIEW CT

k
.l'

I

t

CW_15 _ WES'TERN OAKS VILLAGE HOA

- 1 249 REDWOOD BLVD I
I

I
I

¡J,-,",

ì11 rirl'l i,:,.-:l
t-

CW_16 _ REDWOOD TOWNHOMES HOA
_ 707 REDWOOD BLVD

CW_16 _ REDWOOD fOWNHOMES HOA

- 703 REDWOOD BLVD N

CW_23 * SEOUOIA CLEN HOA
ú

"ì' o_ 57 SEQUOAI GLEN LN ?;r¡',,.¡irt

ß.,

1.1

NO-T TO SCALE
CW_15 _ CHEDA ACRES HOA

_ 299 SILVIO LANE

CW-24 _ INN MARIN

- 250 ENTRADA BLVD

'ao,
tl^. \

I
I

....\ I
J

1...r;j:i ìll"i1

.!'

i SftpÞin! trnler

OW_19 _ VILLA ENTRADA HOA

- 520 ENTRADA DR



RECYCLED WATER ONSITE RETROFIT CONSTRUCTION PROJECT
CENTRAL SERVICE AREA - WEST

r@ NORTH flARIN
walER DtStRtCr

Rresell D. Milchell Assoc¡rles, Inc.

2760 cûino Diablo
Walnut Cræk, CA 914597

rel 925,939,39E5 I fM925.932,5671
ww.må¡migalion.@m

ftt/BtD |ft]¡ ü7. J-5.6058.20 Àìf
16 ISSUED FOR BID CM RG

N0. DAIE REVlSION BY APP

NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT
NOVATO, CALIFORNIA

GENIRAL SITT PLAN

AND DRAWING LIST

DES DR CH ,AS NOTEDSCALE

DA

5.6058.40
SERVICE 5 \0. RG2

SECTION AND DETAIL NUMBERING SYSTEM:

SECTION NUMBER

CENTRAL SERVICE AREA RETROFIT SITES . WEST

f

1) sEcTroN cur oN
DWG N1

2) ON DWG N1
THIS SECTION IS
IDENTIFIED AS

L
CW-3 - CITY OF NOVATO MEDIANS

REDWOOD BLVD AT CUTLASS

DRAWING ON WHICH
SECTION APPEARS

SECTION NUMBER

DRAWING FROM
WHICH SECTION IS
TAKEN

SECTION

CW-10 - LYNWOOD ELEMENTARY

NOT TO SCALT

3) DETAILS ARE CROSS-REFERENCED IN A SIMILAR MANNER,' 
EXCEPT THAT DETAILS ARE IDENTIFIED BY LFTTER RATHEK
THAN NUMBER.
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North Marin Water District Project No. 5 6058.20

Water Central - Private On-site Retrofits P

Bid ltems From Bid Schedule (003f 0)
Engineer's
Estimate

GWS Construction
Group

Aanenson
Wildcat lnc

Total Amount

Items 1 - 16 All work to complete on-site retrofit to receive recycled water for irrigation at:

$8,675

$30,300

$88,750

$1 6,1 00

$18,400

$14,325

$236,500

$8,800

$14,400

$12,000

$13,200

$30,450

$10,000

$24,300

$26,475

$5,300

$3,700

$3,000

$564,675

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

N/A

Company

Schaffer
Engineering,5%

Total Amount

$29,500

$30,500

$s4,500

$31,500

$31,500

$30,500

$101,500

$39,500

$30,500

$30,500

$30,500

$35,500

$29,500

$27,500

$36,500

$48,500

$60,500

$3,000

$681,500

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

N/A

Company

Delpino
Construction, '15%

BC Plumbinq. 10%

Company

Yes

Total Amount

$10,000

$26,000

$115,000

$18,000

$24,000

$17,000

$1 10,000

$12,000

$16,000

$17,000

$17,000

$18,000

$10,000

$26,000

$23,000

$26,000

s10,000

$3,000

Total Base Bid $498,000

Bid Forms

Subcontractors:

and site visit

Description of ltems

Taco Bell, 180 Rowland Blvd, shown in Dwg CE4-1

Sutter Health, 165 Rowland Way, shown in Dwgs CE-5-1

to4
Vintage Oaks Shopping Center: shown in Dwgs CE-6-1

to -16 1 1 1 Vintage \Nay 122 Vintage \Nay 142 Vintage

Way 210 Vintage Way 214 Vintage Way 216 Vintage
way
Rowland Plaza Owners Association - 5 Rowland Way &
Chick-fi1-A 35 Rowland Way, shown in Dwgs CÊ-8-1 , -2

Sutter Health - 101 Rowland Way, shown in Dwgs CE-9-
I thru -3

Office Building- BB Rowland Way, shown in Dwg CE-13-1

Seascape Village HOA: shown in Dwgs CW-1 1-1 thru -6

8 Seascape Dr 702 Redwood Blvd 7 Seascape Dr 704

Redwood Blvd 4 SeascapeDr 2 Seascape Dr 6
Seascape Dr l0 Seascape Dr

The Redwoods - 100-600 Cutlass Dr, shown in Dwg CW-12-1

Westem Oaks Village
Dwgs CW-13-1 thru -5

HOA - 1249 Redwood Blvd, shown in

Cheda Acres HOA - 299 Silvio Lane, shown ¡n Dwgs CW-'15-

1 thru -3

Redwood Townhomes HOA: shown in Dwg CW-16-1
707 Redwood BIvd 703 Redwood BIvd.

Scottsdale Lake HOA: shown in Dwgs CW-17-1 thru 4
33 Lakeview Ct 71 Scottsdale Way

Village Circle HOA - 309 Viìlage Circle, shown in Dwgs CW-
40 4to-l

Villa Entrada HOA - 520 Entrada Dr, shown in Dwgs CW-19-
1thru3

Sequoia Glen HOA: shown in Dwgs CW-23-1 thru 3 57

Sequoia GIen Lane 120 Sequoia Glen Lane

lnn Marin - 250 Entrada Dr, shown in Dwgs CW-24-1 , -2

City of Novato Medians - 1300 S. Novato Blvd (Dwg CW-
1-3)City of Novato Medians - Redwood Blvd at Cutlass
(Dwg CW-3-2 & -3) Rowland BIvd Redwood Blvd City of
Novato Medians - 701 and 800 Redwood Blvd. (Dwg

CW-4/6-3 & 4) So. Novato Blvd. Redwood Blvd

Lynwood Elementary (Dwg CW-1O-2)City of Novato
Medians - 1 I 9 and 123 lgnacio Blvd.(Dwg CW-20-2 & -
4) lgnacio BIvd West lgnacio Blvd Genter - Left lgnacio

BIvd Center - Right lgnacio Blvd East

As-Built Drawings

"lN" Stamped before bid closins (00010)

Bid multiplies out and sums correctly

Bid value in word aqrees with numerals

License Checks Out (00300) Possesses Class A (or C27) License

Bid Form (00300-1)

Bid Form - Contractor's Licensinq Statement

Bid Form - Siqned by Authorized Individual

Bid Form - Bid Guarantv Bond (00410)

Bid Form - Cert. of Bidders Experience and Qualifications (00420)

Bid Form - List of Subcontractors (not part of Spacifications)

Bidders Affidavit of Non-Collusion (00480)

Escrow Aqreement (00490)

Asphalt and Concrete

Plumbing

Boring

Qtv

LS

LS

LS

LS

LS

LS

LS

LS

LS

LS

LS

LS

LS

LS

LS

LS

LS

LS

Item
No,

1

2

4

7

B

I

10

11

12

IJ

14

15

16

17

r8

Com

wlDôc!m¿nb\7039.-.\RWC ON-Sta Rotof n Bid An3lFh Spro¡dthcct.xls

Yes

ATTACHMENT 2





 

 

       
    

        

  

           
               

             

                

      

              

             

                 

                  

             

            

                 

                

            

       

  

   



 

     
    

        
 

  

  

             

                 

                 

             

             

                  

             

         

   

       

          

     

           

         

 





MEMORANDUM

ITEM #13

November 3,2017To:

From

Subj:

Board of Directors

Drew Mclntyre, General Ma

Fire Disaster Leave For Empl
t:þm\bod misc 201 ndisster læve_staffrepon.doc

RECOMMENDED AGTION: Adopt a resolution to provide paid time off ("Fire Disaster Leave")
for eligible employees who were directly impacted by the North
Bay fires.

FINANCIAL IMPACT: Approximately $11,500 (included in FY18 Operations Budget)

ln response to the recent North Bay fires, public and private employers are exploring

options to support their employees who have been directly affected by this unprecedented

disaster. As reported during the October 17 meeting, a significant portion of the District's staff

(i.e.27o/o) who live in the North Bay were impacted in some way by the fires.

The greatest impact of the disaster was during the first week of the fires, October 9th

through October 13th. On October 13th lapproved all work absences for affected employees

authorizing use of all types of accrued leave to cover their time off, including sick leave and

compensatory time off.

The fire disaster has affected many staff, either directly or indirectly. Fortunately, no

staff suffered the catastrophic loss of their homes. However, approximately 15 District

employees were not able to report to work due to evacuation notices and warnings.

Staff is recommending that the District provide onetime paid Fire Disaster Leave relief

of up to 40 hours to employees who were subject to mandatory or advisory evacuation as

directed by public safety personnel in connection with the recent North Bay fires. This leave

would not be charged against other leave balances. Since employees took time off during the

week of October 9, the Fire Disaster Leave would be applied retroactively reversing the time

taken off by staff. Human Resources will be responsible for administering the leave and

verifying eligibility,

The direct cost for the Fire Disaster Leave, which totals approximately 130 hours, is

estimated at $11,500. lf approved, this cost will be funded as part of the current FY18

Operations Budget and no budget augmentation is required.

RECOMMENDATION

Adopt the resolution to provide paid time off ("Fire Disaster Leave") for eligible

employees who were directly impacted by the North Bay fires.



DRAFT
RESOLUTION 17.XX

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIREGTORS OF
NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT RESOLUTION APPROVING FIRE DISASTER LEAVE

FOR EMPLOYEES WHO WERE ADVERSELY AFFECTED BY THE
FIRES IN SONOMA AND NAPA COUNTIES DURING THE WEEK OF OCTOBER gTH - 13TH

2017.

WHEREAS, NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT employees were significantly impacted during

the recent fires in Sonoma and Napa counties; and

WHEREAS, approximately 15 employees of the District were catastrophically affected through

displacement or emergency evacuation advisories; and

WHEREAS, the District wants to support the individuals who were most severely impacted

through forgiveness of leave hours taken during the week of October 9th through October 13th

2017; and

WHEREAS, approximately 150 hours of leave was taken by those employees who were the

most severely impacted by the disaster.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of DirectOrS Of thc NORTH MARIN

WATER DISTRICT hereby approves one{ime paid Fire Disaster Leave of up to 40 hours per

employee, for employees who were either forced to evacuate their homes or received

evacuation advisory notices due to the Sonoma/Napa fires and needed to take time off work

because of the extraordinary circumstances.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE lT FURTHER RESOLVED that the General Manager, or designee, is

authorized and directed to administer the application of Fire Disaster Leave and verify employee

eligibility consistent with this resolution.

I hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and complete copy of a resolution duly and

regularly adopted by the Board of Directors of NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT at a regular

meeting of said Board held on the seventh day of November 2017 by the following vote

AYES:
NOES:

ABSENT:
ABSTAINED:

Directors

Katie Young, District Secretary

North Marin Water District

(sEAL)

t:\gm\bod m¡sc 201 7\d¡saster l€ave-resolution.docx





 

   

      

      
         

 

 

 

            

             

                 

        

            

              

             

            

            

              

             

               

                 

                 

   

   

    

   

   

    

    

    

    

   

    

   



      
 

 

             

              

             

               

           

   

                 

            

              

             
                   

  

             

               

               

      

            

             

            

            

  

   

  

   





  

   

      
           

 

  

                 

           

           

          

              

          

              

              

            

       

    

             

                 

               

                

  

                

              

                

           

 
 
 

  

      



      
 

   

    

               

       

           

           

           

             

               

         

    

              

              

             

            

  

   

         

            

             

            

              

             

                

             

             

             

 



      
 

   

 

  

 
 

  

 

 
 

 

 

   

 

  

 
    

 

    
  

  

 
    

        
   

   

  

  

  

  
  
  

  
  
  



 

      

    

      

  

 

  

 

   

    

   

    

    

   

   

  

     

    

    

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

   

 

 

   

  

    

    

    

 

  

 

 

   

   

       

    

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

     
 

    



           

    

    

    

   

 

  

 

  

  

    

   

      

       

      

  

     

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

    

     

    

  

  

 

  

  

  

     

    

    

    

 

 

  

  

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

      



  
  

 

 

 

  

 

  

 

 

             

    
  

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

         



   
  

    
      

 

   

 

       
     

       

 

 
  

     
        

   
   
    

 

    

    
  

 

 
 

 

 

 

  

 

 
 

 

 

 

 
 
 

 

  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

          



        

      
  

 

 

 

 

 

 

        

   





 

     

  

                
                

  

   

  

    

    
    
 

     

    
      

      
     

       
      

      

   

   

 

    

 

      
 

 

 

    

     
        

   

      
  

           
     

           

       
     

  



  

  

  

     
   

 

    
     

   
     

     
     

     
 

     

    

      

     
   

     
    
     

     
     

      
   

      
     
     

     
    

   

     
      

     
     

    

 

  

   

  

 

 

    



  

 

  

 

 

  

  

  

  

 

 

 

     
    

     
      

     
    

 

      
 

     
  

      
      

   

    

  

 

 

 

 

       
     

        
      

       
     

  

 

   

     
    

      
  

           

      

       



  

 

 

   

   

  

  

   

  

   

    
 

 

     

    

  

    

      
    

     
    

        

 
 

            
  



     

  

                

                

  

 

 

  

  

  

  

 

 

 

    

 

 

  

 

     

      
 

     

     

   

    

 

      
 

  

 

     

      
       

   

     
   

 

    

    

    

 

   

       



  

 

   

 

  

  

  

 

 

  

 

 

  

  

 

  

  

        

    
   

   

   

  

    

    

   

        

  

    

       

    

     
 

 

   

   

     
       

 

   

     

    

 

      



 

  

   

  

  

    

 

 

     
      
     
      

    
     

      
     

 

   

     
     

     

      
   

       
 

     

 

       
      

  

    

      

    

   

        

     
   

      
    

    

    

 

 

 

  

 

  

  

   



  

   

   

     

      
      

       
    

     

      
 

  

            
  

 

       



     

  

                
                

  

 

    

  

  

  

 

  

    

   

   

  

  

 

 

  

    
    

 

      
     

   

   

 

   

   

       
  

     
  

 

     
    

  

      

    

     
    

     

     

     

 

 



  

   

   

 

  

  

  

 

  

 

 

 

 

  

  

  

  

   

     
    

   

 

     

    

 

     
 

    
    

   

     
    

 

        
  

     
      

       

    

      
       

        
   

  

     

       

     

  

       



  

 

 

   

   

   

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

      

     

        
      
        

     
    

     
      

    

       
     

      
      

    

  

    

     
      

   
      

   

   

      
     
       

       
     

 

 

 

 

  



  

  

  

 

   

 

  

 

  

 

  

  

  

     
      

       
       

     
     

     
      

       
 

   

  

 

     
      

       
  

   

     

     

     

       
 

     

    

      

 

 



  

    
 

            
  

 



    
             
             

                
                

          
             

              
               

                    
                    

                
                 

                  
               

                 
                  

                
               
                      
                      

                  
               

                    
                     
                 

             
            

                   
                   

            

          

 
 
 



     

           
         

        
 

                 

                 
                 

                

               
                 
       

                
                

                 
                

                   
          

              
                
             

             
         

               
          

                  
               

                 
              

             
                 

             
              

             
              

                
                
              

           

                
         



 
 

  



        

 
      

        
         

       
       

          
    

     

       
       

        
        

        
          

   

        

             

            

      

            

          

            

          

            

         

          
          

   

    



     
    

                    

                   

         

     

         

                
                  

      

                  
               

                    
        

                  
                  

 

                 

             
               

                 
                



 

               

                 

                

    

                

 

 

                  

                

       

                   

            

                  

               

           

                     

      

                   

                    

 

 

                     

            

                

         

                    

          

                       

   

                     

                    

        

                  

                        

  

                

                

 

                     

                    

                  

          

                     

                  

 



                 
  

                     
     

             

 

                 

         

              
                 

               

                   
      

                    

                

              
                 

                 
            

                

                       

    



   

    
    

 
      

         

         
         

         

            

             

          

     

 

    



           

               

             

         

             

              

            

           

           

            

      

             

      

         

                 

      

 

             

            

              

            

          

      



          

             

              

         
 

     

              

              

             

             

               

            

   

               

        



   
            

         
          

        
        

       

     
   

   

     



               

                 

           

            

              

    

            

             

             

          

         

           

             

             

             

   



             

               

             

             

            

        

             

      

   

             

       

             

           

               

              

            

            

         

       
     

 

            

         

              

    

                  

   



      
     

             

         

                 

                
                     

  

                     
                 

                    
                    

              

                  

          

                 
    

                  
                 

             

               



                   

                

                   
   

                  
         



 

      

                

 

                

                
    

                       
       

                

  
 



          

             
            

          
         

            
          

         
          
       

              
     

 

         
 

         

        

          
          

          
       



           

     

            
            

          

            

           

           

          
           

          

          
       

          
        

          
           

             
          

       

          
          

     

            
          

       
         



Marin resident to head Golden Gate
National Recreation Area

Laura Joss is the new Golden Gate National Recreation Area superintendent. (GGNRA photo)

By Mark Praclo, Marin Independent Jc¡tnttal

POSTED: IOIZI;III,4:04 PM PDT I UPDATED: 3 DAYS AGOO COMMENTS

A Marin resicLent has been tapped to be the next superintenclent of the Golclen Gate National Recreatic.rn Area.

Laura.Ioss, regional clirector for the National Park Service's Pacific West Rcgion, will assuìlle the post in November.

Joss has worked for the park servic e for z7 years. She has served as park service deputy regional director and chief of
staff, as well as associate regional di¡:ector for resource stewardship and research for the Intermountain Region.

"It's been a clream job for years," J<tss, 56, said c¡f her appointment as superintenclent of the Golclen G¿rte Natir¡nal
Recreation Area. "I'm so happy and amazecl that this opportunity came abc¡ut."

Joss said she plans to get to know the staff, volunteers and palk partners in the coming days. \,Vhile she plans to get
familiar with the park before introducing initiatives, Joss ho¡res to improve access for all groups and address deferred
maintenance.

Joss replaces Christine Lehnertz, who was namecl to the post in March zor5, but left in zo16 for the Grand Canyotr
National Park after a sexual harassment scanclal that lecl to the retirement of that park's f'onner chief.

The new superintendent arrives as the fiercely debated dog management plan has corne to an end as the park ser-vice

abancloned plans to enforce tighter rules earlier this month. But other issues remain, including managing traffic in
ancl around Muir Woods National Monument, ,Ioss' new job pays roughly $r7o,ooo a year.

The amount of GGNRA land in Marin is significant: of its approximately Bo,ooo acres, roughly 55 percent is in the
county and represented by Muir Woocls and areas such as the Bolinas Ridge, Iìort Baker, Iiort Cronkhite, Gerbocle
Valley, Kirby Cove, Marin Headlands, Muir lleach, Muir Beach Overlook, Nike Missile site, Olema Valley, Point



Bonita l,ighthouse, Stinson Beach ancl'l'ennessee Valley. 'Ihe GGNRA - which has more than 15 million visitors
annually - also stretches into San Francisco and San Mateo counties.

.Ioss earlier servecì. as superintendent at Arches National Park, clepnty superintendent of the park service's Southeast
Utah Group, superintendent of Fort McHenry National Monument and Historic Shrine and Flarnpton National
Historic Site in Marylan<l, and chief of the cultural resolrrces branch at Yellowstone National Park.

"Laura's collaborative leadership skills and passion for urban parks makes her well suited f'or this position," said
acting National Park Service Director Michael Reynolds in a statement. "Her commiturent to transparency, working
with õommunities, partnerships and youth, coupled with her park management experience, will serve the park well."

Joss is married to Skip Meehan, who is also an employee of the National Park Service. ,Ioss, who lives in Northern
Marin, enjoys running, biking, pottery and exploring national park sites ancl museums with her family.



Point Reyes winemaker wins permits in appeal
By Anna Guth
tolz6lzotT

The Marin County planning Commission on Monclay showecl fierce support for a one-man winemaking business

getting offthe ground in Point Reyes Station'

In a 4 to 1 vote, commissioners overturned a county decision in July to deny permits to Inverness resident Avi

Deixler to operate Absentee Winery out of a barn on the Gallagher Ranch'

,,It seems to me this is exactly the type of thing that we want to snpport," commissioner Margot Biehle said. "Small

winemaker, small input, smãn outóut, very li{ht use of the property and an agricultural use that we have requirecl for

western Márin," sheìaict in refencè to the county's prioritizãtion of protecting agriculture in the coastal zone.

yet county staff will include a number of minor conditions in Mr. Deixler's use and coastal permits-a nod to both the

dissenting commissioner, Don Dickenson, ancl county staff, who worried the operation could set a precedent for

businesses wishing to truck in water.

The permits allow for Absentee Winery to opelate out of a r,78o-square-foot defunct milking barn, yielding no more

thai3,ooo cases of wine a year. Mr. Deixlef, who travelecl from France to Australia to Oregon to-learn the trade,

planJto source his g¡apes fiom growers in Mendocino County who are "beyoncl organic." He said his procluct will
ãschew the adclitivei and ptesernatives that are commonplace in the industry'

,,True wine, with grapes as the only ingredient, does not give you a headache if you have a second glass. It's a journey

of flavor that youJusi fall into," .uia ur. Deixler, who named his winery "Absentee" to reflect his stripped-down

approach.

This summer, his proposal was denied by the Deputy ZoningAdministrator-the first thresholcl in the county's

permitting pro""ri-on two counts. Firsi, the aclministrator said plans_to have potable water delivered to a 1,5oo-
'gallon holäing tank on the property, rather than sourcing water tïom the site itself, "would not meet the minimum

health ancl safety tequirements."

Second,, Mr. Deixler's sewage plan proposed using an existing, but unpermitted, bathroom on the ranch and storing

wastewâter produced by thõ winemaking process it a z,5oo-gallon holding tank to haul <¡ffsite to a permitted facility.

It was the first count-the need to truck water to the site-that proved stickiest this week. Back in July,

Environmental Health Services suggested three alternative water plans t'or the project: drilling a new well, permitting

an existing well on the ranch or seéking a new service from the North Marin Water District.

Mr. Deixler explained at the time that these options were both too expensive and not justified for 
_a 

business of his

scale. The civif engineer he hirecl to help with his application estimated that the alternatives coulcl cost between
g5o,ooo and g6oþo0 up front, compaied to the $r,ooo to $z,ooo it would cost him annually to truck in water.

Mr. Deixler said his startup costs alreacly totalecl $5o,ooo, inclucling arouncl $z4,ooo on application materials for
the county's permits.

Underscoring the small scale of his business, Mr. Deixler estimates he would use a 1:l water-to-wine ratio, which is a

far cry from i'he 5:r ratio the county used to determine that he needed a r,5oo-gallon tank, he said.

Both county staff and Bnvironmental Health Services recommended rejecting his appeal at Monday's hearing.

But Commissioner Biehle challenged staff to "point to any mandate requiring where the lwater] source needs to come

from" for the project site, or to "añy exclusion for bringing in potable water from external sources."

Though they looked, county staff coulcl not fînd a suitable answer during the hearing.

Commissioner John Eller, who chairs the Planning Commission, secondecl Commissioner Biehle's views, saying it
was unclear ,,what public þrrrpor., environmentalãr otherwise, is being served by requiring the water to be at the



source,"

Commissioner Biehle said the "argument that it has never been clone before, ancl therefore it shall never be, is one
that encourages stagnation. In this zrst century, where we are trying to encourage a spirit of entrepreneurship and
we want people to thinl< in new ways about environmental stewardship and agriculture, we need to be somewhat
nimble in our thinking about codes and how they apply to new uses and new permits."

Three other members of the committee echoecl her support, agreeing that the fact that trucking water was
uncommon in Marin did not make it problematic (Chris Desser, the commissioner for District Four, was absent
Monday).

Yet Commissioner Dickenson, who represents the county at large, disagreed. "I actually think this would be a very
unfortunate prececlent. My involvement in the county goes back almost 40 years now, and I don't know of any case
where the county has approved. a use like this," he said.

Commissioner Dickenson suggested bringing in other experts within the county f'or another perspective before the
commission acted.

He also highlighted that Mr. Deixler's business is one of agricultural processing, not agricultural production, since he
is not growing the grapes himself. Agricultural production, unlike agricultural processing, is a principally permitted
land use in the county and doesn't require a use permit.

County staff were alignecl with these arguments, and questioned the precedent that an approval might set. "If we go
ahead on something like this, what about someone in Bolinas, or elsewhere in the county, who thinks, 'Gosh, this is
onerous, I'm going to truck in my o'¡m water?" the county's principal planner, Curtis Havel, asked.

Ms. Biehle responded that she thought the commission could come back and argue that this was a specific decision
for a specific business use; the three other commissioners agreed.

Commissioner Bller askeci the representative from Environmental Health Services if the department would challenge
a decision to approve the permits. The representative replied, "Likely so." After the hearing, the assistant director for
the Commnnity Development Agency, Tom Lai; clarified that no county agency would appeal the decision.

In the end, the approval of the permits was made contingent upon a number of conditions, at Commissioner
Dickenson's request. Among other things, the schedules for water delivery and testing of the water in the holciing
tank must be finalized and the septic system for the Gallagher's residence permitted. In addition, Mr. Deixler must
confirm that there will be no wine tasting, onsite sales or other employees besides himself, as he proposed.

Finally, commissioners requested that Environmental Health Selices be consulted to confïrm that the water in the
holding tank woulcl remain potable after delivery, with the hope that any disputes would be resolvecl.



Marin trJ Editorial: Pension change
reflects prudent fïscal outlook
POSTED: 10126117,1:44 PM PDT I UPDATED: 12 HRSAGO4 COMMENTS

The board that oversees the county's pensicln fund has decided the fund shouldn't be run on unrealistic expectations

'l'he board of the Marin County llmployees Retirement Association, which mana¡les the public pension fund for
county workers and those in many public agencies across Marin, voted to re<lnce its protected return on investments
to 7 percent.

One board member ulged her colleagues to leduce the estimate even fìrrthel.

It is insightfirl that the two of membels of the seven-member bc¡arcl that supportecl reducing the fìurcl's rate to 6.75
pelcent wer-e two of the citizen members appointecl by the Board of Supervisols. A maìority of tire boarcl is cornposed
of employees and county managers.

Investment returns ¿rre a vital source of funciing fol pension funcls, but as we Ìrave learned since the lecession of
zotl8-<19, relying on lofty expectations c¿rn be clangerous - for workers, public agcncies and taxpayers,

'I'he current pension clisis has cost workers jobs, it has reducecl and eliniinatecl public services ancl programs and
taxpayers have been asked to pay more in taxes and f'ees.

The MCERA board's decision is a step toward strengthening the long-term financial fbundation of the pension fund.
It also means that the annual contributions from nember agencies and their worhers will be increased to cover the
gap createcl by the quarter'-percentage-point shift.

That increased cost is why many have been reluctant to lower that part of the equation.

We pay our taxes f'crr public sewices, projects ancl prclgrams, but more and more clf our tax cìollars are needecl to
cover promises to current ancl fùture pensioners.

Is it einy wonder that in the private industry, most employers saw the oncoming financial uncertainties of defïneci-
benefits pensions and shiftecl employees to 4or(k)s?

But government is still holding thern dear, a sign of the political clout of workers' unions, an expectation that
investment returns will bounce back to the heacly double-digit clays ancl fear that by reducing benefits they wilì not be
able to recruit or retain goocl employees.

CaIPERS, the state's largest public pension fund, has rolled its rate back to 7.2S percent fbr next fiscal year and to 7
percent for zorg-zo, rnuch like MCERA has done, rnaking its second reduction since zo14 when its rate was 7.5
percent.

'I'he move by MCBRA will increase the annual pension bilìs of the county and other member agencies such as the city
of San Rafael and the Novato Fire District. It will also, however', stem the agencies' growing long-terrn pension clebt.

The MCERA board's vote was a fiscally ¡rrudent - albeit likely painful - corr-ect step to take for the long-term health
of the local public pension progran.



Marin County pension contributions to
arlse

Bernadette Bolger. (lJ photo/Alan Dep) 2012

By Riclrarcl Halsteacl, Marin Inclependent Jountal

POSTED: 1o117117,5:5'l PM PDT I UPDATED: 2 HRS Aco3 COMMENTS

The boarcl that oversees the pension investments of a lalge chunk of Marin County's public employees clecicleci
'fuesday to cttt a key investment return assumption, r'esulting in member agencies and employees paying rnore to
fìnance the ploglam.

The nine-member board of the Marin County Employees Retirement Association, known as MCERA, votecl 7-zto
recluce tlre fttncl's assumed annual rate of return from T.2Epercent to 7 percent. The rate was last cut in zor4 fïom 7.5
percent ïo 7 .25 percent.

MCERA is a rnultiple-employer govemmental pension group whose members include the county of Marin, the city of
San Rafael, the Nov¿tto Fire District ancl a nurnber of smaller governmental entities.

ADVERTISING



The two dissenting MCBRA board members a<lvocatecl shlinking the rate everì rnol'e.

"I think it is time for this boalci to be bold; money cloesn't grow on trees," saicl board member Bemadette Bolgel of
Novato, who made a motion to lower the rate lo 6.79 pelcent.

"It is time fbr us to put more into the plan, recluce the unfunclecl liability and give more certainty to the generation
that is coming up," saicl Bolger, a retirecl senior vice presiclent of Mellon Capital Managernent ancl former chief trust
counsel of Bank of Calif'ornia. Bolger was appointeci to the board by the Boarcl of Supervisors in zooB.

At the encl of the previous fiscal year, the association had an unfunded liability of $477.t million; the coulrty of
Marin's share amounted to fizgZ.t rnillion. Th<ise nurnbers, however, haven't yet been acljusted to reflect the public
pension fund's rr.B percent net return on investments for the fiscal year that encled June 3o.

The only mernber of the board to snpport Bolger's motion was Iüm Stevens of San Anselmo, a retirecl investrnent
analyst ancl portfolio manager of Snycler Capital Management. Stevens was appointed to the retirernent board by the
Iloarcl of Supervisors in eotz.

Marin County Finance Director Roy Given, an ex-<lfficio membel of MCBRA's board, said tìre lecl.uction to 6.TE
percent inclucle<l an assumption that inflation will remain low, a concept with which he wasn't comfortaìrle.

"One of the things the government is trying to clo is bring up inflation," Given said. "I'm concernecì. that we take too
much of a bold move up front."

Boarcl metnber Phillip Thomas was absent so alternate boarcl member Alan Piombo, a San Rafael police lieutenant,
votecl in his place.

"I just don't see the urgency for a move that big," Piombo saicl, referring to BolgeL's motion fbr a o.5o percentage-
point cut in the assumed rate of return.

Piombo saicl such a Íìove would not "bode well for people's willingness to cornmute to Marin and work for wages tliat
are not keeping up with areas where it is much less expensive to live.

"I'm doing the hiring ancl it is clifïicult riglrt now," Piombo said. "This will make it worse."

Bolger replied, "I don't believe that is in our purvey as trustees."

Piombc¡ shof back, "Over'-conservatism isn't either."

Cheiron actuaty Graham Schmiclt set the stage fbr the vote with a leview <tf zotT investment assumptions, MCERA's
previotts 7.25 percent, nominal assumed rate of retnrn was basecl on a projectecl annual inflation rate of 2.75 pelcent
ancl a real rate of return of 4.5 percent. The real rate of return is arrivecl at by subtracting the inflation late from the
nc¡ninal rate.

Schrnidt tolcl the board that the 4.5 percent real rate of return was slightly high ancl recommenclecl reclucing it to 4.25
percent, which woulcl result in a nominal rate of 7 percent if the inflation rate was left unchanged.. IJut Schmiclt saicl
the boarcl coulcl consicler reclucing the inflation rate to 2.5 percent in adclition, which woulcl result in a nomin¿rl rate
of 6.75 percent.

Schmidt said the nation's annual inflation rate has averaged 4.r percent since 1967, 2.6 percent sir-rce r9B7 ancl r.6
percent since zoo7. He saicl the trend for public plans has been to gradually recluce inflation expectations but acldecl
that many plans are still at 3 percent or higher.

Jeff Wickman, the association's retirement aclminister, saicì. he won't know how much more member agencies and
employees will be required to contribute due to the reduction in the r¿rte of return assurnption until new c¿rlculations
are done integrating the healthy investment retuln for the fiscal year that ended June 3o. The increases will be
phased in over several years.



Wickrnan di<l, however, supply estimates of what the increases woulcl have amounted to without that aclclitional
Ievenue.

By year three of the change, the new rate assurnption would have increasecl the county of Marin's contribution by
about 2.bS percent. The city of San Rafael would have seen its contribution grow by 4 percent; and the Novato Iìire
District woulcÌ have had to boost its contributions by 5.35 percent.

MCBRA's memì:ers also include Marin Superior Coult, Marin City Community Services Distlict, Southern Marin Fire
Protection District, Marin Local Agency Þ'ormation Commission, Marin/Sonoma Mosquito ancl Vector Control
District ancl the Tamalpais Community Services District. Wickman said all these entities were ìurnpecl together with
the county of Marin when estimates for increased contributions were macle.

The new rate of return came as no surprise to Marin County managers.

In January, Marin County Budget Manager Bret Uppendahl said he expected MCtrRA to follow the leacl of the
California Public Employees Retirement System, CaIPERS, and reduce its assumed rate of return to 7 percent
starting in zorB-r9. Uppendahl estirnated the change would cost the county's general ftrnd an additional $z millioli
annually.

On Tuesday, Ccrunty Administrat<lr Matthew Hyrnel said that remains the county's best estimate of what the change
will cost.

In an email, San Rafael Finance Directol Mark Moses wrote, "The MCERA Boarcl clecision was not a sttrprise. We
have been anticipating an acljustment to the cliscount rate since the issue was brought up last year', and have
incorpolatecl it into our budget assuurptions f'or fiscal yeal zorS-19 ancl thereafter'." ,

Paul Premo of Mill Valley, a member of Citizens fbr Sustainable Pension Plans, ¿rttended 'Iuesday's meeting.

"The boarcl took an important first step to recognize that the association's return on assets assumption has beert
higher than many of its peers," Premo said.

"The proposal to lower to 6.75 percent was clefeated but the discussion was a good one," he saicl. "I believe that in the
ftrture movement Io 6.75 percent is both likely ancl clesirable."
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